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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of ELL Environment Holdings Limited (“ELL Environmental” or
the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am
pleased to present our annual report for the financial year ended 31
December 2024 (“FY2024” or the “Year”).

FY2024 was a year of resilience and strategic adaptation as we
navigated a volatile macroeconomic landscape. Uncertainties in
global markets, shifts in governmental policies and industry-specific
challenges in China and Indonesia tested our ability to adapt. Despite
these headwinds, we remain focused on operational excellence,
sustainability and long-term value creation for our shareholders (the
“Shareholders”).

China’s industrial wastewater treatment industry continued to evolve,
driven by government regulations and environmental policies, as
well as technological advancements. High capital expenditures
and operational costs continue to pose challenges, particularly for
smaller enterprises. In Indonesia, the 2024 elections ushered in new
leadership, with renewable energy expected to remain a key national
priority, an area which we are well-positioned.

Our wastewater treatment business in China made steady progress,
highlighted by the planned expansion of our wastewater treatment
facility operated by Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment Company Limited
(“‘Rugao Hengfa”). This project will increase its industrial wastewater
treatment capacity from 40,000 tonnes to 50,000 tonnes per day
and ensure compliance with higher environmental standards. The
expansion underscores our commitment to sustainable operations
and regulatory compliance.

In Indonesia, our biomass power plant in Bangka, Indonesia (the
“Bangka Project”) commenced operations in late July 2024, and
secured a 25-year fixed-price agreement with Perusahaan Listrik
Negara (“PLN”), Indonesia’s main electricity provider, ensuring
a stable and predictable revenue stream in the years to come.
Additionally, our strategic divestment of an 80% interest in the wood
pellet production business of PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari
(“RPSL”) is progressing but completion remains pending due to
prolonged government approval procedures. Despite such setback,
we are committed to completing the transaction in the first half of
2025. In the meantime, we have undertaken further preparation work
to enhance the production capacity and efficiency of the pellet plant.
In FY2024, RPSL'’s data center business has emerged as a growing
revenue contributor, providing a steady cash flow to the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Despite strong gross profit growth, our bottom line remains
under pressure due to increased impairment losses, research
and development expenses, repairs and maintenance expenses,
administrative expenses and legal expenses. The arbitration hearings
regarding the consideration receivable from the disposal of 70% of
the equity interest in our former subsidiary, Haian Hengfa Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Haian Hengfa”), were completed in
December 2024. As informed by the tribunal, the arbitration outcome
has been extended to 28 August 2025.

Looking ahead, we are committed to reducing debt, improving
operational efficiency and exploring new growth opportunities. With
a strong foundation in wastewater treatment and renewable energy,
we are confident in our ability to navigate challenges and create
sustainable long-term value.

I would like to extend my gratitude to our Shareholders, business
partners, and employees for their continued trust and support.
Together, we will drive the Group toward a future of stability,
innovation, and growth.

CHAU On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In FY2024, the Group demonstrated resilience amid operational
challenges, achieving revenue growth. Revenue increased by 7.4%
year-on-year to HK$121.6 million, with gross profit rising by 52.5% to
HK$62.0 million, driven primarily by the full operation of the Bangka
Project and the full-year revenue contribution from the data centre
in RPSL, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in Jambi,
Indonesia, where RPSL provided information technology services
to its customers. The business began operations in the last quarter
of 2023. However, research and development expenses, repairs
and maintenance expenses included in other operating expenses
and higher administrative expenses, alongside the depreciation of
the Indonesian Rupiah (the “IDR”), constrained overall profitability.
The Group remains focused on strategic growth initiatives, including
the wastewater treatment facility expansion in Rugao, PRC and the
planned disposal of its wood pellet production business, while actively
managing financial leverage to ensure long-term sustainability.

On 29 September 2024, the Company announced an agreement
between the Rugao Economic and Technological Development Zone
Administrative Committee (#0ZR A& 1 T 52 & & €) and Everbest
Water Treatment Development Company Limited (“Everbest”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Under this
agreement, Rugao Hengfa, also an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
will design and construct an expansion and enhancement project
for its wastewater treatment facility (the “Rugao Hengfa Facility”).
This project will increase daily industrial water treatment capacity
from 40,000 tonnes to 50,000 tonnes per day, with effluent quality
upgraded to Standard C under the Jiangsu Provincial Local Standard
Urban Wastewater Treatment Plant Pollutant Discharge Standard*
QL&A H 7 R AN AT KRR A YBERUIR%E) (DB32/4440-
2022). The total investment is estimated at approximately RMB20.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$23.2 million), with completion
expected in the first half of 2025.

The completion of the Bangka Project in late July 2024 has
positioned the Group to benefit from long-term revenue stability. The
plant supplies electricity to the national grid under a 25-year fixed-
price agreement with Perusahaan Listrik Negara, Indonesia’s main
electricity provider, ensuring a steady income stream.

The disposal of an 80% interest in the wood pellet production
business of RPSL, remains pending due to government approval
delays. Despite such setback, the Group aims to complete the
transaction in the first half of 2025 and has continued enhancing
production capacity and efficiency at the pellet plant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

Regarding arbitration proceedings related to the consideration
receivable in relation to the disposal of Haian Hengfa, tribunal
hearings concluded in December 2024 but the arbitration outcome
has been extended to 28 August 2025.

In FY2024, the Group recorded revenue of HK$121.6 million, a 7.4%
increase from FY2023. Gross profit increased by 52.5% to HK$62.0
million, leading to an improved gross profit margin of 51.0%, up
from 35.9% in FY2023. However, profit before tax saw only a slight
increase of HK$0.5 million, rising from HK$0.7 million in FY2023 to
HK$1.2 million in FY2024. Increased tax expenses contributed to a
net loss of HK$9.3 million in FY2024, compared to HK$8.1 million in
FY2023, mainly due to higher tax liabilities at Rugao Hengfa.

Profitability was constrained by a 247.6% increase in impairment
losses, rising from HK$1.0 million in FY2023 to HK$3.6 million in
FY2024, due to concerns over the recoverability of a receivable of
a loan due from a third party. Additionally, administrative expenses
rose by 28.8% from HK$26.5 million in FY2023 to HK$34.1 million
in FY2024, driven by the increase in staff costs and legal and
professional fees.

As of 31 December 2024, total utilised bank borrowings stood at
HK$75.4 million, with outstanding independent third-party borrowings
amounting to HK$24.8 million and related-party borrowings totalling
HK$101.9 million. The Group’s gearing ratio increased from 66.0% in
FY2023 to 80.0% in FY2024, reflecting higher borrowing levels.

OUTLOOK

The expansion of the Rugao Hengfa Facility, expected to be
completed in the first half of 2025, will enhance service capacity and
ensure compliance with stringent environmental regulations. The
project will not only increase treatment capacity but also improve
wastewater discharge quality, aligning with evolving regulatory
standards.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the Bangka Project now fully operational and supported by a
25-year fixed-price contract, the Group anticipates a stable revenue
stream that will reinforce financial stability. Additionally, while the
disposal of the 80% interest in RPSL’s wood pellet business has
faced delays, the Group remains committed to completing the
transaction in 2025, unlocking further financial flexibility.

Given the rising gearing ratio, the Group is actively exploring ways
to reduce borrowings and lower interest expenses. Strategic debt
management will remain a priority as it balances growth investments
with financial prudence.

Despite economic uncertainties, the Group is well-positioned for
sustainable growth, supported by strong industry fundamentals,
regulatory tailwinds, and a commitment to operational excellence.
The focus for the coming year will be on executing key expansion
projects, optimising financial structure, and reinforcing its leadership
in environmental solutions.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Our total revenue increased by HK$8.3 million or 7.4% to HK$121.6
million for FY2024 as compared to HK$113.3 million for FY2023.
Such increase was primarily attributable to the increase in revenue
contributed from the full operation of the Bangka Project, which
commenced operations in late July 2024 and the full-year revenue
contribution from the operation of the data centre in Jambi, which
commenced operations in the last quarter of 2023.

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales decreased by HK$13.0 million or 17.9% from
HK$72.6 million for FY2023 to HK$59.6 million for FY2024, primarily
due to (i) the decrease in water and electricity costs arising from the
wastewater treatment operation during FY2024, and (ii) the decrease
in construction costs arising from the Bangka Project during FY2024
as compared to FY2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDS N

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by HK$21.4 million or 52.5% from
HK$40.7 million for FY2023 to HK$62.0 million for FY2024, primarily
due to the aforementioned fluctuation in revenue and cost of sales.
Our gross profit margin increased from 35.9% for FY2023 to 51.0%
for FY2024.

OTHER INCOME AND NET OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

We recorded other loss and net other losses of HK$1.3 million
for FY2024 as compared to other income and net other gains of
HK$0.2 million for FY2023, primarily due to the increase in net foreign
exchange loss as compared to FY2023.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT
LOSS MODEL

Our impairment losses under expected credit loss model increased
by HK$2.5 million or 247.6% from HK$1.0 million for FY2023 to
HK$3.6 million for FY2024. Such impairment losses were mainly
attributable to an other receivable of a loan due from a third party
which defaulted on its repayment during the Year and the Group
considered the collection to be remote, resulting in the impairment
loss of HK$3.5 million in FY2024 (FY2023: HK$26,000).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses increased by HK$7.6 million or 28.8%
from HK$26.5 million for FY2023 to HK$34.1 million for FY2024.
primarily due to the increase in staff costs and legal and professional
fees.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES AND
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group incurred research and development expenses of
approximately HK$3.2 million to enhance the production capacity and
advancement of the wood pellet business in RPSL. The Group also
incurred repair and maintenance expenses of approximately HK$6.6
million for the biomass power plant in RPSL.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs decreased slightly by HK$0.6 million or 4.7% from
HK$12.7 million for FY2023 to HK$12.1 million for FY2024, primarily
due to the decrease in interest on loans from related parties and
there being no increase in discounted amounts of provision for major
overhauls during FY2024.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Our profit before tax increased by HK$0.5 million or 65.0% from
HK$0.7 million for FY2023 to HK$1.2 million for FY2024, primarily
due to the factors mentioned above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense increased by HK$1.7 million or 18.8% from
HK$8.8 million for FY2023 to HK$10.5 million for FY2024, mainly due
to increase in profit before tax for our subsidiaries in the PRC.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to owners of the Company increased slightly by
HK$0.4 million or 5.6% from HK$8.3 million for FY2023 to HK$8.7
million for FY2024, primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate to
investments in our projects, construction and upgrading of our
wastewater treatment facilities, purchases of equipment as well as
costs and expenses related to the operation and maintenance of our
wastewater treatment and electricity generating facilities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
was HK$35.1 million, representing an increase of HK$5.0 million or
16.7% as compared with that of HK$30.1 million as at 31 December
2023. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents of HK$18.9 million, HK$5.5 million, HK$1.9 million and
HK$8.8 million were denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”), Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”), IDR and United States Dollars (“US$”), respectively
(31 December 2023: HK$16.1 million, HK$6.5 million, HK$1.6 million
and HK$5.9 million were denominated in RMB, HK$, IDR and US$,
respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2024, the total amount of our utilised bank
borrowings was HK$75.4 million, of which HK$46.8 million was
repayable on demand and HK$28.6 million was repayable within one
year. HK$64.8 million and HK$10.6 million of the outstanding bank
borrowings were denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively (31
December 2023: HK$58.2 million were denominated in HK$). Out of
the HK$75.4 million outstanding bank borrowings, HK$18.0 million
bore a floating interest rate of 1.6% per annum over the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”), HK$18.0 million bore a floating
interest rate of 2% below Hong Kong Dollar prime rate, HK$28.8
million bore a floating interest rate of 0.8% per annum over the
HIBOR and HK$10.6 million bore a floating interest rate of 0.9% per
annum below China Loan Prime Rate (31 December 2023: HK$18.0
million bore a floating interest rate of 1.4% per annum over the
HIBOR, HK$20.0 million bore a fixed interest rate of 2% below Hong
Kong Dollar prime rate and HK$20.2 million bore a floating interest
rate of 0.8% per annum over the HIBOR). We had HK$15.3 million
unutilised banking facilities as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: HK$28.7 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had an outstanding
borrowing from independent third parties of the Group amounted to
HK$24.8 million (31 December 2023: HK$23.9 million), which bore
interest rates at 8% to 8.3% per annum, of which HK$9 million was
repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had outstanding amounts
due to related parties of the Group amounted to HK$101.9 million
(31 December 2023: HK$102.1 million), of which HK$51.3 million
bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum and HK$50.6 million
bore a fixed interest rate of 6% per annum. Out of the HK$101.9
million outstanding amounts due to related parties, HK$7.3 million
was repayable within one year and HK$94.6 million was repayable
within two to five years. To the best knowledge of the Directors
and management of the Group, all the interest rates of the above
borrowings were determined on arm’s length basis.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity
and then multiplied by 100%, and total debt includes the interest-
bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to related parties and
other borrowings. Our gearing ratio increased from 66.0% as at 31
December 2023 to 80.0% as at 31 December 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, cash deposits amounted to HK$30.8
million were pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank borrowings
granted to the Group (31 December 2023: HK$22.0 million).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time. Surplus cash will be invested
appropriately so that the Group’s cash requirements for its strategy
or direction from time to time can be met.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures for
construction for our Bangka Project and Rugao Hengfa expansion
and enhancement project. During the Year, our capital expenditures
amounted to HK$17.4 million (31 December 2023: HK$42.2 million),
which were funded by our financing activities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Member companies in the PRC and Indonesia within our Group
have limited foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are
denominated in the same currency as the functional currency of
the operations in which they relate. However, as these principal
subsidiaries mainly carry assets and liabilities in RMB and IDR, any
appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against RMB and IDR will affect
the Group’s consolidated financial position which is presented in
HK$, and will be reflected in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
Group minimises foreign exchange exposure by converting its
cash and cash equivalents in other currencies generated from the
operation of its foreign operating subsidiaries to HK$.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2023: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

ARBITRATION

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 February
2024, Everbest applied to the Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration (“SCIA”) to initiate arbitration (the “Arbitration”) against
CGN Environmental Protection Industry Co., Ltd, the purchaser, in
relation to a dispute arising from the sale and purchase agreement
regarding Everbest’s disposal of 70% of the equity interest in Haian
Hengfa in July 2022 (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”).

In the aforementioned Arbitration application, Everbest requested
for (i) payment of the third instalment of the consideration amounting
to RMB13,633,200 under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, (ii)
liquidated damages, exchange loss and legal fees of approximately
RMB2.2 million in total, and (i) all costs of the Arbitration.

On 5 February 2024, Everbest received a Notice of Arbitration
issued by the SCIA, and on 28 August 2024, Everbest received an
Arbitration Tribunal Formation and Hearing Notice. The first hearing
and second hearing were held on 26 September 2024 and 18
December 2024, respectively. The SCIA subsequently issued a notice
to Everbest on 5 March 2025, confirming that the arbitral award will
be handed down in August 2025.

As at the date of this report, the Arbitration is still in progress and
the Group is unable to predict the outcome of the Arbitration.
The Company will make further announcement(s) to update the
Shareholders on any material developments in relation to the
Arbitration proceedings as and when appropriate, in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 302 employees (31
December 2023: 176 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$16.3 million
for FY2024 (FY2023: HK$15.5 million). The remuneration policy for
our Directors, senior management members and general staff is
based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market
conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the profit performance of our Group and the individual
performance of our Directors, senior management members and
general staff. The Group encourages the self-development of its
employees and provides on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 September
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible directors and employees of the
Group. The Share Option Scheme expired on 4 September 2024. No
further share options were offered and no share options remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme following its expiration.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other
significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals of assets,
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no plan authorised by
the Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets
as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the section headed “ARBITRATION”, the Group
has not undertaken any material event subsequent to 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board for FY2024
(FY2023: Nil).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - tERERRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

ELL Environmental Holdings (“ELL Environmental” or the
“Company’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to
as the “Group”, “we”, “us” or “our”) is pleased to present its ninth
Environmental, SOC|aI, and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG
Report”) to showcase the Group’s sustainable development strategy,
approach, and accomplishments during the year.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope of this ESG Report
covers the Group’s major operations from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”) of:

° Operation services of the wastewater treatment facility, the
Rugao Hengfa Facility in Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”);

° Biofuel pellet production business of PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera
Lestari (“RPSL”) in Jambi, Indonesia; and

o Biomass power generation business of PT. Sentosa Jaya
Purnama (“SJP”) in Bangka, Indonesia.

REPORTING STANDARDS

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
latest disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HKEX”).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI HERERBE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES BERR

This ESG Report adheres to the following reporting principles outlined — ANESGIR &R IEE B A 5 FIESGIR S 15/ 1Y
in the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide: materiality, quantitative, balance QIR RA - BIEEE N - 21t - T4 -

and consistency:

Reporting Principles

HERA

— IR

Our Application
BRMHER

Materiality

B2t

Quantitative
=1t

Balance

T

Consistency

—EH

Through stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, we identify issues that
are material to our sustainable development, and prioritize the topics covered in this
ESG Report. Please refer to “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”
for further details of our stakeholder engagement approach and materiality assessment.
BREFOEBBURBEWTME - RMBPIEAIHFERREANRE - WHAESG
HERELBINBANZEE - F2E(HHE2E I RIBBEMN G - AETEERMN
BOEZ2EG T REEMNE -

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”), information and other data are presented in a
quantitative manner, where appropriate, throughout this ESG Report.

SEEEE R IRAZCA T N AESGHRE WEHABREMIESR - EAREMEE -

We illustrate both positive and negative aspects of our ESG performance including our
achievements, challenges, and opportunities for our principal business activities in this
ESG Report.

BN AESGHREMAMERIE - HENERKXKGENEAREEREN  BREHEBINX
R BBREE -

Unless otherwise specified, we adopt consistent reporting and calculation
methodologies for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time. Year-on-year
comparison for KPI is also disclosed in this ESG Report.

BRIEREHEA - RARN—BNERNMAETR - WEHIRE @ RELRBERER
BEALLE - RESGHRE IR T B BRESURRALLE -

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

DATA COLLECTION METHOD

The information presented in this ESG Report is sourced from
the Group’s official documents and statistical data. The Board of
Directors (the “Board”) approved this ESG Report in March 2025.

FEEDBACK

We believe every stakeholder’s opinion is valuable to pushing forward
the Group’s long-term development. Should you have any feedback
on the Group’s sustainable development or this ESG Report, please
do not hesitate to contact us at info@ellhk.com.

ABOUT ELL ENVIRONMENTAL

Founded in 2002, ELL Environmental is a one-stop environmental
solutions service provider. Currently, we offer a one-stop approach
to the provision of wastewater treatment services using the “Build
— Operate — Transfer” (or BOT) model. We have one wastewater
treatment facility in operation which is located in Jiangsu Province,
China, treating municipal and industrial wastewater. The Group
is also investing in a biofuel pellet production business in Jambi,
Indonesia and is developing a power supply business in Bunga Island,
Indonesia.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

The information of the wastewater treatment facility in Jiangsu
Province, China:

Daily wastewater

Wastewater treated

BHRUISE S E

RESGHREMHIMNERREA KBS
X REGET IR - AESGHREENR T _H
F-ARGESS((EEg)AB -

BRRER

BMAESEFHENELDEHERNFE
BETHEE 1 B TIHAEBNAHE
BRERIRAAESGREFEME R iER
545 iBinfo@ellnk.com B2 T {FIBA &2 o

A 7 5 TR IR R

BERRERMLN_-TZ_F @ B—FK W
RIEOR T RIRGRME - B AT JAIRA
(R — K% — g | (HWBOT) E AR H —
U HDSKER IR RS - BTN BT &4
B—BESKEERE - BEMHRETERS
K o HPIREENEH AR E EYIREL TR
RAEER  AREHEBMSERMHER
B o

FEER

BT BT S5/ EIERIE

COD removed

treatment capacity in 2024 in 2024
BRSKATRERE —E-_NFERENSKE TECNMFCBREFSERRE
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)

(3Z753K) (IZLFFK) (AMg)

40,000 14,410,153 4,465

The information of the biomass power plant in Bunga Island,
Indonesia:

Power generated in 2024
—ECMENREE

ERHEAMSERMEIEAR :

Power exported to the PLN in 2024
—ECMERERENATRLNER

(kWh) (kWh)
(TRE) (FE&K)
30,995,484 27,670,202
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT

The Group operates a wastewater treatment facility in Rugao County,
Jiangsu Province, China. It is responsible for treating both municipal
and industrial sewage. Equipped with Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor
(“MBBR”) treatment technology, it can treat a total of 40,000 tonnes
of wastewater daily. The diagrams below illustrate the main processes
involved in our wastewater treatment operations:
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Our wastewater treatment facility strictly adheres to local wastewater
treatment standards to ensure that the treated wastewater meets
the required quality standards. The treated wastewater undergoes a
series of procedures, including but not limited to:

1. Filtration

2. Sedimentation
3.  Adjustment

4. Acidification

5. Anaerobic

6.  Sterilization

Our wastewater treatment business is fully dedicated to minimizing
pollution in the surrounding water bodies by ensuring that the quality
of treated wastewater meets the standards set by the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard and the Class 1-A or Class
1-B Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Plants (GB18918-2002). We have obtained the necessary
Pollutant Emission Permits as required by the Measures for Pollutant
Discharge Permitting Administration (for Trial Implementation). To
ensure compliance and monitor the effectiveness of our wastewater
treatment processes, we conduct daily water quality monitoring. This
includes recording key parameters such as chemical oxygen demand
(“COD”), biological oxygen demand (“BOD”), pH value, suspended
solids (“8S”), ammonia (NH3), water content, organic materials, and
sludge pH value in monthly reports. Additionally, we carry out regular
inspections to verify the quality of treated wastewater before its
discharge.
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BIOFUEL PELLET PRODUCTION

RPSL, the Group’s subsidiary, is primarily engaged in the biofuel
pellet production business in Jambi, Indonesia. Our primary raw
material for production is wood pellets, which are derived from the
manufacturing of wood products. Our objective is to optimize the
utilization of wood pellets, thereby reducing waste and minimizing
environmental impact. We have constructed a production facility
dedicated to processing wood pellets as our main raw material. Since
mid-2021, we have commenced operations and sales of processed
wood pellets to power plants in Southeast Asia, our primary target
customers. Our aim is to contribute to the development of biomass
power generation and promote the use of biofuel pellets in the region.
To ensure the quality of our biomass power generation and biofuel
pellet production, we have implemented a comprehensive “Standard
Operating Procedure” (“SOP”). This SOP provides our employees
with standardized and stringent guidelines for daily operations,
ensuring consistent and high-quality results. By adhering to these
established procedures, we maintain a high level of operational
efficiency and product excellence.

BIOMASS POWER GENERATION

SJP is engaged in biomass power supply in Bangka, Indonesia (the
“Bangka Project”), supplying electricity to the national grid under
a 25-year fixed-price agreement with Perusahaan Listrik Negara
(“PLN”), Indonesia’s main electricity provider. The Bangka Project
commenced in early August 2024 and expected to bring a steady
and dependable source of revenue in the upcoming years. During
the reporting period, the biomass power plant was capable of
independently generating 30,995,484 kWh electricity and providing
27,670,202 kWh of electricity to the PLN.

OUR MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

As a prominent environmental solutions provider in the PRC and
Indonesia, we are dedicated to embedding sustainability into our
day-to-day practices, which complements our efforts to create
sustainable value to our stakeholders.

RIR - HEREREE
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE AND BOARD’S
OVERSIGHT

As the highest governance body of the Group, the Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting and
provides oversight of ESG issues with an emphasis on the Group’s
long-term development and positioning. Delegated by the Board,
our senior management oversees ESG management approach and
advises the Board on the ESG matters below on a regular basis,
including but not limited to:

° Development and review of our sustainability strategies,
priorities, goals and targets;

° Identification, evaluation, prioritization, review and management
of material ESG-related risks and opportunities (including but
not limited to climate-related risks and ESG risks along the
supply chain);

° ESG-related training on the latest ESG trends, updates and
risk management approach for enhancing the ESG risk
management mechanism;

° Review and formulation of the implementation of ESG-related
policies and practices to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations;

o Monitoring and reviewing our ESG performance and progress
against any targets and goals;

° Monitoring and enhancing the Group’s stakeholder engagement
channels to ensure effective communication with key

stakeholders; and

° Preparing an annual ESG report on its activities for Board’s
approval.
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RiIE - HERERRE

ESG-RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT BE mEREIRBEER

The Group has established risk management and internal control £ & i 7E &k & 38 K A - 351
mechanisms to identify, evaluate, manage, and monitor risks, & - %ﬁj’rﬁb%ﬂ C BFEEAIRIE - 4t
including material ESG risks. Our senior management submits an & & & a[AR o mi& EEETrTHRNESSR
ESG-related risk assessment report to the Board periodically and the  ZXIB1E - & RE AR S B8 E R (E
Board retains ultimate responsibility for oversight of the Group’s risk % @ FEEE 28 FEERMREIETEHNE
management activities. The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness &R EFF - EE @ T BT (LIS B EN G N
of the control measures and provides relevant suggestions for 4 + IiEEHE AR E o

improvement when necessary.

By referring to the latest market and industry trends, we identified relevant ESG-related risks in the industry and
. ldentification ESG trends, including climate-related risks and ESG risks along the supply chain.

sk Bl BESHTIERITEBS  BRTERBHTENRS AEREABEFEPAR - SFEERFEEBNE
PR ERIRE g REARR

. Evaluation The potential impacts and likelihood of the identified key ESG-related risks were evaluated.
FHE FHEEARE - HEREARBRNEET LML -

. Prioritization Key ESG risks were prioritized by considering their risk level scores in terms of potential impact and likelihood.

BERHERF ZREARE - e RERRBRHEBEEZENAREN - RRNERND - WHZERBETELST -

To manage the identified ESG risks and minimize their impact on our business, we established corresponding
aee - risk mitigation measures and internal controls, tasking the relevant business departments with the
. Mitigation . .
L= implementation of such measures.
REBEBFNERE  HERERRRYKENEBNZERERE - BIVEL T HENRERE A
BRI - WRIRAAREE AP B e S -

The results of the ESG risk assessment, along with any other relevant issues, were reported to the Board by

. Reportin ; ) . .
@gﬁ 9 senior management for discussion and review.

SREEENESSERRR e RERARREARREMBERE - WETHRIEE -

For more detailed information on the Group’s corporate governance HBHEEZEECEEARRAREE I © 5
measures, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the &EREEFRANNDEES iﬁi °
Annual Report.
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ELL Environmental is committed to conducting sustainable
operations. To fulfil this commitment, we have established the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Policy and other relevant
policies and measures, to guide every department and employee
in integrating sustainable principles into their daily activities. Our
dedication in promoting environmental and social responsibility is
demonstrated through our proactive approach and sustainability
goals stipulated in the four pillars: (i) “Corporate Governance”,
(i) “Creating Green Fortune”, (iii) “Caring Our People” and (iv)
“Contributing to the Community”. We continuously monitor and
oversee progress towards our corporate goals and targets, address
climate change, and improve our performance on key ESG matters.

7  Corporate Governance

saay.  TXER

B - RERERSENERE

BRRRBARAFELE - Bt - HFIH
FERE - e ME AR AR EMREBER
A - HESEMAMNE THAHEER
FAIMARTEEE - RAEERRNLE
BEMTEIRTTE) AT B8 IR A 10 K B o # AT 45
BERBR (O EXER] () AESEH
=21 () EAEETIMMIEREE] o i
SEEENEBCENHERRBE NS
- HIREREL - WIRSRMEBRERSE -
HEMEREEMER

To maintain a high standard of business ethics and integrity for shareholder’s interest.

HREENERENHEEERDE M=
Goal: B :

Upholding sound corporate governance to provide effective management and sound control of the

Company.
BRRIFNTEES - BARIREEREEMEZES

Creating Green Fortune

RERE/ME

@

To deliver high quality environmental protection solutions for a climate resilient future.

RHSEZARBERESR -
Goal: & :

HEFARIREERRK

Strengthening climate resilience in our operations and solutions towards a greener future.

R EEMBR RORIREM - BRAEKRK

* Please refer to the section headed “Creating Green Fortune” for our green targets.

BEMANGEER B2 EESeY s IEH -
a Caring Our People
ia mEeET ¥

To curate a people-oriented workplace for employees.
REITEY —ERABERRS
Goal: B4 :

Creating a harmonious and safe workplace and respectful, supportive and caring work atmosphere.
BIUYNMBRZENIERE  UKEE XHENMBEEETHIEL

s Contributing to the Community
HEE &t

To be a positive force to the community.
RtREREEZE

Goal: B4 :

‘ﬁm

Empowering the community through sustainable change and impactful initiatives.

AR EHE R R B A B s R TR B AL 12
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Environmental,

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group prioritizes effective communication with stakeholders
and actively integrates valuable input and recommendations into our
ongoing improvement efforts. Our key stakeholder groups include
contractors, shareholders, investors, government authorities, non-
governmental organizations (“NGO”), environmental protection
departments (“EPD”), suppliers, business partners, and the
local community. We engage in formal and informal two-way
communication channels to gather feedback from these stakeholders
on our operations and sustainable development performance.

Social and Governance Report
R HERERRE

EAVE-§- 2

AEBEREFNHENBREE  BHHE
ZMERMEEMATERNZ N o B
MEBRNDEARNBEARRE  BHRERMKRE
EF BRER  FBFAEM(NGO]) R
REFI(TEPD]) ~ HIER - BEB AT
HE o HfFEBERMEXMIEENNBRER
B WEEUEFDEHRMASENAHER
RERBRWER -

EMPLOYEES CONTRACTORS SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
&8 AEE RERMIRE
° Staff Mailbox ° Interview o General Meeting
B T4 BB REXE
° Meeting ° Meeting ° Telephone Interview
@ik i Bima
. Training o Company Website
ikl 2RIk
. Interview ° Press Conference
ik mERhg
° Intranet ° Announcement
B A nE
. Financial Report
BisEmE
GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES NGO/EPD SUPPLIERS
BRER BTSRRI 3]
. Site Visit *  Site Visit ® Site Visit
B ER B ER B E 5
L Interview * |Interview * Interview
BIEA ik BB/
BUSINESS PARTNERS COMMUNITY
BB HE
° Site Visit ° Social Media (e.g., public account on
EiER WeChat/WhatsApp)
*  Cooperation Meeting AR EE (Plan{E B A B8RP, WhatsApp)
S1Eex ° Company Website
NSIEERI
o Interview
o Seminar
Hae

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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BIR - dEREREE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In addition to the aforementioned regular stakeholder
communications, we also enlist the services of an independent
sustainability consultant to conduct an annual materiality assessment.
This assessment involves gathering stakeholders’ perspectives
through an online survey to determine the significance of various
sustainability issues. We believe that the outcomes of this assessment
can assist us in identifying environmental, social, and governance
related matters that are significant to the Group. This, in turn, enables
us to enhance our sustainability approach and strategies more
efficiently. The materiality assessment process encompasses the
following steps:

1. ldentify 28 ESG issues that are of concern to the Group based
on recent and available stakeholder communication findings,
listing requirements and latest sustainability trend in the industry.

2. Invite stakeholders from various sectors to fill in an online survey

by rating the materiality of the issues to the Group.

3.  Carry out materiality analysis based on the collected data and
combine with the assessment of the management.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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The materiality matrix below outlines the results of the materiality
assessment. The top 17 issues placed on the top right-hand corner
of the matrix are the most significant issues identified and will be
highlighted in this ESG Report.

AT &S HmEBRRNERMEFEER - R0
A EANI7TRBEAREANHERE @

AANESGIREERHE -

Materiality Matrix 2 214 %5 [

A /
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Operation

RBFEME

Quality of services

ARTSE =

Services safety and health
RS %2 2 AR

Customer communication and
satisfaction
BEFABEREE
Complaint handling

AR

Customer data protection and
privacy

RIEE P SRR
Advertising and labelling
management

EEMFEERE

Governance

N1

7.

8.

10.

11.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

=i

Anti-fraud and corruption

[ SEBR IR R
Anti-corruption training
REFE

Environmental and social
performance of suppliers
HEFMRREIHERE
Supplier selection process and
tendering management
HERTERENTERER
Natural disaster/emergency
response and management
BAKE BB EMNERE

Employment

BEET

12. Diversification and equal
opportunities
SR SRS

13. Recruiting and maintaining
talents
BEMBEAT

14. Training and development
R

15. Labour practices
BEER

16. Occupational health and safety
BERERERTE

Community
Bl

26.

27.

28.

Participation in volunteer
activities

S LTS
Charitable donations
BEBRW

Fundraising work
ERTIE

2024 Annual Report

Environment
RERE

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

23.

24.

25.

Air emissions management
REEHIE R

Energy consumption
BEIRIHAE

Climate change

Discharge quality management
HMERERE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
= RS HER

Hazardous and non-hazardous
waste management
BENEEERYER
Noise management

IREE

Resource utilization and
mitigation measures

BB ARE RS e

Green procurement

AR B ERAE




Most significant issues and relevant section in this ESG Report are

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBERERRE

shown below:

1

BEARAEENMNAESGRERBENEHN TR

ESG Topics Section in this ESG Report Page Number
RIE - HERERER RESGHREMNEH BHE
1. Quiallity of services Wastewater Treatment P.19
AR7E = 7K R IR
2. Services safety and health Biofuel Pellet Production P. 21
RIS 22 2 AR YRR RE R A
3. Customer communication and satisfaction Product Responsibility P. 38
BERBEmEE EmBaE
5. Customer data protection and privacy Privacy Protection P. 38
TRIE % P EUR AL BALRE
9. Environmental and social performance of suppliers Managing Suppliers P. 37
HERRRERT R EIRHER
10.  Supplier selection process and Managing Suppliers p. 37
tendering management
HERRERENEREE EIRHER
11.  Natural disaster/emergency response and Air, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and P. 30
management Use of Energy
BAKE " B2EIEMER FER - RZERBEHENEERERE
13.  Recruiting and maintaining talents Caring our People p. 38
BENBE AT AEET
14.  Training and development Employee Development P. 43
=5 A2 R BIT%E
16.  Occupational health and safety Employees’ Wellbeing p. 42
BERRELTE BIRRE
17.  Air emissions management Air, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and P. 30
Use of Energy
RESHEE IR FER, - mZERIEPRANEERIER
18.  Energy consumption Air, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and P. 30
Use of Energy
BEIREFE FER - RERIBEHEANRERIERE
22.  Hazardous and non-hazardous waste management  Waste Emissions P. 32
BENMEZEZYER BEMIHEIR
23.  Noise management Noise emissions p. 33
REEIE L =ge 3
24.  Resource utilization and mitigation measures Managing Impact on Environment p. 33
and Natural Resources
BRN N4 AR IS b ERHIRENERAERNTE
26.  Participation in volunteer activities Contributing to Community P. 46
2H LRSS =B R
28.  Fundraising work Contributing to Community P. 46
ENTIE = ER
BRRRERBRLAR —ZE-FEFR
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CREATING GREEN FORTUNE

The Group acknowledges its inherent responsibility to create a
positive environmental impact. Consequently, we have implemented
comprehensive policies and measures in our day-to-day operations.
Simultaneously, we strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions where we operate, governing our environmental
performance, as well as aspects related to health and safety,
advertising, labeling, and privacy within our environmental solutions
business. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance concerning relevant laws and
regulations.

AIR, GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND USE OF
ENERGY

The Group’s air emissions, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and
energy consumption mainly stem from purchased electricity, fuel
usage in company vehicles, machinery, and other equipment, as well
as the generation of air pollutants and odors during operations. As
an environmental solutions service provider, we recognize our duty
to mitigate air and GHG emissions and optimize energy utilization in
order to address global warming and climate change. We undertake
various measures to achieve this goal, including:

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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Managing air emissions

BIERER N

Minimizing odor

A FIR

Optimizing use of energy

BLREIRIBRE

BIE s tERERERE

Build atmospheric environmental protection zone
surrounding exterior to our wastewater treatment facility
to minimize the negative impact of air pollutants imposed
to the surrounding environment

KRR BEEERARRRRER - RERDZE
RSARMEEAEZERNEEZE

Conduct regular testing on air pollutants to ensure the
emissions meet industrial and local standards

EITEBRA  BARBRIERNATRRAWIZE

Build deodorization facilities in the wastewater treatment
facilities to absorb odor

KGR R R R R R FE

Adopt biological deodorization technology in Rugao
Hengfa Facilities

TEINR 15 2% SR i R A AE YRR R iT

Plant trees around the facilities to absorb odor

& A EREEA - LARRR

Collect and transport waste properly to reduce odor

HERTFMERREY - ARDERK

Turn off the engines of idled vehicles

AR EREMSIE

Require employees to turn off electrical appliances when
leaving

ERBE T REF B A ERE

Turn down the air flowrate of blowers according to

the quality and level of dissolved oxygen of incoming
wastewater in the wastewater treatment facilities to
reduce use of energy
RIBARSIOKEMZRERFESXEREE - FIK6E
TRARE

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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WASTE EMISSIONS

We acknowledge that our business operations generate both non-
hazardous and hazardous waste, such as sludge, waste oil, used
batteries, general refuse, chemicals, jerry cans, and oil filters. We
recognize that these waste emissions can have an adverse impact
on the environment. Therefore, we are dedicated to managing them
in a rigorous and responsible manner by advocating waste reduction
at the source and ensuring proper handling of waste emissions. To
achieve this, we have implemented a waste management system
that provides guidance to employees on separating different types
of waste, including non-recyclable waste, recyclable waste, and
hazardous waste. Our wastewater plants are equipped with storage
facilities for hazardous waste, ensuring its temporary storage in a
suitable manner, while chemicals are stored securely to prevent spills.
We have engaged sanitation service providers to collect general
refuse and screener residue, as well as third-party providers with the
necessary qualifications to collect and handle dewatered sewage
sludge generated from wastewater facilities.

Furthermore, we actively promote the concept of a “green office” to
minimize the use of office paper and reduce waste at its source. We
encourage our employees to embrace electronic communication,
adopt double-sided printing practices, and reuse single-sided paper
whenever possible.

WASTEWATER EMISSIONS AND USE OF WATER

ELL Environmental acknowledges the significance of water
conservation and responsible management of water resources.
The Group utilizes both municipal and underground water for its
daily operations and has not encountered any issues regarding
water sourcing. In order to preserve water resources, the Group
actively promotes the reuse of treated wastewater, such as
for equipment cleaning purposes. Wastewater is generated
during our operations, and to address this, we have established
wastewater treatment facilities to treat industrial wastewater before
it is discharged. Additionally, we have constructed a wastewater
treatment facility at RPSL to treat industrial wastewater and septic
tanks to treat municipal wastewater prior to discharge. We conduct
regular inspections of water quality, ensuring compliance with the
requirements outlined in Government Regulation No. 82/2001 on the
Management of Water Quality. The inspection criteria encompass
parameters such as total suspended solids, pH levels, metals, and
phosphate content.
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NOISE EMISSIONS

The Group recognizes that its daily operations, particularly at its
plants, have the potential to generate noise that may negatively
impact the surrounding environment. To mitigate these effects, we
have implemented the following measures:

° Purchase low-noise equipment if possible

o Install vibration absorber and damping base to reduce noise
generated from equipment

° Install rubber damper on windows and doors to absorb noise
o Plant trees or bamboos surrounding the plants to absorb noise

° Conduct regular inspection to ensure equipment are in good
condition without noise from friction or loose parts

MANAGING IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to identifying and mitigating the environmental
impact of its operations to reduce its carbon footprint and promote
positive environmental outcomes. Specifically, for RPSL in Indonesia,
an environmental impact assessment has been conducted to
evaluate the potential environmental effects of constructing its biofuel
pellet production plant. The assessment report identified emissions,
including waste, air emissions, and wastewater, and recommended
measures to manage and reduce these emissions, thereby minimizing
the environmental impact. ELL Environmental remains committed to
promoting sustainable practices and minimizing its operational impact
on the environment.
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CLIMATE CHANGE AND RESILIENCE

Recognizing the escalating issue of climate change, we are dedicated
to assuming our responsibility in addressing this global challenge.
The Group has incorporated assessments and strategies to address
physical, chronic, and transitional risks associated with climate
change. In doing so, we have utilized the framework provided by the
Financial Stability Board’s Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) to identify climate-related risks and opportunities.
Corresponding risk mitigation measures have been formulated to
address the risks accordingly. We would evaluate the effectiveness
of existing mitigation measures and explore possible areas of

WmiESL RN
ERREECHEVBERE  RMARDB
BRERUREZECEENELE - AKECDH

[\ BF 44 AN BB e A T B SRR B E EL B A
FANSEERE  BEERMERIERR - &
PI2ReMRERZ B @NRREBHIHES
BT T (FA(TCFD)MAEZR B IZ RIR (L 1ERE
R\ b 38 - 30 E AR RE R R RU AR FE hE A R
Y o AT HAIRITRAE IS IR A RIE -
i]IE/fEHH??:J:EKJEH% - AR X R RIRE]

improvement on a regular basis, further strengthening our business
resilience towards climate change.

Climate-related risks Our Responses

RMHy D e

RARAEBA R

Physical Risks

ERER
Acute physical risk ° Regularly inspect and maintain facilities to ensure
SMHEEER normal operation and resistance to severe weather

EHREMGEERE  BRELEETMRERS
AR,

The frequency and severity of extreme weather events,
such as super typhoons or heavy rains and floods have
increased, leading to damage to the Group’s facilities

and manufacturing equipment °
mim R REM - AR R E S F K FE A AR
MEBREWINE - GEEE RN EERBRER

Providing flexible work arrangements with
precautionary measures in place to ensure the
safety of our employees

BN T B IREED fE ik - LAIRE T

Disruption in Supply Chain NZE
it pE s b
Due to supply chain disruption caused by extreme e  Adopt a diversified supplier selection strategy and

weather events, suppliers are unable to provide
products and services to the Group on time, leading to
an increase in supplier production costs

Efdum AR E B R - HEREARRR
SERHMERNMRE - SHHEREEK AL N

select other suppliers when there is a supply chain
interruption, and reserve raw materials in advance
EMZ b e BER S - AR EETEREEE
Hbftrer - BRRAIEERME

Transition Risks

More ambitious climate policies and regulations to o
support national decarbonization efforts, resulting in an
increase in our cost of operation

B ERERRIRBOR AVER A S FF BRI ZURBR TS - FH
I & B AR AN

Regularly monitoring the latest government policies,
regulatory updates, and market trends
EHEESMNBABER - BB EMNmSBE

Increased public attention on environmental protection °
and climate issues has increased market demand

for the use of low-carbon equipment and measures,

leading to an increase in raw material prices
ABPERBRENRIEEENEIIRES - STHHE
ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ?&ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁ?*ﬁ% © ATBE S| BURMEHES

i
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Adopt measures to save energy and reduce
consumption to reduce the carbon footprint of our

business
BRERETREPEFEIEIE » BUKZETS AR 2 U
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RiR - HEBRERKRE

We recognize the significance of addressing the opportunities and B M3 55 5 & & | = &
risks associated with climate change and have formulated the 14 - W #|FEE « HEREAWE - EFF
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) Management Policy, ZRIEELERS - R B EIRARBEE(LE
which incorporates a climate change strategy. The policy strives to B FRIE - AF L ETR AREIME - &S
enhance our climate risk management and performance. To make  #IE LA N4 B IZ -

our operations more resilient towards climate change, we have
established the following green targets:

Our Green Targets

#ERE

22 e Toreduce our Scope 1 and 2

.II ) greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

Emissions intensity by improving energy efficiency

Bk and incorporating energy-saving
measures
FBIR = AR R MR ET B HE B
BWAOEEN 2R EREHREE

@ ° To minimize our waste generation

(] intensity, avoiding unnecessary

Waste consumption

BEZEW BRERSVBEREMELTE  BRETUE
Eobisrsa

:@'- e To reduce our energy consumption

i 3 . intensity by implementing energy

Energy conservation measures

BEIR FRE AR R ERTE

'ﬂ e  Toimprove water consumption intensity

= by implementing water conservation
Water measures
FAK FREEEIKIEHE - HDRACHRERE

BERRREREBRLF

Progress

EE

24

©

In Progress

#iTH

@xs

In Progress

#EITH

@fi

In Progress
#EITH

@fi

In Progress

HEITH

fERRB R BHNER

—E-NEEH
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BIR - dEREREE

ENVIRONMENTAL KPIS RISRMBENIEE
ENVIRONMENTAL KPIS!23 2024 20234 Unit
BRHRENEE 2 —ECME ZEo=F Efy
Air Emissions BERER
Nitrogen Oxides (NO) AA{HINO) 4,872.09 1,387.86 kg AfT
Sulphur Oxides (SOy) FRat(so,) 3.37 1.03 kg BfT
Particulate Matters (PM) BFER(PM) 313.51 88.58 kg AT
GHG Emissions BERBHER
Total s 10,051.89 10520.74  1C0,-eq RME_&{LHKEE
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) ERm(EE-) 602.06 14336 1CO,-eq AME—SE(LIKEE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) AR (EE =) 9,449.83 10,337.38 tCO,-eq AE_AILIKEE
GHG Removal (Scope 1) BERER (BE—) 0.00 083 100, eq R A(LHKEE
Intensity (Scope 1 & Scope 2) E(GE-LEHE ) 96.67 104.98 kg of CO,e/m?
AT ZEliRER/THK
Hazardous Wastes Generated BEEEY
Total rs 417 5.69  tonnes Al
Intensity BE 0.04 006 kg/m? A/ FAXK
Non-hazardous Wastes Generated BEREY
Total BE 13,472.80 13,014.50  tonnes A3
General Refuse —AREEY) 2,754.53 6.10  tonnes I
Sludge Ak 10,718.27 13,008.40  tonnesAME
Intensity BE 129.57 12990  kg/m? AT/ FHHK
Energy Consumption BRER
Total HE 12,474.14 11,855.73  MWh TET R
Purchased Electricity INEEN 10,435.38 11,304.62  MWh FETEE
Diesel Oil S 1,970.68 531.99 Mwh FETRE
Unleaded Petrol E3 i pape 68.07 1912 MWh TETEH
Intensity nE 119.97 118.33  kWh/m? THE /FHK
Water Consumption Ak
Total %E 613,674.00 161,356.30 me Ik
Intensity mE 5.90 161 mym2 MK/ ERK
1. Unless otherwise stated, the calculation methodology referred to “How 1. MIERHEHE  SFtEFEREFEAT B
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on BRI R EIRE « e REARE — KR
Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX and “EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant Emission Z REBRRBRESUSEREER)MBUNRIE
Inventory Guidebook” issued by European Environment Agency. B I EMEP/EEAZ &5 M HE U S B 45
B -
2. The emission factor for Scope 2 emissions from RPSL and SJP adopted 2.  RPSLFISIPHIEE N ZEIRA T EHE S
from the latest sustainability reports of the local power companies. NENREHASEERRE -
3. Due to business nature, the Group is not involved in the use of packaging 3. HAREBRMEE  AEETY RERK e EME

material for finished products.

4. The year 2023 data has been restated for enhancing comparative purpose 4.
and more advanced and updated scientific calculation models and

A

HRAEBE LR B R ER T EERME AR
BRI HEAETE - U023 FEIRERE
5l -

methodologies have been adopted.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGING SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2024, we have a total of 799 suppliers. We
mainly worked with local suppliers to minimize the greenhouse
gas emissions generated from transportation. Below shows the
distribution of the suppliers by geographical locations:

RIR - HEREREE

THMER

H1F2024F12 A31H » AEBEHE799R H
EEAE - RMEZEABEEESE - U
WO EBHELNBERER - LT A
JERE IR D

HIER R

Distribution of suppliers by locations

8
0 &
2
3
785
B Hong Kong m The PRC Indonesia Singapore Malaysia Vietnam
B I ENfe EAImIIES BRATE

We prioritize managing the environmental and social impacts of
our suppliers. Our Code of Conduct requires suppliers to uphold
environmental, social, and governance principles, and we conduct
regular assessments to ensure compliance. Non-compliant suppliers
may face termination or corrective measures.

Furthermore, we emphasize the quality of our suppliers’ products
and services, as they directly affect the quality of our operations. We
conduct thorough assessments of potential new suppliers, evaluating
their qualifications, product/service quality, pricing, and reputation
to ensure they meet our standards. Likewise, existing suppliers
undergo regular assessments to ensure they continue to meet our
expectations. Our commitment is to maintain high standards of
product and service quality throughout our supply chain, providing
exceptional value to our customers.

BAEREEREENRREREETE - I
PIEHEITRSTRI - ZREEE R HER M
RIEFRRTRE - L@ MERRA - WETT
EHRHE - BRAR - WERBEMN AR
B B ER LA ERE - RERHE
PEREREE DA it ©

SO - RAITDBEREEHEERTZENH
FEREmMMRBEER - RIEREHHER
EITRENEG  FEEEE  EmMRBE
= EREMNBES BROMATEGEEZR
Ko Rtk RPEHREHERETEN
A BREETERMNIE - HABH
RtEEEFSmENERMRBEER - K
HREPmEER -

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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RIE - tERERRS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
PRIVACY PROTECTION

As part of our business operations, we deal with confidential
information such as customer data, business information, and
financial information of the Group. To safeguard the privacy of this
information and address customer concerns, we have implemented
stringent measures. These measures include enforcing our personnel
management policy and employee handbook, which prohibit the
unauthorized disclosure of private information to third parties without
prior consent. We also utilize password protection for computers
housing confidential data and store physical copies of sensitive
materials in a secure location equipped with electronic locks and 24-
hour surveillance cameras.

ADVERTISING

The Group complies with applicable laws and regulations when
developing promotional materials. We conduct comprehensive
reviews of these materials prior to publication to ensure that they do
not contain any misleading information that could potentially harm
consumer rights. As our business does not heavily rely on product
labelling, this is not a prominent concern for the Group.

CARING OUR PEOPLE

ELL Environmental places great importance on the contributions
made by each employee towards the sustainable development of
the company. We are committed to creating a healthy and safe
workplace that fosters a supportive atmosphere for all employees. We
are in stringent compliance with labour related laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, ELL Environmental was not aware of
any significant violations of relevant laws and regulations in terms of
compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits, and
welfare.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

EmRE
PR EL R

EREBN—E8D  RfIEREREER
BREFPEMN  SENEBEMMUMBE
ko RREERLE - BREPZL - HM
EEMEREN  BEERETETANE
REBRIEREIFM - EREREANE
RELEMEE=TKE - HATSNHT
BEEHNERREDR - URHNEERE
R ST S B F SN 24/ N ER 1R
ESTEEL Db P

RE

AEBERNETERERLRDIGIES EH
B WAERME LM B ET R
il BRRBEREMNER - ARIBER
BEHED  AREMFRLIFREXRHNE
25 AUERYIFEESRER -

MERTL

BERRRIFEEREGMUE TR/ RFIAFFEE
ROER - ZMIBHREE—ERR2E - 22
MRS - BB TRHXE - HPIEKRE
STRBARER - MEHHEA - BIFRRE
WAKBEZ - g - B B7 - I
B2 RERME - FERE - 20 - RIX
BREMENET EFEEAEREREAE
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EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW

Environmental,

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 221 employees®,

Social and Governance Report

R HERERHRE

R2024%12A31H » EEHB21KE TS

with 2 in Hong Kong, 31 in the PRC and 188 in Indonesia. H2REEBS  S1RMUAFER - 1882 MR
EIJE
By Gender By Employment Type
5 EIEES
2024 2023
m Male
— 199 116
Eal
Female 00 17
pegi
2024 2023
By Age m Senior
A management 4 3
F SRERE
I Middle
- [ management
21 18
2024 2023 h e
= 30 or below B Technical staff
ey T 111 58 o
30FEA T eI 103 74
31-40 General staff
31-403% e 40 —@ET 47 38
m 4 -50& 00 19 Contract/
41-505% short term¢ 6 )
51 or above 20 10 At/
S1pRE AL
5 The number of employees includes only those within the specified reporting 5 BT EERETETREHEENMET -

scope.

6 The number of contract/short term employees has not been statistically

disclosed in 2023.

6 2023 FHAH R ETITMHRERS
E’go

AT

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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RIE - HERERBE

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate” by gender, fEFREHAR - 1R - EE4ARIFH = 25

age group and geographical region is as below: BB TREARGT -
By Age
Fhe . .
By Geographical Region
l Hh &R
o= _ —
By Gender 2024 2023
R m 30 or below I
somakbAF 2% 100% - -
2024 2023
31-40
l . 314085 1% 7% = %ﬂ% Kong® oo /
2024 2023 e
= Male m 41-50 PRC
s 2% 16% PR A t 0% 5%
Female 51 or above M Indonesia
. 5% 17%
=g 19% 6% 1A b ’ ’ il 28% 19%
EQUALITY AND WORK-LIFE BALANCE FER TEBEE EFE

ELL Environmental is fully committed to fostering a harmonious  S&ZRIRIRE IR IR E AV 4 Eh AR IR BRI
workplace and upholding labor rights in accordance with applicable DY BETEN TIESRT  HEA TR
labor laws, regulations, and standards. We adhere to the principles of ~ # © H{MEANEREHEH - BIFHE - &
diversity, equality, and non-discrimination in all aspects of our human B « ZHFIEFEEE Z (b - FEMIEE
resources practices, including recruitment, remuneration, promotion,  (R&YRE] - BB T - T EERI « FE5
and training. Every employee is treated fairly and equally, irrespective  f&j& + 2 ~ 1BIRRKR « BEE ok |4 BN [A) ED AL
of their gender, age, race, religion, marital status, nationality, or sexual = FI|/A A FE g4 o

orientation.

7 Employee turnover rate is calculated by number of employee turnover ina 7 ETRAXEMNFEFEEX—ERME TRK

category divided by total number of employee in that category. AEBRAZERRINAE T AR -
8 No information of the turnover rate of employee in Hong Kong has been 8 2023 FHEBE TN RARENLEHRAE
statistically disclosed in 2023. = -

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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R HEBERERRE

We provide competitive remuneration and comprehensive benefits  F I8 TR EF S IREFHESR] - AR
to our employees as a token of recognition for their valuable 5 FINESEE - FENSIEERHH - F
contributions. The remuneration package encompasses a basic BiN#E & - MO FMEE S FHETE
salary, allowances, and bonuses. Our remuneration system & @ IEBREHSEKERFT BRI REFF
undergoes regular reviews to ensure alignment with market levels and 77 © th4) » Bt BITER - RIEMREED
remain competitive. Moreover, we fulfill our obligations by contributing  #RTE @ #AIZEE TEF > Ml EAH e
to various employee benefits, such as social insurance and housing REMEERES @+ WREEAERAKS - 2
provident fund in the PRC, as well as pension, health insurance, FERE - TEMEBRBRMFERESS -
work-related insurance, and termination compensation in Indonesia,

as mandated by the respective laws and regulations in each country.

Employee Benefits

BIEA

° Public holidays

o DHERH

o Statutory holidays
o JEERE

° Sick leave

e AR

° Marriage leave

o B[R

° Maternity leave

e ER

° Compassionate leave
o RUMMR

° Annual leave

s FR

° Health insurance

s  EERR

° Company trip

o AFKS

° Festive gifts

e EiRRMm

° Heatstroke prevention supplies
o EURAEAL

° Health check

o REEERR

° Medical allowance

o EEOER

° Overtime allowance

o EBRFMHAL

° Discretionary bonus

o EIBTEAL

o Mourning allowance

o HEE

° Religious holiday allowance
o REENERRE

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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RIE - tERERRS

EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING

We acknowledge our responsibility to prioritize the well-being of
our employees. The Group strictly adheres to applicable laws and
regulations to ensure the health and safety of our employees. We
have implemented robust occupational health and safety measures
to safeguard our employees, which include:

° Providing Personal Protective Equipment to applicable
employees including gloves, work clothes, masks, ear plug, ear
muff, safety helmet and welding glasses

° Conducting inspections on a regular basis on fire-fighting
equipment, facilities and electrical appliances

° Conducting fire and emergency drills regularly as well as
arranging safety trainings to ensure employees are equipped

with relevant knowledge and skills

o Arranging designated personnel to oversee the safety of the
work area

° Organizing sport and leisure activities
During the past three years including the Reporting Period, the Group

was not aware of any work-related fatalities. There were not any
work-related injuries or lost workdays during the Reporting Period.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We acknowledge the significance of providing employees with
training and promotion opportunities to support their professional
growth in line with the development of the Group. We are committed
to establishing and maintaining a comprehensive career development
ladder that ensures equal promotion opportunities based on
performance appraisal outcomes. Regular performance appraisals
are conducted to assess employees’ work performance, abilities, and
skills.

In terms of training, we formulate a training plan each year with a
diverse range of training programs catered to employees’ necessary
job skills and personal development goals. In the Reporting Period,
we provided around 721 hours of training.

RIR - HEREREE

RI%RE

BPIRAM R E TR E RS IASH
PN ERRREREERRFRT —BNER
o BB BN EEE A BERRE
B ERRBESGHAEREHRTFENET
e o B EHETER G FFHET
M TERIR - BENANBRE

EFFITE - RPIBFHIEZIETE - Y
BTHR®TIEREMEAZRRERE  ZHES
THERIBINRER - MEHA - BAHRHT721
EpEllisE g

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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RIZ - HERERRSE

Training ratio by

Training ratio by gender employment type
RIERIE D AP REREREID XA

2024 2023 2024 2023
B Seni t
- 'gﬁﬁ'ie 64% 49% BRERE 25% 33%
= Middl t
Fomde . e o 3 aa
2zt ? ’ ® Technical staff o o
HHAL 9% 46%
" Geperal salt 43% 82%
Average training hours Average training hours
completed per completed per employee
employee by gender by employment type
ZHEREID N EIEE ZEBBRIEIDNEBAES
TTAK A5 5 51 R 2K TERCHY T3R8
2024 2023 004 003
= Male
= 2.76 4.78 mManagement
.;jli | 8 3.73 0.29
emale
| 9.66 2.53 w Technical staff
pogid BB T 2.47 70.97
= General staff
—fRET 6.17 64.53
9 No information of the percentage of contract/short term employee trained (%) 9 2023F AR/ HHEIZIED L) HE

has been statistically disclosed in 2023.
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LABOR STANDARDS

We are committed to being a responsible and desirable employer,
strictly adhering to applicable labor standards in all jurisdictions where
we operate, and prohibiting the recruitment of child and forced labor.
Throughout the recruitment process, we verify the personal identity
documents of candidates to ensure they meet the legal working
age, thus preventing the occurrence of child labor. Clear policies on
rest periods, leave, overtime work, working hours, dismissal, and
related arrangements are in place to prevent forced labor. In cases
of staff resignation or dismissal, appropriate compensation is offered
in accordance with relevant labor laws and regulations. Instances of
illegal or forced labor are thoroughly investigated and addressed in
compliance with local laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any instances of
child or forced labor within the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is dedicated to fostering a fair and transparent business
environment and promoting ethical behavior in all our operations.
We strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations, prohibiting
corruption, bribery, fraud, money laundering, and other unethical and
unlawful behaviors within the Group. To uphold these principles, we
have implemented an Anti-corruption Policy and Code of Conduct
that requires employees to uphold business ethics and integrity at all
times.

To encourage a culture of transparency and accountability, we have
also established a Whistleblowing Policy that allows employees and
third parties to report any suspicious cases or misconduct while
ensuring their identities remain confidential. We promptly investigate
such reports and take appropriate actions to protect the rights of the
Group and our stakeholders. We will also arrange trainings from time
to time to raise employees’ awareness of relevant issues.

B HEREAEE

S IT#RA

BABAOKABETNEENES  BKE
TREMERAEERBEANS TZE 2
IHREETMBHIST - EHREBEF - I
MeHEEENEAGSETZE @ BIR
HEAZEATIEFER  HBET - HIKE
BERE - RMR - ONIE - TIERSER - FRE R ABRE
ZHE - M EAFIPENBR - B LR S5
B o BT HBSERER  RMAKBEBES
BAEERNRTRMEEERE - Ak
AR FI B ERE N - RIS REE AR
KIRBIETRRFAEFNFERE ©

ERERE - AL AMEREBAS EW
BETHRHILBBNIEN

®RER
R&5

AEERNEERFERNHERRT IR
B2 ETIREEE - RABRKETER
HOERNMRG - ZIESRBARINES - fF
B~ BGE - RSN BN ERMIEETT
o REESERA HMAEETRESK
RAMITARER]  BKE TIR KRB EER
FIAZ

RTIRIGEREMBES - HPIBE T E]R
K - BEIME =T RRE(TAI R K
NEITR - RARREERGFAN S ORE - A
SRR FEIERRARBELETE - UIR
EREEMF O EED - RS TEMLH
Hl - e B THAMEERIRA

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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BIR - dEREREE

In the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

CONTRIBUTING TO COMMUNITY

ELL Environmental places a strong emphasis on engaging with and
addressing the concerns of the community. We firmly believe that
achieving a harmonious coexistence between business growth and
community investment is a fundamental aspect of our sustainable
strategy. We prioritize activities such as wastewater treatment and
involvement in new energy initiatives that benefit the community as a
whole.

Each year, we allocate substantial resources to community
investment and actively encourage our employees to participate in
volunteer activities, showcasing our commitment to corporate social
responsibility. During the Reporting Period, our wastewater treatment
facility donated RMB47,000 to Taiyuan University of Technology
that raises funds to support the development of education and
RMB300,000 to Rugao Charitable Foundation to support the people
in need. In addition, biofuel pellet production business in Indonesia
donated to people in need in the community, mainly including
necessities, amounting over 129,000,000 rupiah.
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BRI HERERBE

MATERIAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS FEZEREBAHM

Mainland China Indonesia

REIRE ENje

Environmental

BEA: B

BiR
Aspect A1: Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Law No. 32/2009 on Environmental
Environment (PEARKEMBIRIBREE) Protection and Management

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC
(hEARKEMBIAR TR EZE)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC
(R A R EMBIKSTRIFEEDY

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste
CEBEREY) S R IBIENIRE)

Government Regulation No. 82/2001 on
the Management of Water Quality
5582/2001 SR BE /K E B 2 RO A B

F32/20005FCRIFREME IR E)

Government Regulation No. 41/1999 on
Air Pollution Control

B BAZE RS IR HI R 5B 41/19995% BT
ER

Government Regulation No. 101/2014 on
Management of Hazardous Waste and
Toxic

EBREELEEMEREREY - B8N
2£101/20145% BUR AR

Law No. 7/2004 on Water Resources
BRAKERIZET/20045 52

Regulation of the Minister of Energy

and Mineral Resources No. 12/2017 on
Utilization of Renewable Energy Sources
for Power Supply of the Republic of
Indonesia

AR A BEERRAEREERRTE
B FE12/201 758 BEIR S B A &R #B AP
&<

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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RIZ - HERERBSE

Mainland China Indonesia

REIRiE ENje

e Government Regulation No. 22/2021
on Implementation of Environmental
Protection and Management
BB REREIRNE BN F22/2021
SRR ER

e Minister of Environment Regulation No.
8/2009 on Wastewater Quality Standards
for Businesses and/or Thermal Power
Plant Activities
BRLCERN SBEMEHHEKE S
IZAEZE8/20095 IR IR EP B RS

e Minister of Environment Regulation No.
68/2016 on Domestic Wastewater Quality

Standards
BRAREREKESIRAEZE68/20169IRR
;RS

e Minister of Environment Regulation No.
15/2019 on Emission Quality Standards
Thermal Power Plant
BB E 21245 15/2019583%

BHES

e Minister of Environment Regulation
No. 6/2021 on Waste Management
Procedures and Requirements Hazardous
and Toxic Waste
BEAEELE LR EYEIRIZF
ERE6/2021FRIRF ALK S

e Law Number 6 of 2023 on the Stipulation
of Government Regulation in Lieu of Law
Number 2 of 2022 on Job Creation
BRABIER M E6/20235 A2 (FIE B
SB28% 20225k A1)
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BRI HERERBE

Mainland China Indonesia
PE A Z1)=1
Social
e
Aspect B1: e |abour Law of the PRC Law Number 6 of 2023 on the Stipulation
Employment (PEARKEMBELE)E) of Government Regulation in Lieu of Law

EEB1 : EfE

e |abour Contract Law of the PRC
(REARKEMBEILEHERE)

e  Social Insurance Law of the PRC

(PEARAMBEHGREE)

Number 2 of 2022 on Job Creation
ERIEIE M ER6/20235 2 (FIE B
F25R 2022575 1F)

Aspect B2: Health
and Safety

[EmEB2
[

e Production Safety Law of the PRC
(REARKEMBEZ 2 4EZE)

Government Regulation No. 50/2012 on
Implementation of Occupational Safety
and Health Management Systems of the
Republic of Indonesia
HERAGHANBEMBER 2 RERE
B | & 5550/201 23R BT /A AR

Aspect B4: Labour

e  Provisions on the Prohibition of Using

Law Number 6 of 2023 on the Stipulation

Standards Child Labour of Government Regulation in Lieu of Law
[EMEB4 : (CRIHFRETRE) Number 2 of 2022 on Job Creation
&5 T AR BRABIER M E6/20235 A2 (FIE B
257, 20225552 )
Aspect B6: e Advertising Law of the PRC
Product (REARHEMBEREEE)
Responsibility
[ETB6
EmEE
Aspect B7: Anti- e Law of the PRC on Anti-Unfair
corruption Competition

BHEB7 - RK&)S

(hEARAMBERTEEHFE)

e  Criminal Law of the PRC
(R EARKMBIFEY

e Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery

(BERZELRAERBEITANETTRE)

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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RIZ - HERERBSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE EERTAKER HEREAESHE
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX 5DRBERSI

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration

IEHER - BFH —REERBEEENIESR 8- L

A. Environmental

A R

Aspect A1: Emissions

BHEA1 : B
General Disclosure Creating Green P. 30-36,
Information on: Fortune 47-49
(@) the policies; and gliER s
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Material Laws and
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, Regulations
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non- FERE LRI

hazardous waste.
Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under
national laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride. Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

—MRHER

BRBERMBERBBEN  M/KE TS  EENEZEREEYNEES
Hy :

@ BE: &

(b) BFHETABEAZENRBMERIROINER -

it BRENERASLY ALY REMRBEZERIRIIRER)TR
Yo RERBBE_ACH - Fht - RIETE - SAEKILEY - 2H/HK
ANELR - BEEERMIERRRPIMAESE o

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. Environmental P. 36
- : - : KPIs

RIS | PERIIEIE RARRBHE BORE - 25 B

HEIBAT e
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BiE - 4tSRERRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number
TEHE BFH > —REERBERERES =5, B BEH
KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas | Environmental p. 36
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per | KPIs
unit of production volume, per facility). IRIBAGEAE N
- = e 4 = . \ E=td
BgER | BEE(EEN) RpREE(BE2)REREBHYME (UBETE) & "
BiZA12  |(ER)RE (WABEEEN - BEZMETE)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BREN |MESAEMESEEEEDES CAEGE) R(ER)EE
BIEA.3 | (MABEEEM - BIEREE) °
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FREY |EAEZEEDEECAETE) R(ER)BE(WNEBES
BIZA1.4 | B - FIERMEE) -
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | Creating Green P. 30-36
them. Fortune
. N . T B s EE
RASRAER PRI RPN E B IR R RE DG L B IR AT ERER Y 205 - -
FEIRA15
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and nonhazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
BRER |(HERREEEREZIEEYN A - REMATET LA REE B 5
EIRA1.6 | RAEREL B IREREE K -

BERRREREBRLF

R MEFFR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBEREREMER 8- 1 HE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHA2 : EREA

General Disclosure Creating Green P. 30-36
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other Fortune
raw materials. BlEGZEHE

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

—RIE
BRERER(BIEER « K REMERME) R
i BRAAREE - #7F  EH - BF  ETREF-

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Environmental P. 36
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "’000s) and intensity (e.g. per| KPIs
unit of production volume, per facility). IRIBRARREN

ey
BN | RERESMEER, KBRS ﬁ%ﬁ)mﬁ%@ﬁ )

EBiEA21  |ETERE)REE(NAGESEMN - FEKBHE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREWR |BFRKERTE(MAGESSEN  B8ERMAE) °
FE1RA2.2

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken | Creating Green P. 30-36
to achieve them. Fortune

BERBEE
RASRAEAN | IRULATRT S MVREIR G A BiZ M A E R E L B 2RI A & e
FSiEAD 3 |BE o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

BASRAERL | RAUKEUE BRI B EAIREE - ARPTR] SR KR B
EiRA2.4 | BRRAEDIEL BRI S o
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number
TEHE BFH > —REERBERERES =5, B BEH
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Not applicable N/A
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. to the Group’s TE A
business
RIRAUK | RS REME AR A ) RONER) SFEESM | ramara
1BIZA2.5 |(hE - H 2 7
Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources
[BEAS : RERRXAREIR
General Disclosure Managing Impact | P. 33
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and | on Environment
natural resources. and Natural
T Resources
—Ax K ER EIPHIRIE
R AR o ) . & IR ¥ IRIE A
BUREEIT AHIRBE N KAERIERERNZEMBUR - B RSB S
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
BBER | EERSHRERRAERNEATEREKNEE R
HEIRA3A | BT o
Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EEA4 : RIF#L
General Disclosure Climate Change p. 34

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—MRIEE

BRI N EHE RN gHETAEEAXENEARFEBEEENER

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

AN |HlEERAREEHBETAEETENEARIFEREE - &

EBIZA4 | FEETTE) o

and Resilience

RIREC M EE

BERRREREBRLF

—E-NEEH
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number
TEER - EFH - —REBERBRENER -0 L] HE

B. Social

B. 4 &

Employment and Labour Standards

BREREZEIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EmEB1 : Ef&

General Disclosure Caring Our p. 38-45
Information on: People

(@) the policies; and AEET

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— MR

BEAFM R - BEREA - TERE - BE - FEHe - 2ol - RIE
TR R EAth 538 R A

@ X &

(b) BFEETABERZENHEEEERRIINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- Employee P. 39-40
or part-time), age group and geographical region. Overview
BEHE

BAREN 1M - EEE (N2 REFER) - FEt4Aa R MR SN B E
EIEB1.1 | B8 -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

MREN  |RME - FRAN KRB HEERKLE -
¥E1EB1.2
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBEREREMER 8- 1 HE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2: #EHEZE

General Disclosure Employees’ P. 42
Information on: Wellbeing
(a) the policies; and BTLE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—RIEE
ERRHZ2TEREMREREBCHEEEEN -
@ BUR : &

(b) BFHETABEAZENRRMEENROINER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three years
(including the current year).

BMREN | BE=F(BRAFE)BFRTITHHABMELE -
1E15B2.1

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

BRAEN |EIHBEARITIERE -
1E1EB2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

FARAER | WA EREREL 2EE - LRI RERA -

$51ZB2.3

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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RIE - HERERBE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBEREREMER 8- 1 HE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEBS3 : #EKIEH

General Disclosure Employee P. 43-44
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties | Development
at work. Description of training activities. BT%RE

Note: Training refers to vocational training, which may include both internal
and external courses paid for by the employer.

—RHEE

EBERAEEBITIIEBENMB R REEMNBUR - B IES -

i EPIEREEY - A REREENBANIMNIRIE

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

BREN |RUERREEERN(NSRERE  PREEE)ESHZIIE
JE1EB3.1 BB ©

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

BREN  |RERIREEERED  BREETKTIIN TR -
$51ZB3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : &5 TXA

General Disclosure Labour Standards | P. 46
Information on: & TR

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— MR

BRI IEE T ehoahlss Th

@ BxE: &

(b) BFEBITABERZENBEERZLRFINER -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
FTEHE BFH > —REERERERES =5 B BEH
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards | P. 45
avoid child and forced labour. A5 T AER|
BBER | fEite s R O AR R E T KRG T -
FE1EB4.1
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
BABER | IR RIS AR ER A IS U PTERERE) 28R o
1EiEB4.2
Operating Practices
ZEEN
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : tEHEEE
General Disclosure Managing p. 37
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Suppliers
EIRHER

—RINEE

EIRHEEEORE R RREBUR

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BRER | RtREDHEREE -

1513B5.1

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

AR (A AEARERESN - RERITEREBAMHEERE

#E1EB5.2 | B - WRAMENINBITREERTE -

BERRREREBRLF

R MEFFR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number
TEHE BFH > —REERBERERES =5, B BEH
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social | Managing P. 37
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and | Suppliers
monitored. BEMER

BASHEN | E RN HEEESERENRE Mg RRNIED - AR
1E1EB5.3 | MHENITRERTE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

BRER | WAERE MR E S RIRRE R LRGHED] - ANE
1E1EB5.4  |FRITRERTA -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmMEIE

General Disclosure Creating Green P. 30-36,
Information on: Fortune 47-49
(@) the policies; and BliEElE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Material Laws and

impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and | Regulations

privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods | 3= E%72 KRR

of redress.
—MRIKER
BEFMREERNRBNEERZ S - BS  RELALESEUALERG E
Hy -
@ BE: &
(b) BFEETABERZENHEEEERROINER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls Not applicable N/A

for safety and health reasons. to the Group’s TE A
MRl |BESRERESARTAZ SRR EHAKME L, o | DSOS
1512861 TEBRARHE
O
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RIE - HERERRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number
TEHE BFH > —REERBERERES =5, B BEH
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received No significant N/A
and how they are dealt with. complaints TE A
BGER | BEBRNES RRE MR E U RS o received.
T 23 -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Not applicable N/A
intellectual property rights. to the Group’s TiEFH
BORRAIIK | ik B4 I AR TR BB ) o Duness e
1E1%B6.3 NERRAEHE
BN . A
OB
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. | Not applicable N/A
MR | EAKERTERREREYIES - fothe Group’s | &S
#£1286.4 business
TERARARSE
EOE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Privacy Protection | P. 38
how they are implemented and monitored. B AR
RASRAER | HEHUEBE ERHMRIE RFLBECR - ARMEARITRERTE
1512B6.5

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPls”) Declaration Number

IRER EFH - —REBEREREMER 8- 1 HE

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Anti-corruption P. 45-49
Information on: R&EE
(@) the policies; and Material Laws and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Regulations
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money FEERE LA
laundering.
—MRIKEE
BEPIILFRRE - BR - BEFREREN -
(@) BR K&

(b) TFEHETABE EATE IR ERTIBHINER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
Period and the outcomes of the cases.

MEYN | RERPAHETASEEERIYCEENE SHRDERFDN
HEEB7.1 | BiE RARAAER o

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

B | WabrsEEkBERES - URBBRNITRERTA -

181EB7.2

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.

RSN |(HmEENE TRHENRESE

1E1EB7.3
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RIE - HERERRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEER - EH - —REERBRENER 5589 HE
Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HE&RE

General Disclosure Contributing to P. 46
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into HIEEER

consideration the communities’ interests.

—RRIBEE
BT RSERERLEMEHEFENEREXS A EE ErtE M
HVBUR e

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

MBEN |FIERBEIHE  REEE LIHR BF - -8
g1EB8.1 | B) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

FgEN | EEIHEMHAER(INSENER) -
$51ZB8.2

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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Directors’ Biographical Details

ESZBEABE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 77, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive Director of the
Company on 5 September 2014. He has been the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”)
since 5 September 2014. Mr. Chau also holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company and is mainly responsible for business
development and formulation of strategies of the Group. He joined the
Group in December 2002 as a director of Everbest Water Treatment
Development Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Chau is a director of and owns 90% of the
issued shares in Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Sea”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and
literature from Xiamen University (EF9X£) in the PRC in August
1968. Mr. Chau was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star and a Silver
Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong government in 2010 and 2016,
respectively.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

PITES
BAZzEREE

B&EIREE 7758 RZE—NF=HA
+N\BEZETAEARRESE TR T
FAARHATAARAETSER([X
EDRATEE -FE_T—NFNAAHA
B—EAEEENREZZES([RBEER
BERE - ALENMREARGETHER
AMEZESRRY  FZAEAEBMNEREE
DERBHIE] - R T -F+ - AMAK
EEEAARARHEZEE2ENEB R BIE KK
BERARAFNES - AXERARAEE
KRRESEEERAG (S NEST#
BEBEITRINEI900% °

BSRER—NAN\FE N\ AEPEEPIRER
HRAESXEELEN - ARAER T —F
FRZZB-RNFNRIERBBAR T IHEHA

EENMREANEE -



Mr. Chau has held directorships in various companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chau was the chairman and an executive
director of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (delisted) (previous
stock code: 651) from September 2007 and had ceased to be
the chairman from June 2015 and was re-designated as the non-
executive director and appointed as the honorary chairman from
June 2015 to December 2019. Mr. Chau has also been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Redco Properties Group
Limited (stock code: 1622), Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1897) and Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited
(stock code: 371) since January 2014, June 2020 and April 2021,
respectively. Mr. Chau had also been an executive director of Rosan
Resources Holdings Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 578)
from March 2000 to November 2006, an independent non-executive
director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (stock code: 8019) from June
2003 to August 2009, an independent non-executive director of
Come Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 794) from February
2009 to July 2024, GR Life Style Company Limited (formerly known
as GR Properties Limited) (stock code: 108) from December 2008
to September 2010, Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (delisted)
(previous stock code: 1089) from December 2010 to May 2016
and Hang Pin Living Technology Company Limited (formerly known
as Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited) (stock code: 1682) from
September 2017 to April 2021. Mr. Chau was also an independent
non-executive director of Good Resources Holdings Limited (delisted)
(previous stock code: 109) from July 2007 and was re-designated as
an executive director from September 2021 until Good Resources
Holdings Limited was delisted in May 2022. Mr. Chau is the father of
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 42, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 25 February 2014 and was re-designated as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEO” or “Chief Executive Officer”) on 5 September 2014. He has
been a member of the Nomination Committee since 5 September
2014. Mr. Chan also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for all major affairs of the Group,
including project construction and operation, business development,
marketing and formulation of strategies. Mr. Chan joined the Group
in March 2007 as a director of Everbest. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chan was a database administrator at Panda Restaurant Group,
Inc. in Los Angeles, the United States (“US”), from February 2005 to
December 2006.
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Directors’ Biographical Details

ESZBEABE

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the lowa
State University of Science and Technology in the US in December
2004. He currently serves as a member of the 13th Fujian Provincial
Political Consultative Conference (f82%& Ei#Z 8), as a member
of the China Overseas Chinese Affairs Commission (2 Bl {E#; &
&), a member of Hong Kong Election Committee, the president
of the 13th Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Youth
Committee (B/BZEFE A4 SE), the vice chairman and a standing
committee member of the 13th board of directors of the Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations (B g2+t EEi=). Mr. Chan is
also the permanent honorary president of the 12th Hong Kong Minxi
Association Ltd. (BB AEE), the permanent honorary president
of the 13th Lung Yen Residents Association of Hong Kong Limited (&
e S R4PE). Mr. Chan is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam
Brian, the non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan has held directorships in various companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was an executive director of Wan Kei
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718) from March 2018 to
January 2022. Mr. Chan has also been appointed as a non-executive
director of DL Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1709) since
October 2022.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of and holds a 20% shareholding
interest in Everbest Environmental Investment Limited (“Everbest
Environmental”), a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares in Kingdrive Limited
(“Kingdrive”). Kingdrive owned all the issued shares in Carlton Asia
Limited which owns approximately 1.42% of the issued shares of the
Company.
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Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Radius Suhendra, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 October 2016. Mr. Suhendra is
mainly responsible for all major affairs of an Indonesia-incorporated
subsidiary of the Company, which was acquired by the Group in late
2016. He has been overseeing the construction and operation of the
palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants in that
subsidiary.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
Ohio State University, the US, in 1996. He has 15 years of experience
in managing businesses in heavy industries in Asia, including 7 years
in managing ferrous trading business of a ferrous alloy trading firm
between 1998 and 2005 in Singapore. From 2006 to 2010, Mr.
Suhendra was the president director of PT. Indoferro which operates
blast furnace producing nickel pig iron in Indonesia.

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 43, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014, was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014 and was
further re-designated as an executive Director of the Company and
appointed as the deputy general manager of the Group both since
April 2019. He also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international trade
department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group
Limited from February 2011 to August 2013 and a business adviser
at Vodafone Ltd. in the United Kingdom (the “UK”) from November
2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in business
administration and international business from Manchester
Metropolitan University in the UK in September 2005. He currently
serves as a district council member of the 7th Term (2024) Eastern
District Council and has been a member of Xiamen Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Fujian Province ({22 & EFM B Z &) since 2017. Mr. Chau has
also been an independent non-executive director of Hang Pin Living
Technology Company Limited (stock code: 1682) since April 2021.
Mr. Chau is () the son of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, an executive Director
of the Company and the Chairman and (i) a director of Wealthy Sea,
a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 36, was appointed as a Director of
the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has
been a member of the remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 5 September 2014. He is also
a director of three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in communication from Purdue University in the
US in May 2011. Since March 2013, Mr. Chan has been working
as marketing and sales director at PT. Indoferro. He has been
involved in the business of the Group since September 2012 when
he was appointed as a director of Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd.
(“Exuberant”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was
intended by the then shareholders of Everbest Environmental to be
used as the holding company for the purpose of the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. While serving as a
director of Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring business
opportunities in the environmental-related industry within the larger
Asia region. Mr. Chan continued to be involved in the Group’s
business after he had been appointed as a Director on 18 March
2014. He has also been responsible for setting up and overseeing the
Group’s operations in Indonesia, particularly in the areas of biomass
power plants and wood pellet manufacturing and exports. Mr. Chan is
the younger brother of Mr. Chan Kwan, an executive Director and the
CEO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company (the “INED”)
on 5 September 2014. She has been the chairlady of the audit
committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
since 5 September 2014.

Ms. Ng has been a director of Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited
(previously known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited) since April 2012,
prior to which she was the sole proprietor of Linda C.Y. Ng & Co.,
an accounting firm, from January 2008 to April 2013. Ms. Ng has
also been a director of Futurelink Limited since February 2004.
She has been a part-time lecturer in the School of Continuing and
Professional Education of City University of Hong Kong since October
2015 and a part-time lecturer at HKCA Learning Media Limited since
August 2010, and was a part-time lecturer at Accountancy Training
Company (International) Limited from September 2007 to April 2010.
She has been the author of “Financial Reporting in Hong Kong: SME
Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015 and “Practical Guide
to Financial Reporting Standards in Hong Kong” published by CCH
Hong Kong Limited since September 2013. She was a director of
Learning Is Fun Association Limited from June 2007 to June 2012.
Ms. Ng was a staff accountant at Ernst & Young from September
2000 to September 2001, and was promoted to senior accountant in
October 2001 until she left that firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009 and
a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 1997. She has
been a certified professional forensic accountant of The Institute of
Certified Forensic Accountants since September 2011, a certified tax
adviser and an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since
September 2010, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the UK since October 2005 and a practising member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2005.
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Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 73, joined the Group on 30 June 2014 and
was appointed as an INED on 5 September 2014. He has been the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5
September 2014.

Mr. Ng studied banking courses at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He worked in the Hong Kong banking industry for 28
years, holding senior management positions. In 1992, he was
appointed executive director and general manager of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited, and in 2001, he was appointed vice chairman
and chief executive officer until his retirement in 2012. Mr. Ng served
as a member of the Council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
from April 1999 to March 2003 and as a member of the Fujian
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference from 1993 to 2013.

Mr. Ng served as a business consultant for China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited from January 2014
to April 2015. From 11 March 2016 to 26 February 2021, he held
positions as an independent non-executive director for Guoan
International Limited (delisted) (previous stock code: 143), from 22
March 2016 to 21 March 2022, as an independent non-executive
director for Renco Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 2323), and
from 25 May 2017 to 11 January 2021, as an independent non-
executive director for DevGreat Group Limited (formerly known as
Shanghai Zendai Property Limited) (stock code: 755). Additionally, he
served as a non-executive director for Roma (meta) Group Limited
(formerly known as Roma Group Limited) (stock code: 8072) from 24
August 2017 to 18 December 2017. Currently, Mr. Ng serves as an
independent non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock
code: 181) from 30 June 2014, the chairman of supervisory board
for Macau Well Link Bank since 31 March 2018, and an independent
non-executive director for Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine
Science Company Limited (stock code: 1084) since 25 September
2019.
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Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, aged 52, was appointed as an INED with
effect from 15 October 2019. She has been a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee since 15 October 2019.

Ms. Leung graduated from the University of Cambridge in England
with a master’s degree in law in July 1996 and from the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in law in July 1994. After
graduation, from 1996 to 2004, Ms. Leung worked at Clyde & Co.,
where her last position was associate.

Ms. Leung is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales
and a partner of Leung and Lau, Solicitors LLP which she co-founded
in 2005. She co-founded L.I.M Tech Limited which commenced
operations in December 2018 and Xu Shan Charitable Foundation
Company Limited in July 2019, and has been the major shareholder
and chairlady of California Insurance Company, Limited since 2018.

Ms. Leung is presently a member of the Legal Education Committee
of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She was previously a member of
the Public Education and Publicity Sub-committee under the Steering
Committee on Mediation of the Department of Justice and the
Mediate First Pledge Sub-Group of the Public Education and Publicity
Sub-Group of the Secretary of Justice’s Working Group on Mediation
in Hong Kong. She was previously also appointed as a Deputy
District Court Judge in Hong Kong in 2012.

Ms. Leung served as the non-executive director of New Trend
Lifestyle Group Plc (LON: NTLG) from June 2016 to January 2018.

Directors’ Biographical Details

ESEZEABE

REBELL

REBELL 2 BT NAF+A+H
FEEZESBIUIFATESRE - KE_-F
—NFTATHAE-BEREREZES ¥
MWEZEehERZEeRAZKE -

REUTHR—NNARFLAREREERIBA
BYRSEERLEM - R— N AmFEL A
FENBBABY RS EREL BN - X
% H-ANARFE-ZTNF R
BN ERRENTT - BRREARAREZBAR
12EM o

RUTREE - RIBW RS EREM
URREFRICEZEMTEREZREETAE
(ER_ZZRFHFAI)ZEBA B
REIEHERAB (R T N\F+_H
FneEE) YR - F—NFLAKRAIZFF
EREEREBERAR - AB-FT-\FRE
—HETNWMNRBRBERARZEEBRRRE
fE o

RUTERIRBERME I EEHELRES
(Legal Education Committee) Z X 8 ° R
BESRERAAREELZEEET AR
BEREBNMEZEGURERAINEER
BEH 2 TENMINARHEREEEE )
HoRARREER/NEZKE - BBETY
R-IE——FREBEEAREEEREE
EE o

RUTEZFE—RFERAEZE—NFE—A
HERFT R EE D BBR A F (New Trend
Lifestyle Group Plc)(LON: NTLG)#E(EIEH
TES -

BERRERERDF T -MFFR

69



70

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholder value
through good corporate governance.

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability, and to enable our Shareholders to evaluate how the
principles of the CG Code (defined below) have been applied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
the mandatory disclosure requirements and the applicable code
provisions as set out in the section headed “Part 2 — Principles of
good corporate governance, code provisions and recommended best
practices” of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
C1 (the “CG Code”) to the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the Directors,
all of them have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board holds the belief that corporate culture underpins the long-
term business, economic success and sustainable growth of the
Group. A strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term
sustainable performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate
citizen. The Company is committed to developing a positive and
progressive culture that is built on its purpose, value and strategy.

During the Year, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural
framework by focusing on the following:

e VALUES:
Sustainable development

Sustainable development is one of the global trends — the
Company is dedicated to make substantial contribution
to environmental protection by supporting sustainable
development.

Engagement

The Company prides itself on keeping its Shareholders engaged
in and informed of the markets and communities in which the
Company operates.

Excellence

The Company is determined to deliver high-quality wastewater
treatment services to its customers, creating pristine water
quality domestically in the PRC and develop and actively
implement potential environmental protection-related industrial
chain projects.

Mutual Respect
The Company strives to foster a collegiate environment both

internally and externally based on trust, collaboration and
respect.
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e STRATEGIES

Pro-actively seeking strategic acquisition, joint venture
establishment and business partnership of other
environmental protection projects in the PRC and
overseas including Indonesia;

Upgrading the Company’s facilities in order to meet the
PRC government’s new environmental policies which will
further enhance the Company’s competitiveness; and

Continuing to place investments on new environmental
protection projects by leveraging the Company’s previous
excellent track record and good relationships with the
local governments.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture, expects and
requires all employees to reinforce it. All of our new employees
are required to attend orientation and training programs so that
they may better understand our corporate culture, structure
and policies, learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise
their quality awareness. In addition, the Company will from
time to time invite external experts to provide training to our
management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge
and management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the
purpose, values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of
the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures that the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but are not limited to formulating the
Group’s business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s
financial results and performance and approving its interim and annual
results upon the review and recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approving the appointment or re-appointment of the Board members
upon the recommendation of the nomination committee of the
Board (the “Nomination Committee”), approving the remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) upon the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, deciding all significant financial (including
major capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing,
monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance, and all
other functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to the Senior Management if
and when considered appropriate. The Senior Management is mainly
responsible for the execution of the business plans, strategies and
policies adopted by the Board and assigned to them from time to
time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
Directors so that there is a strong independent element on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Currently, the Board comprises the following eight Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Biographical Details” of this annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman, is the father of Mr. Chau Chi
Yan Benny, an ED. He is also a substantial Shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief
Executive Officer, is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the
NED. Mr. Chan Kwan owns 20% of the issued shares of a controlling
Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Save
as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.

The EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business development,
formulation of strategies and are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
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The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an
independent judgement to bear on the issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conducts and scrutinise the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives. They are also
responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial and other
mandatory reporting of the Board as well as providing a balance
in the Board in order to effectively exercise an independent
judgement on the corporate actions of the Company so as to protect
Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which complied
with the requirement of the Listing Rules that (i) the number of INEDs
must represent at least one-third of the Board members; and (i) at
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board
is satisfied that all the INEDs have been independent and met the
independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the
Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailor-made
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business
and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities under the statutes
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance poalicies.
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The Company from time to time provides briefings to all Directors
to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expense and they have been requested to provide
the Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, during the Year, each of Mr.
Chau On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr. Radius Suhendra, Mr. Chau
Chi Yan Benny, Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda,
Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy complied with
code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and has attended seminars/
conference/forums and/or read newspapers, journals and materials
relating to the economy, general business, regulatory matters,
corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to all Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For additional Board meetings which require discussion
and resolution of significant issues arising from the operations of the
Company, notice is given in a reasonable time in advance. Before
each Board meeting, a draft agenda is sent to all Directors at least
three days or such other period as agreed in advance in order to
allow the Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that
is required for discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable
the Directors to be properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and to make informed decisions, Board papers together
with all appropriate and relevant information in relation to the matters
of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days or such other
period as agreed before each Board meeting. All Directors should
have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
(“Company Secretary”) with a view to ensuring that the Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. The
Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board meetings
minutes. Draft minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for the Directors’ inspection. According to the
Listing Rules, any Directors and their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be
discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from deliberating and
voting on resolutions approving such transactions and are not to be
counted in the quorum of the meetings.
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During the Year, one annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) and four Board meetings were held. The table below sets out
the attendance by the Directors of these meetings:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RAFEE  ERIT-RARRRRBFAE
(RRBERG ) MMAEEESH - TR
I EFHRAZFEHR BN

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HESBRRE
BEREFEER R
Board
Name Meetings AGM
i EEEE3 BREFAS
EDs HITES
Chau On Ta Yuen BZER 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwan [ 4/4 1/1
Radius Suhendra BREZA 0/4 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny ISESON 3/4 1/1
NED FHITES
Chan Pak Lam Brian FeR i AR 3/4 0/1
INEDs BYFHITES
Ng Chung Yan Linda HEE 4/4 1/1
Ng Man Kung Rt 4/4 1/1
Leung Bo Yee Nancy PEE 1/4 0/1

Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman met with the INEDs
without the presence of the other Directors during the Year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the nomination committee (or the
board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board members
and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy
in the corporate governance report. The Company has adopted a
Board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the policy
specifies that in designing the composition the Board, Board diversity
shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Al
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

In accordance with the Board Diversity Policy, the measurable
objectives are as below:

1.1 Recruitment and selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
In particular, when identifying potential candidates to the
Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board will, among
others, (i) consider the current level of representation of different
genders on the Board and the Senior Management when
making recommendations for nominees as well as succession
planning to the Board and Senior Management; and (ii) consider
the criteria that promotes diversity by making reference to
the code of practices on employment published by the Equal
Opportunities Commission from time to time.

1.2 The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary,
agree annually on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity in perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company’s business growth.

1.3 The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective
criteria and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board, taking into account the corporate strategy and
business operations of the Company.
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1.4 The Board is also committed to having a Board consisting of
more than one gender. The Board should consist of at least
one Director of a different gender who genuinely possesses
the necessary skills, experience and calibre appropriate to the
Company’s business. The Board aims to ensure that there is at
least one Director of a different gender on the Board and that
this is maintained in accordance with the Listing Rules.

1.5 In order to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will propose a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

The Board considered that the aforementioned measurable goals
have been achieved satisfactorily during the Year and the Board will
continue to review the relevant goals from time to time to ensure its
progress for achieving such goals.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the implementation and effectiveness of this
policy on an annual basis, discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval. As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the
Board is illustrated as below. During the Year, the Board comprises
eight Directors, two of whom are female. The Board targets to
maintain at least the current level of female representation, with
the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity. Further details on the
biographies and experience of the Directors are set out on page 62
to page 69 of this annual report.
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Age Group
FiRA R

30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 60 or above
Name of Director EEHE 305% =395% 405% 2495% 505% 2595% 60 A £
Chau On Ta Yuen A%z ER v
Chan Kwan = v
Radius Suhendra EREZ A v
Chau ChiYan Benny  JAZA v
Chan Pak Lam Brian @Mk v
Ng Chung Yan Linda  fh28 2 v
Ng Man Kung RHE v
Leung Bo Yee Nancy Z2E{% v
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Professional Experience

BXLR
Finance/ Wastewater
Accounting Law Banking Insurance treatment  Manufacturing
Name of Director EZE# H S8 /&t xE3 817 R FKEE B
Chau On Ta Yuen AZER v
Chan Kwan RE ’
Radius Suhendra BRA g
Chau Chi Yan Benny FEA 4
Chan Pak Lam Brian PRAEAR 4
Ng Chung Yan Linda mIES v
Ng Man Kung R Y
Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EE v
Education Background
YEE=R
Accountancy Science Business Law Arts  Communication
Name of Director EEH % it ne [GE3 xE3 pe e
Chau On Ta Yuen AZER Y
Chan Kwan RE v
Radius Suhendra BEZA v
Chau Chi Yan Benny BEA v
Chan Pak Lam Brian PRAEAR 4
Ng Chung Yan Linda BEE 4
Ng Man Kung R Y
Leung Bo Yee Nancy RER g
During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the RAEE @ BT E@CBiIEE2MEE

structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that the
structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and skills of
the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the Company

to maintain high standard of operation.
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GENDER DIVERSITY AT WORKFORCE LEVELS

The gender ratio in the workforce (including Senior Management) for
the Year is approximately Male: Female = 8:2. For further details of
gender ratio of Rugao Hengfa, PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari and
PT Sentosa Jaya Purnama together with the relevant data, please
refer to the disclosure in the environmental, social and governance
report of the Company as set out on pages 16 to 61 of this annual
report. Our approach for talent recruitment and retention is to employ
a diverse team that works together collaboratively and encourage
differences and individuality in employees with respect to equal
opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination. Notwithstanding
this fact, with a view to enhancing efficiency, we have not set a
measurable objective for achieving gender diversity at the workforce
level. The Company is determined to commit to the meritocratic
and diverse approach which provides equal consideration and
opportunities to all qualified candidates regardless of gender in terms
of hiring and promotion process. During the Year, the Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
and the results were considered to be satisfactory.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separated and assumed by different individuals to ensure a balance
of power and authority so that power is not vested in any member of
the Board. Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman, is responsible for
business development and formulation of strategies of the Group,
while Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for all major affairs of the Group, including project construction and
operation, business development, marketing and formulation of
strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs, namely
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, serving as the chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung
and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and considering any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services and
reporting the same to the Board, and identifying and making
recommendations on any matters in respect of which it
considers that an action or improvement is needed;

° discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination where more than
one audit firm is involved;

o discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may wish
to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management where
necessary);

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

° reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;
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discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior
Management has performed its duties in establishing and
maintaining effective systems, including matters on adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering findings of major investigations on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by such auditor to the Senior Management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and the Senior Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters and ensuring that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for employees
of the Company and those who deal with the Company (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with
the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report;

reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud
or irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement of
laws, rules and regulations; and

considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held whereat
the Audit Committee reviewed, among others, (i) the audited
consolidated financial results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023; (ii) the unaudited consolidated financial results of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2024; (i) the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group; and (iv) the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function. The attendance of
individual members was set out in the following table.
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The Board had no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
independent auditor of the Company.
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EREQUERZE SR AR RELRBENEG
# R BISRENENTERSE

Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HESBRE
HE FEREESRRH
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda mER L+t 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung R kA 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy RERELT 0/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Man Kung,
serving as the chairman, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda and Ms. Leung
Bo Yee Nancy, and Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the NED. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and the
Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing a remuneration policy;

o reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual EDs and the Senior Management and
such packages include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

o making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the NEDs;

° considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs and
the Senior Management for any loss or termination of office
or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration;

° reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and the Senior Management.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meetings was held
whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration, among others, the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the Senior Management. The
attendance of individual members was set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name Hjﬁgﬁ;ig(/
HE FEREESBRY
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt EE 1/1
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda HERE 2+ 1/1
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian CER Y St 1/1
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REELT 0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of three INEDs,
namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung
Bo Yee Nancy, and two EDs, namely Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr.
Chan Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen serving as the chairman. The
principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board Diversity Policy of the Company and
Directors’ nomination policy, as appropriate; and reviewing the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
such Board Diversity Policy, and the progress in achieving the
objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executives.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

REERE

EEECRVAGEHRERBNTEEE
BATANREREZES - REZEEEE=
FEIIERITES - AMEERLL - R
FENREBULTULMEBHAITES - BIF
REREENRESLLE - AREREEREE
RELZBEIF  RRHZBESXTZAEMEE
SEE

s ELEBFRINEFTSERE HAEREZT
fE(BREREE - MR N ERR) - SR EM
EHREPNEFTSRIEEER - U
FEAR BB ERAES

s YEARESEERAIEIESNAL
WHEERZALTHEEZTAESES
REHEESR  WEEERESFEZTT
fEBEE

o FHEEIIFMITERAEMLIL

s RIARAEFSEZTIERNESR
ZRR(NER) : REEEFES/ET
ZEFEZTLBRARENEERR
RERZSEENER &

s HMEFZAEIAEHZEARER(LH
REFERITRAAR) BT mE
FeRMERERER

BERRERERDF T -MFFR

87



88

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meetings was held
whereat the Nomination Committee, among others, (i) assessed
the independence of the INEDs; (i) recommended to the Board
for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as
Directors at the 2024 AGM; (iii) reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board; and (iv) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy.
The attendance of individual members was set out in the following
table.

RAFER BRI NIREBZESESE
REZEEREZEL(EPERE) ()T EBEL
EMITEERNB LML : ((EEESTEZER
ZECNFERFRAFAS LENZTEMER
TEFRES (RN ESGEE  AER
%t R ﬂ‘é%’\ﬁﬁyrcﬂ:ﬁ% T
FZHIERIKENLEBR

Meetings attended/

Eligible to attend

Name HESBRE
HE FEREESBRH
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen A&EREE 1/1
Mr. Chan Kwan PREE A& 1/1
Mr. Ng Man Kung RPE A 1/1
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hERZ+ 1/1
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REEL T 0/1

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which aims to:

- set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

- ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

- ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level.
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CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

character, reputation and integrity;

qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy;

willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

requirement for the Board to have independent Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent by reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board;

any other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of Directors and
succession planning; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES

(A) APPOINTMENT OF NEW DIRECTOR

M

(i)

(i)

(i)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out in above paragraph of “CRITERIA” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company (including
but not limited to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives) and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for directorship
and the candidate shall provide his/her written consent
(i) to be appointed as a Director, and (i) to the public,
disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to
his/her standing for election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such
candidate based on the above paragraph of “CRITERIA”
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall make recommendation
to the Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters

relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at any general meeting.
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(B) RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR AT GENERAL MEETING

(i) Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting of the
Company.

(i)  The Nomination Committee shall review each of the
retiring Director’s overall contribution and service to the
Company, including his/her attendance of Board meetings
and, where applicable, general meetings, and his/her level
of participation and performance on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Directors continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the above section headed
“CRITERIA”.

(iv)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of
the proposed re-election of the Directors at the general
meeting.

(v)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
re-election at any general meeting.

REGULAR REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on (i) the
effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it remains
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice, and (i) the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the CG
Code and the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Audit
Committee to perform the corporate governance functions of the
Company as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
The Audit Committee has, amongst other matters, reviewed this
corporate governance report in discharge of its corporate governance
functions, ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company for the term of three years in respect of their
appointment as NED or INED (as the case may be).

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries other than contracts or letters of appointment expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement by
rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director will be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall retain
office until the close of the meeting at which he/she retires and shall
be eligible for re-election thereat.

According to the Articles of Association,

(@ the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the first AGM after his/her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting; and

(b) the Company may by ordinary resolution in general meetings
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Directors. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first AGM after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 11 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker
Tilly”) in respect of the auditing services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,060,000 and in respect of the non-auditing
services for the Year amounted to approximately HK$160,000. The
non-auditing services rendered related to the performance of agreed-
upon procedures on interim financial report of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2024.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee have agreed to recommend
the re-appointment of Baker Tilly as the Company’s independent
auditor for the ensuing year at the 2025 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give a
true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows for the Year and are properly prepared on a going concern
basis in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements as
well as accounting and financial reporting standards. The Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties which may affect the
Group’s business or cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In addition, Baker Tilly has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged its overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal controls are
maintained, while the Senior Management of the Group is charged
with the responsibility to design and implement an internal controls
system to manage risks. A sound system of risk management and
internal controls is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Group has established a risk management and internal
control systems. Different functions and procedures of the systems
are responsible by the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee,
the management of the Group and the internal control review team.
The system monitors risks of the Group including, but not limited to,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks. The system
also aims at covering Environmental Social and Governance (“ESG”)
related risk factors in order to govern the identified ESG risks to the
businesses and provide a robust monitoring system in all aspects.
We strive to constantly enhance the system and expand the coverage
of the risk factors in a feasible way.

Our Group has established an enterprise risk management (the
“ERM”) framework in order to implement effective risk management
efforts. Our ERM framework comprises two key elements, namely
risk management structure and risk management process. It
defines a simple and clear risk management structure as well as the
responsibilities as below.
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RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a duty to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group (the “ERM
system”). The Board oversees the ERM system, assesses and
evaluates the Group’s business strategies and risk tolerance. The
Board reviews, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, at least
annually the effectiveness of the ERM system and monitors the ERM
system in an on-going manner.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for risk
management and internal control after the Board. It assists the
Board in overseeing the Group’s ERM system by providing support
and advice, including on-going monitoring of the execution of risk
management processes, reviewing the Group's risk register as well as
reviewing and approving the internal control review plan and results.

MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group (the “Management”) is responsible
for identifying and monitoring the risks relevant to the Group during
daily operations, including strategic, operational, financial, reporting
and compliance risks. The Management reports to the Board and
the Audit Committee on the risks identified and their changes. The
Management is also responsible for developing appropriate internal
control measures to mitigate the risks, and identify and resolve
material internal control defects.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established the internal audit function and the scope
of work includes reviewing the effectiveness of the ERM system. The
scope of the risk management and internal control review is risk-
based and is reviewed by the Audit Committee. The internal audit
function is able to communicate with the Audit Committee directly
regarding the results of its review.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

BBz E RS
EEE

EEeAaARRARERREERARE
ERG((CXEMEERERG ) AR - &
FERECRARERRS  fHEMFTER
SEEBRBMEARAXE)  EFZEES
“EZEEZ2mBT 2L EBFRAEEER
EERGZABERFEERCERRE R

FREAT

BREFEI BERZESYAREELAR
EERAIREMR ERREEEBREMX
FREER HHEFSEBEAKE ZAXEAE
REERLG  BREFEEREREERREZ
W17~ W AR E 2 Bk B RO Ml DA M= B M
AR B E ARSI R AR

TRE

AEEERE((EEEDBERNLERA
FEENRAASERB AR  BRER
B% - 2E - M RELREHER - BEE
MEFENERZESRECHMNERME
- EEETAEHTEENARERE
FEPAFRR R - AR RI R AREBAAFE
YEERFE ©

RERE R

AEBEEKT ARPEZBEERM - ET(F#
EefERitXRREERRIBRIE - A
IR R ABEERN < BEIERER M
o WHEBEZZRE SR - NElEZBES
FIR R EREREFERRE IR °

BERRERERDF T -MFFR

95



96

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our ERM framework defines the procedures for identifying, assessing,
responding and monitoring risks and their changes. Through regular
discussions with each operating function, the Group strengthens
the understanding of risk management such that all employees can
understand and report various risks they have identified in a timely
manner. It enhances the Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.

Assess risks
identified
FHEE R R R B

Define risks
universe
FE R0 E

Identify
risks
a7

To identify and prioritise material risks throughout the Group, the
Management communicates with each operating function, collects
significant risk factors that affect the Group from bottom to top,
including strategic, operational, financial, reporting and compliance
risks. After identifying all relevant risks, the Management assesses the
potential impact and possibilities of the risks and prioritises the risks.
Appropriate internal control measures are then developed to mitigate
the risks identified and the changes of risks are monitored in an on-
going manner.
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MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

MAINTAIN AN EFFECTIVE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
(OPERATIONAL LEVEL)

° Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, and
clearly define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities
of each key position;

° Establish code of conduct and explain the Group’s requirements
on integrity and ethical value to all staff;

o Establish a whistle-blowing mechanism and encourage
employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

° Establish appropriate level of information technology to assess
rights and avoid the leakage of price-sensitive information; and

° Establish inside information disclosure policy, including reporting
channel and responsible person of disclosure, unify response to
external enquiries and obtain advice from professional financial
adviser or the Stock Exchange if necessary.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control policies and procedures, including
those related to financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. The
Board has considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions during the review of the
effectiveness of the ERM system.

ON-GOING RISK MONITORING (RISK MANAGEMENT LEVEL)

Based on the ERM framework and risk management policies
established by the Board, the Management communicates with each
operating function, and collects significant risk factors that affect
the Group from bottom to top. The Group has established a risk
register to record the risks identified, and the Management assesses
the potential impact and possibilities of the risks and develops
appropriate internal control measures to mitigate the risks identified.
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During the Year, the Management conducted an evaluation of the
Group’s risk management structure and procedures and submitted
a risk assessment report to the Board and the Audit Committee,
including a three-year internal control review plan, to enable the
Board and the Audit Committee to effectively monitor the major risks
of the Group and understand how the Management responds to and
mitigates the risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT

During the Year, the Group had not established an internal
control department internally. Instead, the Group engaged an
external internal control consulting company, APAC Compliance
Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited, to conduct an
assessment and evaluation on the effectiveness of internal control
measures and systems of the Group. Certain internal control
enhancement suggestions have been identified and the Management
has established action plans for improving the internal control
effectiveness accordingly. An internal control review report has been
provided to the Audit Committee which has also been reported to the
Board about the findings and improvement measures.

No material internal control deficiency has been identified during the
Year and the Board considers the ERM system to be adequate and
effective.
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MAJOR RISKS OF THE GROUP

Our risk management process has identified the following as major

risks of the Group and their changes.
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JEl ik TERBERFEE 21
New investments in The Group has invested in the development Carry out thorough Decreased
Bangka, Indonesia of a new biomass power plant in Bangka, feasibility studies on the

Indonesia with a capacity of 12 megawatts Bangka Power Plant VER

HIEAMERNHKE

(the “Bangka Power Plant”) to generate
electricity for sale to PT PLN (Persero), an
Indonesia government-owned corporation.
The construction of the Bangka Power
Plant may not be completed successfully
or may not meet the expected standard.
The operation of the Bangka Power Plant
may not be successful due to the potential
insufficiency of biomass raw material,
incapability of the new staff in the Bangka
Power Plant or other unknown factors.
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Hiring professional
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operation and conduct
training for new staff,
strengthening the building
of talent team

BREXERERZENR
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Negotiate with local
suppliers to enter into
long-term purchase
agreements to ensure
sufficiency of the biomass
raw material and increase
operational efficiency
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The construction of the new
power plant in Bangka,
Indonesia, was completed
and began operations in late
July 2024. The Group has
started supplying electricity
to the local government.
According to the power
supply agreement with PT
PLN (Persero), the Bangka
Power Plant is expected to
supply electricity to the state
grid at a fixed rate for a 25-
year term starting from 2024.
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
L g TERBERER 21t
Biofuel business in The Group’s biomass power generation Strictly control operational  Decreased
Jambi, Indonesia business in Indonesia is temporarily and production cost

suspended. The Group commenced the to enhance product B

ENfE iR ey A ket

biofuel pellet/wood pellets manufacturing

ES business for export in Asian countries
such as Indonesia and Korea in 2021. The
wood pellet prices in Asian markets have
exhibited fluctuations influenced by supply-
demand dynamics, policy changes and

seasonal factors.

AEEREEASNENEREXRHER
EREERE - AEER -T2 —FRR
E%Wﬂﬁl/ﬁ%ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ SATRIED

BESGMBERLA o FMAERT

%T SHBE  BR
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competitiveness and
achieve sustainable
development

BIREEMAENRE © 1B
HERBENNERAF
BILER

The Group has been
exploring ways to enhance
the wood pellet production
business, including
seeking potential partners
to improve production
capabilities and efficiency

AEE-BESKHER
RRAEEXBNTE &
EESRBEAERHIAR
THEER MY

Biofuel pellet operation in
Indonesia commenced its
wood pellet production
business in 2021. However,
it recorded losses for the two
years ended 31 December
2022 and 2023. To improve
the business by partnering
with parties possessing
relevant expertise, the Group
entered into a framework
agreement on 15 March
2024 to dispose of 80% of
the wood pellet operation.
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EERRE
Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
L g TERBRERER 21t
Credit Customers or counterparties of the Group 1. Control potential Unchanged
are local government authorities. Payment exposure to recoverability
=8 from them could be longer than the problem by frequently i3 g

credit period granted to them due to the

complexity of their internal administrative
procedures. The Group might suffer from
a financial loss or liquidity difficulty in the

case of delay in payment.

AEENEPRE T BEHBIFH o
ARERETHIEA 2 ERENE - WEHN
RARBRE T REZEEY - ARER
ERNFIERRZ BB RIRGEER
-

communicating with
customers and making
every effort to collect and
follow up the outstanding
balance and coordinate
debt repayment

1. ERE R E R AR
b KEEEFER 2
NEWR - ABREREER
BLEEBR

2. Strengthen cash flow
management, actively
monitor cash flow and
maintain sufficient cash
flow to meet operation
needs and commitment

and avoid liquidity problem

2. MERLREEE B

ERReRET#IRE
RS RENN R EESR
kiAGE  BRRBES
A&

3. Regularly perform

impairment review to
assess the recovery of
account receivables

and provide sufficient
impairment to avoid over-
statement of balance

3. EHBETRERS ARG

FEURRRR < AT @ 3 1
e SO BB R DA
2YBR &
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
B it TERBERER 214t
Pricing and cost The Group operates the wastewater Negotiate the water tariffs ~ Decreased
recovery treatment facilities at a pre-determined tariff with the local government

rate specified at the time the Build, Operate to compensate the w
FEREAHE and Transfer (BOT) agreement is entered increased costs of

into. The circumstances of tariff adjustment
have also specified that the Group has
only limited ability to change/renegotiate
the tariffs. The increase in operating costs
due to an increase in utilisation of the
wastewater treatment facilities might not
be fully compensated, and the Group could
suffer from loss or decrease in profitability.
The current wastewater treatment tariff
adjustments still lagging behind the cost of
recovery which could not effectively cover
the increased operating costs

such as electricity fees and cost of
treatment chemicals, it has become a
general market consensus to increase

the water tariff. As economic growth and
marketisation of the water sector continue,
we believe that water tariff and usage still
have room to grow. It is expected that the
domestic environmental protection industry
will continue to grow steadily and healthily,
and price adjustments will normalize to
reasonably offset rising costs.

REBIRAI VR - £ RBR(BOT)H
HRBURENERZE KRR ©
KERBZEATRATEEEE /&

HinEKERNENBR - FENERSK
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operation, striving for
reasonable upward
adjustments in wastewater
treatment tariff to enhance
the profitability and
effectiveness of existing
project

ERE BT R K (B AT
B AL - FEUN
HEKEEREREE LR
PAERIR AR B B FaE
HARE

Increase revenue and
reduce cost for on-going
cost control and efficiency
improvement measures
to increase wastewater
treatment revenue and
avoid unnecessary
spending

FEETRIRERAAE
1l RSB R ERHE DASE 1055 7K
REYA - @R LB
I

Negotiate with supplier
to minimise the increase
in costs and reduce the
impact of rising costs
through various energy-
saving and consumption-
reducing measures

EHERGHEERIK
ENER - TRBEEH
REFEFERHERL D B LT
MEE

The Group has reached
an agreement with the
Administrative Committee
of Jiangsu Province, China
in July 2021 for an upward
adjustment to the water tariffs
of Rugao Hengfa facilities to
compensate the increased
costs of operation.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced promptly when it is the subject of
a decision. The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June
2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements/circulars and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so
that only the EDs and the Company Secretary are authorised to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (“Ms. Tung”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 30 October 2021.

Ms. Tung was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial services
to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into
between the Company and Boardroom. The primary person at the
Company with whom Ms. Tung has been contacting in respect
of company secretarial matters is Mr. Chan Kwan, the ED or his
designated representative.

Ms. Tung had complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at the general meeting under the memorandum
of association of the Company and the Articles of Association (the
“M&A”). Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a
resolution may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting
(the “EGM”) to do so in accordance with the “Procedures for
Shareholders to convene an EGM” set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General meetings shall be convened on, and for the transaction of
any business or resolution specified in, the written requisition of any
one or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company on a one vote per share basis, and such members may
add resolutions to the agenda of the general meetings so convened.
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General meetings may also be convened on, and for the transaction
of any business or resolution specified in, the written requisition of any
one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office of the Company, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company, may convene the general meeting in the same manner
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests
and comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at Unit 2304,
23rd Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by
email to info@ellhk.com.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
or change of correspondence address or dividend instructions by mail
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, which has been appointed by the
Company to deal with Shareholders for share registration and related
matters.
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POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT VIEWS
AND INPUT

With effect from 1 January 2022, the Company has adopted the
policy on obtaining independent views and input. In accordance
with this policy, the Board, Board committees or individual Directors
may seek such independent professional advice, views and input as
considered necessary to fulfil their responsibilities and in exercising
independent judgement when making decisions in furtherance of
their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense (the “Mechanism”).
The Mechanism is established to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board and should be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

Independent professional advice shall include legal advice and advice
of accountants and other professional financial advisers on matters of
law, accounting, tax and other regulatory matters.

In the event that independent professional advice, views and input
are considered necessary, the Board, Board committees or individual
Directors shall communicate with the Company Secretary to start
the Mechanism, providing background and details of the relevant
incidents and/or transactions, and the issues involved which would
require independent views and input. They may direct any questions,
queries, concerns or specific advice to be sought to the Company
Secretary who will then contact the Company’s professional
advisers (including, but not limited to, legal advisers, accountants,
independent auditor, internal control adviser) or other independent
professional parties to obtain such independent professional advice
within a reasonable period of time.

Any advice obtained through the Mechanism shall be duly
documented and made available to other members of the Board.

Despite having obtained any information or advice from the Chairlady/
Chairman and/or any independent professional advisers through
the Mechanism, the Directors are expected to exercise independent
judgement in forming their decisions.

Also, the Senior Management of the Company are, from time to time,
brought into formal and informal contact at Board meetings and
other corporate events. The Board has full access to all information
provided by the Senior Management of the Company it deems
appropriate for the purposes of fulfilling its role.

The Company has reviewed and considered the implementation of
the Mechanism to be effective during the Year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
(“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) with the objective of
enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to the
Shareholders and the investment community mainly through
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
announcements and circulars, the AGMs and the EGMs that may be
convened, as well as by all the published disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications made available
by the Company on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is summarised as below:

° The Company will assign dedicated employee(s) to be in charge
of ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders.

° The Company will provide Shareholders with ready access to
understandable information about the Company.

° The Company will take steps to solicit and understand the
views of Shareholders and other stakeholders.

° The Company will facilitate Shareholders’ participation in annual
general meetings and make available the chairmen of the
board committees and advisory panel(s) (if any), appropriate
management executives, auditors at annual general meetings to
answer questions from Shareholders.

° Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company, request
for publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company
through the prescribed channel mentioned below.
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In accordance with the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, the
Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports
and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements;
(i) the AGM or EGM providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (i) updated and
key information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering a
communication channel between the Company and its stakeholders;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. Having
considered the multiple channels of communication mentioned above,
the Company is satisfied that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
has been properly implemented during the Year and such policy
remains effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
published its M&A on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

RBEFBABR - ARBEEEERR -
REEREMFNEZHEL—RIIHER
RE - ZEREEE  ((NETPHRFER
ERRFEEEK  BEREMASE ()R
RBEFREGABRFN ARG RBREHF
A BRFREBEATHEFEFEIHRER
(i) FEB <2 AT Ko AN A RO AB 0k _EAR AN SR B
RN EEZER  (VARRNEERELRR
AEFNEZHANBBRE + RVWARAHE
EENBRMBPECRAAERNELER
RERR - KER LA ZEERBRE X
RAEMEFBABRRAFECELRE
it BZBRRADABR

BEXH
ARBARFENBEXNL B ES o
R EMARRE13.901K - NAR2REER

P R AN B B B0 48k T3 A B O KA
ARAY -



The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of wastewater
treatment services in Jiangsu Province, the PRC and, the generation
of electricity by biomass power plant in Bangka, Indonesia,
production of wood pellets and provision of information technology
services in Jambi, Indonesia. The principal activities and other
particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 are set out on pages 139 to 283 of
this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
OBJECTIVES

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) aims
to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1. The Board adopts the policy that, in recommending or declaring
dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate and sufficient
cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and
future growth as well as its shareholder value.

2. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

3. The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of
Association, all applicable laws and regulations and the factors
set out below.
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4.  The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

o financial results;

° cash flow situation;

o business conditions and strategies;

o expected future operations and earnings;

o capital requirements and expenditure plans;

° interests of Shareholders;

° any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

5. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a
financial year or period as follows:

° interim dividend;

. final dividend;

° special dividend; and

o any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.

6. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval.

7.  The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or

scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

8.  Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association, and all
applicable laws and regulations.

REVIEW

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid or declared for the six months ended
30 June 2024 (2023: Nil).

During its meeting held on 28 March 2025, the Board has resolved
not to recommend the payment of any final dividend for the Year
(2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the
potential future development of the Group’s business is set out in
the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 6 and in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 15 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this report, no important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the Year and up to the date of
this report.

The performance analysis of the Group for the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 7 to 15 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information of the Group is set out in note 6 to the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, together with the Group’s internal control, is set out on pages
95 to 102 of this annual report. The financial risks are covered in
note 33 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report. A more comprehensive analysis of the Group’s risk
factors (excluding the operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the
ancillary biomass power plants by a subsidiary of the Company in
Indonesia, which the Group acquired in late 2016) is set out on pages
29 to 46 of the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September
2014 (the “Prospectus”). The risk factors relating to the operation
of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants in
Indonesia are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the Company’s circular
dated 24 August 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE GROUP

The Group operates its business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Indonesia.

During the Year, save as disclosed in the rest of this annual
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no breach of or
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
the PRC and Indonesia by the Group that has a significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report on pages 16 to 61 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 16 to 61 of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 284 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold the 2025 AGM on Friday, 20 June 2025, the
notice of which will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders
in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the 2025 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 17 June 2025 to Friday, 20 June 2025 (both
dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2025 AGM, the non-registered Shareholders must lodge all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 16 June 2025.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the revenue attributable to the largest customer
and the five largest customers of the Group was 39.6% and 92.3%,
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. The purchases attributable
to the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 14.6% and 39.6%, respectively of the Group’s total
purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 29 to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$181.4
million (31 December 2023: HK$198.7 million). This amount included
the Company’s share premium account of HK$391.9 million as at
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$391.9 million), which
may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the date of
this report:

The EDs

CHAU On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) (Chairman) N
CHAN Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) (Chief Executive Officer) N
Radius SUHENDRA (“Mr. Suhendra”)

CHAU Chi Yan Benny (“Mr. Benny Chau”)

The NED
CHAN Pak Lam Brian (“Mr. Brian Chan”) ?

The INEDs

NG Chung Yan Linda (“Ms. Ng”) ~"N

NG Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) ~##N

LEUNG Bo Yee Nancy (“Ms. Leung”) ~#"N

A = member of the Audit Committee
R = member of the Remuneration Committee
N = member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Benny Chau, Mr.
Suhendra and Ms. Leung shall retire at the 2025 AGM and all of
them, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Ms. Ng, Mr. Ng and Ms. Leung, an annual written confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As
at the date of this report, the Company considers all of them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 62 to
69 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming 2025 AGM has a service contract or an appointment
letter with the Company that is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report, none of the Directors or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group, to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisted during or at the end
of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations
amounting to RMBO0.3 million in the PRC and IDR129 million in value
of necessities in Indonesia (2023: RMB 0.07 million in the PRC and
IDR130 million in Indonesia).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company adopted the Share Option
Scheme to enable the Company to grant options to the eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme took effect on 26 September 2014 and
expired on 4 September 2024. No further share options were offered
and no share options remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme following its expiration. During the Year, no options were
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at 31 December 2024,
no options were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements that
(i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (i) require the
Company to enter into any agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year and no such agreement
subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the Year or at the end of the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable a Director to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
the Shares or any shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts (except for the executive Directors’ service contracts)
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries
were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 11 and 12,
respectively, to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
this annual report.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the
“SFO”)), which were required: (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

FLAFEERER/ITHRARRELF
REHBEBERBRG « HEKRGRER
fHEPHESIRRE

RZZE-_WNFE+—A=+—H ' ARAES
HEEITHA BRARE K AR AR
(EERBBEPESTIEB S R EE 1K
([BHRBEKH ) EXVED)BRRY - HE8E
B REEETRHES  (VRBEFFRBSIE
BIEEXVERSE 7 R85 E/BME AR R MBSt AT
MEZIAR (BIEREREEFRBERK
BIMRZ E G B 1ESR AR MR S0k
B Ki)RIEFEF R EEGIE352158E
SRZIEFTIE S MR R - (iR
BAZEST B ANE A DR R FTE RS 3k
KRBT

Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each RANA T EIEEEO.0001E T T @R m 2
i
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
Number of Interest in
Name of Directors/Chief Executive ~ Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held Total the Company®
REDFIRE
EZ BRTBABHSE 5/ BRME PR 8 B By BABEDE
Mr. Chau Interest in a controlled corporation 70,000,000
ik REEEER } 225,000,000 20.32%
Security interest in Shares 155,000,000
RiDE AR
Mr. Chan Interest in controlled corporations 508,200,000 508,200,000@ 45.90%
B4 RpEERR
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Notes:

(1) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen is deemed to be interested in
225,000,000 Shares, including (i) 70,000,000 Shares beneficially owned
by Wealthy Sea which is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board, and Ms. Wong
Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau, respectively, and (i) 155,000,000 Shares
charged by Everbest Environmental in favour of Wealthy Sea in order to
secure the obligations of Everbest Environmental under a loan agreement.

(2)  Everbest Environmental which held 492,500,000 Shares was owned as to
50%, 30% and 20% by Ms. Wong Shu Ying (“Ms. Wong”), Ms. Judy Chan
and Mr. Chan, an executive Director and the CEQ, respectively. Mr. Chan
is the sole director of Everbest Environmental. Ms. Wong is the mother of
all of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan and Mr. Brian Chan, the NED. Mr. Chan
also owns 20% of the issued shares in Kingdrive Limited which in turn owns
100% of the issued shares in Carlton Asia Limited (“Carlton Asia”). Carlton
Asia held 15,700,000 Shares and is accustomed to act in accordance with
the directions of Mr. Chan.

(8)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

(4)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,107,300,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange or entered in the register referred to in the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the following entities or persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have
an interest and/or a short position in the Shares or the underlying
Shares, which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which was recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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EEgRE
Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each AR RS REEOC.0001E T E B HD <«
i
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
Number of Interest in the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held Total Company®
RN RRE
BREREE /BB B/ RRME FisRG#E M@t EER A
Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 492,500,000 492,500,000 44.48%
Butn
Ms. Wong Beneficial interest 20,415,0000
Fat BaER } 528,310,000 47.711%
Interest in controlled corporations 507,895,000
Rt B R
Mr. Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation 15,395,000@
s REERR } 528.310,000 47.71%
Interest held by spouse 512,915,000
[ETiEse3ay
Wealthy Sea Beneficial interest 70,000,0000
bS] gy } 225,000,000 20.32%
Security interest in Shares 155,000,0000!
RiDE ML
Ms. Wong Mei Ling Interest held by spouse 225,000,000@ 225,000,000 20.32%
IERTL [EliEsT 3y
Morgan Top Trading Co., Ltd. Beneficial interest 143,300,000 143,300,000 12.94%
BanfEn
Notes: PiE -

(1) Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investment Limited (‘Hightop”) (1)
is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and therefore, Ms. Wong is deemed to
be interested in the 492,500,000 Shares and 15,395,000 Shares held by
Everbest Environmental and Hightop respectively pursuant to the SFO.
Also, Ms. Wong is beneficially interested in 20,415,000 Shares.

(2)  Hightop is also owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung, the husband  (2)
of Ms. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is deemed to be interested
in the 15,395,000 Shares held by Hightop, 492,500,000 Shares deemed
to be held by Ms. Wong through Everbest Environmental and 20,415,000
Shares beneficially owned by Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO.
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(8)  Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive
Director and the Chairman, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau,
respectively. Everbest Environmental has charged 155,000,000 Shares
in favour of Wealthy Sea in order to secure the obligations of Everbest
Environmental under a loan agreement. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore,
deemed to be interested in the 225,000,000 Shares held by Wealthy Sea
controlled by Mr. Chau pursuant to the SFO.

(4) Al the above Shares were held in long position.

(6)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,107,300,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors
were not aware of any entities which or persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or the
underlying Shares, which had been disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were
entered in the register kept by the Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are required
to participate in the central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal governments, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group. Contributions are made by the Group based on a
percentage of the participating employees’ salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully
with the employees once made.
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Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required to
pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to their
employees if the conditions specified in the Indonesia Labour Law are
met. The Company’s subsidiaries in Indonesia estimate their liability
for employee service entitlement benefits in order to meet and cover
the minimum benefits requirement to be paid to employees under the
Indonesia Labour Law. For further information, please refer to note 35
to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report.

No forfeited contributions were incurred during the Year. For further
information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.17 and 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement dated 2 November 2023,
Everbest Environmental entered into a deed of share transfer (the
“Share Transfer Deed”) as purchaser with Wealthy Sea as vendor,
pursuant to which Wealthy Sea has agreed to sell and Everbest
Environmental has agreed to purchase 155,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Sale Shares”), at an aggregate consideration
of HK$26,350,000 (the “Consideration”), representing HK$0.17 per
Sale Share (the “Acquisition”). The Consideration shall be satisfied
by way of assignment of a loan (the “Shareholder Loan”) owing by
the Company to Mr. Chan Chun Keung by him in favour of Wealthy
Sea in an aggregate amount equivalent to that of the Consideration.

In connection with the Acquisition and the assignment of the
Shareholder Loan, Everbest Environmental entered into a deed of
share charge (the “Share Charge”) as chargor with Wealthy Sea as
chargee, pursuant to which Everbest Environmental agreed to pledge
all of the Sale Shares acquired by it under the Acquisition in favour of
Wealthy Sea, as security for the Shareholder Loan to the Company in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$26,350,000. The Sale Shares
that were pledged under the Share Charge represent approximately
14.00% of the total issued share capital of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement dated 2 November 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.17 and 13.21 of the Listing
Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
adequate public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares (excluding
treasury shares, if any) being held by the public) during the Year and
up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the Year are set out in note
37 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not conducted any “one-off
connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules. Save for disclosed in note 37(a) and (b) to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report, the transactions disclosed in note 37 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report as related
party transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) or are fully exempt continuing
connected transactions under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan (an ED and the CEQ), Ms. Wong,
Everbest Environmental (a company owned by Ms. Wong, Ms.
Judy Chan and Mr. Chan as to 50%, 30% and 20%, respectively),
Mr. Chau (an ED and the Chairman) and Wealthy Sea (a company
owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau and his wife, respectively)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) executed a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of
the Company on 5 September 2014. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-
Competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally
and irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and covenanted with the
Company (for itself and for the benefits of other members of the
Group) that it/he/she would not, and would procure its/his/her
associates (other than members of the Group) not to, directly or
indirectly, either on its/his/her own account or in conjunction with
or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other things,
carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or
hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent,
employee or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
any activity or business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the business of operating wastewater
treatment facilities in the PRC by the Group as described in the
Prospectus and any other business from time to time conducted,
carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the
Group or in which any member of the Group is engaged or has
invested or which any member of the Group has otherwise publicly
announced its intention to enter into, engage in or invest in (whether
as principal or agent and whether undertaken directly or through any
body corporate, partnership, joint venture, or other contractual or
other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling Shareholders
an annual written declaration as to the compliance with the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year. The INEDs had
reviewed the compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders with
the Deed of Non-Competition and were not aware of the occurrence
of any adverse event, confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders
had not been in breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors is considered to have interests in a business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and has
any other conflicts of interest, as required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 37 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report, no controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the
provision of services to the Group or not) to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted.
In addition, proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged. The relevant
provisions in the Articles of Association and the Directors’ liability
insurance were in force during the Year and as at the date of this
report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 302 employees (31
December 2023: 176 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$16.3 million
for FY2024 (FY2023: HK$15.5 million). The remuneration policy for
our Directors, senior management members and general staff is
based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market
conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the profit performance of our Group and the individual
performance of our Directors, senior management members and
general staff. The Group encourages the self-development of its
employees and provides on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 5 September
2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
directors and employees of the Group. The Share Option Scheme
has expired on 4 September 2024. Upon the expiration of the Share
Option Scheme, no further options will be offered. Please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 30 August 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During FY2024, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold (including sale of treasury shares) or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not hold any treasury
shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and practices
adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 70 to 108 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance
with paragraph D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Ms. Ng
(who is also the chairlady of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ng and Ms.
Leung, all being the INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
the Company’s management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the annual audited consolidated results of
the Group for the Year.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there has been no
change in Directors’ information since the date of the 2024 interim
report of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by Baker Tilly, the independent auditor of the Company,
which will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at
the forthcoming 2025 AGM. Having been approved by the Board
upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-
appoint Baker Tilly as the independent auditor of the Company and
to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at
the forthcoming 2025 AGM. There has been no change in auditors of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 139
to 283, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

HEFRRERERAARRK

(RASBESEMKZIHERLIR)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RIREFAEZHERERFINEREHAE - 25
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ¥ KEIG A EBRENETZRAEENS
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 18 o 5Lt BIE AR FIE TR ESAHHR
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial &R HAEEREETEIEDN - BT @LE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we  LEETERHEFHER, -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HAREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNETTNAUHAREN S RETRE

Revenue from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arr. angements

KEBRBIBHIEERAUR RIS 1FFELHE T HIE LB FFEIRA

Refer to notes 4, 5 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

B2 E B RERN 4 > 517

The Group recognised revenue from construction
services of HK$18,979,000 and imputed interest income
on receivables under services concession arrangements
of HK$18,627,000 during the year ended 31 December
2024,
EEERRHE_T_MF+_A=+—HILFEXE
R AR M) & UL 18,979,000/ TLIA K RIS s i %2
HET e fE Y TR E ) S U A 18,627,000/ 7T ©

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
from construction services and imputed interest income
on receivables under service concession arrangements
included:

B ER K B ERIRIFE & F WA KRG AR
BT e AR E RN B A KRR 7B

° Understanding and evaluating the design of
controls regarding to revenue recognition from
construction services;

o THRIETH BEE R AR TS A S WA T SRR B B0 4%
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° Examining the related BOT agreements entered
into between the governments and the Group
to assess the appropriateness of the related
accounting treatment adopted by the Group;
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matter

BEFENER

FEFRARERERAFARRK

(RHASESEMKIZNERDR)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESNAHRRETSRETERE

Revenue from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements (Cont’d)

KEZRRBENERUAUR B 1FHREL F IR BRREF LA (F)

Revenue from construction of wastewater treatment
facilities and biomass power plant under the terms of
build-operate-transfer (the “BOT”) arrangement are
estimated on a cost-plus basis in which the construction
margin is estimated with reference to a prevailing market
rate of gross margins of market comparable at the time
of construction. Revenue from construction services
is recognised using the percentage-of-completion
method measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
construction contract.
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IKBRIR R [ A ) B B TR Y SR U A A B AR DA
it MBRREMNEDZ2ERRBERAELBRNIRITTS
ENRME - REEZBRBHEXZWAKATIAD L
FEER - RB2BLZSEEERMMERIES HIEFTEK
REJLLBIETE o

Imputed interest income from wastewater treatment
and biomass power plant under the terms of the BOT
arrangements is recognised from time to time on
receivables under service concession arrangements on
an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
discounting the estimated future cash receipts over the
service concession period at the estimated effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition.

RIS AT L TR IR T & B E R AR
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Understanding the Group’s estimation of the
construction margin, the available industry and
market data of market comparables at the
time of construction and the involvement of an
independent valuer appointed by the Group for
the revenue from construction services;
HNKRERERBBHEERRA - TH BEEEY
BREMNEEMLET BERAFAI A LTS
TEEMBSEENR BEXEZENBE(HERD
28

Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectives of the
exercise and assessing its valuation methodology;
FHEB MM EMNERE - s8R ERERE
MNFHEREMSETE

Verifying the construction costs incurred during
the year by examining the contracts, invoices,
completion reports and other supporting
documents on a sample basis;
FRMEEESL  BE  TIWmEREMER
X REFANEER R
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

RRETER

HEFRRERERAARRK
(RHASBESEMKRZIHERLIR)
MEEHFER(F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESNAHRRETSRETERE

Revenue from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables under service

concession arrangements (Cont’d)

KEZRRBENERUAUR B 1FFRELH FHIERSBREF SR (F)

The Group engages an independent qualified valuer to
access the prevailing market rate of gross margin of
market comparables and the effective interest rate for
service concession arrangements as mentioned above.
BEEERFE S ERMAERMTE A & L miSa
BITTISERNE LRI RPN BRI X -

We identified recognition of revenue from construction
services and imputed interest income on receivables
under service concession arrangements as a key audit
matter due to the above significant estimation made by
the Group’s management.

B EEETEREED b EARMEE - BIPEERR
RS R WA KBRS R AT B T B R MR IE HE H A Bk
AR E REAREASFE -
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Evaluating the estimated total cost of construction
contract by reference to the signed contracts and
approved budgets; and

Z2EZERI AN ETRE T LRSS QNG
FHBERAS ¢+ ]

Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated
effective interest rate for the imputed interest
income on receivables under service concession
arrangements by benchmarking against market
data.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matter

BEFENER

HRFRRERERAAKRRK

(RASHEEMALNERRF])

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESNAHRRETSRETERE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

W¥ » BERREHBETE

Refer to notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

FE A E B RENE4%16

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of the Group was
HK$55,405,000.
R-ZE_ME+-_A=+—H"
35 fE /Y BRE B 455,405,000/ 7T ©

BEEEYE  BE R

Management’s impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment is highly judgemental and is
dependent on certain key assumptions including the
discount rate, growth rates, budgeted sales and gross
margin, which are affected by expected future market or
economic conditions, particularly those in the Republic
of Indonesia (“Indonesia”).

EREHYE - MELKREHRERN GERESNERH
i - MZAHEEORNE TERRE - BFMEAEE ER
- FEHEEE NENEX - Al S IES AR TIS
KEBRFZE  LERHERAEHME(ENE ]
RIS A AR ©

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

BB - B Kk R BB RHE SRRV R 7 B 4

° Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including selecting the
impairment model, preparation of the cash flow
projections and involvement of an independent
valuer appointed by the Group;

e TR ESEREMNGNBARE(BEERRBERE
B RenERlNGEE SEEEZRENET
HERIE 2 )

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity and
assessing its valuation methodology;

o FHMEBESIOMBILERIE AR - BE h R BB RAT
HEAETE
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

RRETER

HEFRRERERAFARRK
(RASESEMKZIHERIR)
MEEHFER(F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESNAHRRETSRETERE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

W¥ ~ BERREHBETE ()

An independent qualified professional valuer is engaged
by management to assist in estimating the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”).
EREER - 2BEUAERBEXMGEMBGHEARTE
HE(TREEEEMN )R WEISHE -

We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgements made by the management in
assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is
derived from value in use calculations using discounted
cash flow model
HRERENTAREEEELIRE SR (RIREE®
ﬁHHﬁiiﬁiméﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁFTE.# 1) R EH B R
i - PSR - BB kR ERRER LR E RERE
FTERIE -
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Evaluating the appropriateness of impairment
model applied by the management;

AHMEEEEERREERNRE

Comparing the budgeted sales and gross margin
against historical performance in respect of the
CGy;

REEELRMME - HREEHE REME
ERBVEITHE

Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s
cash flow forecasts by comparing the actual
results of the CGU to the previously forecasted
results;

BRI S E S BB IR A R TR B4
ETHR  FHEEEEMNRSRETER N ERE
g

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs or
assumptions (including growth rates and discount
rate) applied in the impairment assessment; and
AR ERT (AR B Sm A BB SRR (B
FBIERERBEER)NGEN &

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the key assumptions as stated
above and assessed the potential impacts of a
range of possible outcomes.
FHEEIEE R B R TR BURE DT R
AL AR B ERBETE -



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

HEFRRERERAFARRK

(RHASHBTMHRINBERAF)
EHMREAGEMBERRIERD

RE(#)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

AHEEEMRASF BRI E R IE
HEFHhEEH MR REN S -

HEERBABECESTEARMNREN
fEh#Em o IRIBFTERNBEEE @ i
EREFERSHABENEBENEAT
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o

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

BREMEFREI - RPIEDREERR T HEIN
FEATRE - BREYH EAEFERE B
ERFIEER P EH L ABEROEAEXR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 REN RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Yam Yung.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

Cheung Yam Yung
Practicing certificate number P0O8299
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEBRmE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

NOTES 2024 2023
gz —E-MEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Revenue EERA 5 121,616 113,279
Cost of sales SHE KA (59,595) (72,609)
Gross profit EF| 62,021 40,670
Other income and net other gains and AU A LA R B b U8 &
losses Ei8 58 7 (1,334) 234
Impairment losses under expected FEREEEEEX T
credit loss model REEE 9 (3,556) (1,023)
Administrative expenses TR (34,105) (26,471)
Research and development expenses 235 X2 (3,201) -
Other operating expenses HAae & (6,553) -
Finance costs BB A 8 (12,117) (12,710)
Profit before tax K Fi AV A 10 1,155 700
Income tax expense FrS i 13 (10,478) (8,818)
Loss for the year FREE (9,323) (8,118)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: LA T & 77 FE{EF A
(E518), /& F) -
Owners of the Company ZAYNEIEZE N (8,728) (8,265)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR (595) 147
(9,323) (8,118)
HK cent HK cent
AL 7
Loss per share G EE 15
— Basic —HR (0.79) (0.75)
— Diluted —#E (0.79) (0.75)

BRRFEERBERAT

—E-NEEH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeERRkAMZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # %= —ZE — i+ — H=+—H I FF

2024 2023
—E-ME —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
Loss for the year FANEE (9,323) (8,118)
Other comprehensive expense Hih 2 mEBIX
Items that will not be reclassified to ST BEF T EEEmaIEE -
profit or loss:
Actuarial loss of defined benefit REBNBRNGE 2 BEEE
retirement plan (31) (%)
Fair value loss on investments in equity BREMEEAVEZEARBETEN
instruments at fair value through other Em T AEREZ AnEEIE
comprehensive income (18) —
Items that may be reclassified BEZ A REEFT DR 18a IR -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEECEREZRE
translation of foreign operations (16,723) (3,360)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange FIRGT B AT B E N
reserve to profit or loss upon REEHOEEER
deregistration of a subsidiary - (34)
Net fair value loss on debt instrument at FREMEEWEIEANE
fair value through other comprehensive AEMNEBIAZ
income N EEEFRE - (502)
Impairment loss for debt instrument at FREMEERRZRANE
fair value through other comprehensive AEMEBIAZ
income included in profit or loss BEEEF AER - 997
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FRNEM DS EFHX -
net of nil income tax HBRZTAEN (16,772) (2,904)
Total comprehensive expense FREHEMAXARE
for the year (26,095) (11,022)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income & EEFR2E (YY),
for the year attributable to: WA 4BEE -
— Owners of the Company —KAREAA (25,582) (11,147)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE R i A (513) 125
(26,005) (11,022)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R E

As at 31 December 2024 R —E —py#Ef—H=+—H

NOTES 2024 2023
gz —EIF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E S 16 55,405 65,204
Receivables under service concession  JRIGIFEFEZHE N4
arrangements FE W R IE 17 327,455 336,599
Financial assets at fair value through BREMEEBEEARE
other comprehensive income FrENEmEE 18 6,162 -
Other financial assets at amortised cost &4 $4A8 ANEH 2 M H Ath
ERIEE 19 - -
Prepayments and other receivables TEA R K L Ath B W K IE 20 300 316
389,322 402,119
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories TE 4,287 5,430
Trade receivables B 5 EIGRIE 20 2,277 3,670
Receivables under service concession  PRIGIFEFEZHE N HY
arrangements FEW IR 17 36,738 28,182
Prepayments and other receivables TR ERIE K E A R GRIE 20 18,109 29,064
Debt instrument at fair value through FEREMEENEZAN
other comprehensive income ATEMNEFBIA 18 81 81
Other financial assets at amortised cost 3% $5pk AN st 2= Ay Efth
DRIEE 19 - -
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIRITIE 21 30,809 27,480
Cash and cash equivalents He RKIESEEY 21 35,091 30,075
127,392 123,982
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B ZRENIE 22 3,522 2,970
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIENETER 23 12,296 14,786
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ A 5 FRIE 24 7,261 31,676
Borrowings lE=e 25 84,392 64,067
Lease liabilities MEAaE 26 342 451
Income tax payable BT ETERT 3,129 3,377
110,942 117,327
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 16,450 6,655
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDARE
LIABILITIES 405,772 408,774
BRRFRIERERLDT T EFR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R
As at 31 December 2024 X —E —pu#E{—H=+—H
NOTES 2024 2023
g —EIMEF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARK B
Share capital R A 29 111 111
Reserves His 30 258,690 284,272
Equity attributable to owners of the RAEEA AEGEZE
Company 258,801 284,383
Non-controlling interests e i (5,996) (5,483)
TOTAL EQUITY L 252,805 278,900
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to related parties FE{~ EABSE 5 A 24 94,634 70,389
Borrowings & 25 15,825 18,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 188 290
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBAE 27 25,971 24,963
Provision for major overhauls BARIEHEE 28 14,594 15,088
Retirement benefit obligations RIRENEE 35 1,755 1,144
152,967 129,874
405,772 408,774

The consolidated financial statements on pages 139 to 283 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau On Ta Yuen

BA&RER
Chairman
Ey 4

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2024 Annual Report
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B INIIALTRARE

Chan Kwan
R &
Executive director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEEnBER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAREAEL
Investment  Accumu- Non-
Share Share Other ~ Exchange  General revaluation [ated controlling
capital  premium feserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
Rx  ReaE HbRE EXRE  -REG REEMRE  EER Nt FERER it
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén TRn  TBr  TEr  TEr TR TR TR TER  TER
(note 30(A)) (note 30(B)
(HrEE30(A) (WEE308))
At 1 January 2024 R-E-NE-A-H 11 391,851 (31476 (34,145 27419 295 (69679 284,383 (483 278,000
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - 8728 (8728 (595  (9:329)
Other comprehensive EREf2E
(expense)income for (Ex)/ b
the year, net of MRSFER
nilincome tex - - - (16,805) - (18) 1) (16,85) 8 (16779
Total comprehensive EREERTES
expense for the year - - - (16,805) - (18) (8,759 (25582 (513) (26,09
Appropriain of general - EEE—REHE
resenve - - - - 1,888 - (1,888) - - -
At 31 December 2024 N-E-ME
tZA=+-H 11 391,851 (31476  (50,950) 29,307 i (80319 258,801 (59%) 252,805
MERRIERERAT —T_FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

Attrioutable to owners of the Company

FRTREARL
Investment ~ Accumu- Non-
Share Share Oher  Exchange  General  revaluation lated controling
capital ~ premium resenve resenve resene reserve losses ~ Subtotel  interests Total
BRE ROEE  EtEE  EXRE  REE REEMEE  RiEE NG EREs &
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000
tin  TEr TR TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr TR TEr TEx
(note 30(A) (note 30B)
(HizE30) (H530B)
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-F-H 391851 (31476 @077y 25736 (000 (9719 2955%0 (5,608 289922
(Lossjproftfor theyear ~ ER(EE) /EF - - - - - - B265) (8265 147 8119
Other comprehensive EREpRE
(expenseincome (7%)/
forthe year, net of TREHER
nilincome tex - - - (3372 - 49 () (2.882) 22 2,904)
Total comprehensive ERRAE(FY)/
(expense)/income ligaets
for the year - - - (3.372) - 49 8210 (11,147 125 (1102
Approprigion of general  BAG -
resene - - - - 1,683 - (1683 - - -
At 31 December 2023 i
tZA=t-8 391851 (31476 4145 27419 29 (09679 284383 (5,483 278900

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2024 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # %= —E — U+ — H =+—HIFFEE

2024 2023
—E-ME —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Operating activities ReEES
Profit before tax BRI AT A 1,155 700
Adjustments for: HATSBEL AR
Interest income F 2 UA (548) (799)
Finance costs BLE R AR 12,117 12,710
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMERETE
equipment 5,666 5,812
Impairment losses on prepayments TE RIERVEE R - 420
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FEEZEBEER T
loss model BEEE
— trade receivables — B S REWGRIA 47 —
— other receivables — H b R GRIA 3,509 26
— debt instrument at fair value through —EREMEEmKREEALER
other comprehensive income WEBTA - 997
Provision for major overhauls BEARIEEE - 1,325
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ExLA)EPNS L€ - (347)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of & (BB, WoR
inventories (812) 812
Loss/(gain) on disposal on property, HEYE - BEMEEN
plant and equipment BB (W) 1,904 (23)
Defined benefit costs recognised in 8 2 FERR A 7 A8 R AR
profit or loss 758 327
Operating cash flows before movements ~ kit&iEE & EHFIAIALS
in working capital WeEnE 23,796 21,960
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(m) 1,686 (1,794)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B SR IER A (3 ) 1,177 (3,297)
Increase in receivables under service ARTS R AT 2o BE T 9 PR SR TE 3 A1
concession arrangements (16,064) (41,969)
Decrease in prepayments and other TR ERIE K EA R BGR IR
receivables 951 6,872
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S EN BN, Crd) 722 (2,585)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations  3R& I E (R 2 (95) (126)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and  ELfib < 5518 [ fEE+ & B
accruals (B A) /180 (1,671) 5,011
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEL(FTAWERS
operations 10,502 (15,928)
Income taxes paid BEFTEHR (8,575) (8,821)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETHES (FTRA)NWELSFE
operating activities 1,927 (24,749)

BERRRIZERERDF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 7 —E —p#E+— F=+—HIFEZF

2024 2023
—ECOE T4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
Investing activities RETH
Interest received BYFIE 235 371
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME - BE &EERFTSHRIE
plant and equipment 182 44
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB Y% - = M RE (811) (5,909)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits TRENZ R HIR1 717 3K 27,019 -
Placement of restricted bank deposits I R BRI T3 (31,413) (22,009
Purchases of financial assets at fair value ~ B EEBEME2EWRIZAAE
through other comprehensive income AEMEREE (6,148) -
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary in BEFELENBRRIMMERIE
prior years 6,440 44,524
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE(FFH), EENRLTE
investing activities (4,496) 17,025
Financing activities REEE
Interest paid EARFE (9,929) (12,284)
Repayments to related parties ) S 75 3R R (38,340) (3,120)
New loans from related parties R B BEEE T BT R 3K 36,000 —
Repayments of borrowings EIEER (40,200) -
New borrowings raised HiEER 58,585 20,200
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE (495) (475)
Net cash generated from financing METHEENRESEE
activities 5,621 4,321
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeERBSESEWEM (ORL)FHE
cash equivalents 3,052 (3,403)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R— B —HEE2RELSZEY 30,075 34,611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NETE RE B & 1,964 (1,133)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-ZA=+—HHEERELSEEY
31 December 35,091 30,075
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e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company is Unit 2304, 23rd Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

—RE#

BRRRIZERERAR(ARAT]) A—
MERSHSAMKINERRERA
a - HRONREBEEZSFBR AT
([BERFR]) £ o RARIR M SR
3 /& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands ° XA RIH)E &
EEMBAEBERE20WERF L
231E2304%

KRR RIREERAT - EXZMEBAR
A2 TR EBEMIEES9

maBHRRIAET(ETINE - 8
BN ARIEEER -

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
THAT ARE MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 January 2024, for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

RAMITEEMGREENTE
ER R HEERTE

REFEBHNENZEEMGREE
RIS RHERIEET &

RAFE » KRAREWME AR (5
AIAEE ) EREATIBELS
FiAE (BRSO BEM2EE
MRS ER G ERANET AN (ER =
T_MFE—A— AN ASEFES
ISR BIER) - AMREBURE MTERK -

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB BHREERE 165 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 1
EREGFEAFE1RUEFTIAN)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERMERMEERE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Hgfﬁ%\ﬁiéﬁr/m@ja'z/m@]J//{&é;/%é%mkk5’3ﬂ
ZBBETT(ZE_FF)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

R G EAE

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
ERGTEAFETR R EENBHREERETHRUSETR)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and

EACCHEN) Ghgs]

RENIERS ARG

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HERRE b

BRIt &S RAFERAEAY
S ERIG RS AHAKEAR
FEMBEFENHBRARKER,

performance for the current and prior years and/or on the S FERE R FTE BT EE

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

THAT ARE MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR (Cont’d)

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES AS CURRENT
OR NON-CURRENT AND RELATED AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 (2020) (THE “2020
AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 NON-
CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS (THE “2022
AMENDMENTS”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the

current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of

liabilities as current or non-current, which

U specify that the classification of liabilities as current

or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity’s own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

RAMITEEMGREENTE
R R HASRT & (#F)

REFHEEHNENZERMGREE
RISt ERIERT & (4F)

FEREBETTERE1E (BT R) A
B EARBDIIERBUR BT BRE
EERBRE (ZEEF)(=F
TEFEITAR ) REBESEREISR
(BRI R)MERENFRBEBE( ==
2O HENI: 7

AEEERAFREEREAZFER
Z’X o

—E-TEEIIARHER S E IR
BEHE AR 1218 A RO E
BB MERIMES] - WBBESERR
BHIERD - BEF

o FIHABRERERNBKERRTEDN
RSB AERBRIERE - A58
mE  PBEIXEEEEL12(8A
RNEE B ENEB TR E -

s RBEHEBBUEBARZHTF
HERT  BmdRE - HER
AEMED TAETEE - WA
BEEBETHRNR  AIBXZHET
EREBERERAINERT
BETHE  REEERERE
BEFERIERFE/MIE - 2
JIR R EREBER AR TR
B ZEGRATTEHELER

MENVKIEMENENFE

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
THAT ARE MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR (Cont’d)

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES AS CURRENT
OR NON-CURRENT AND RELATED AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 (2020) (THE “2020
AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 NON-
CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS (THE “2022
AMENDMENTS”) (Cont’d)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that
only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is
assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments
also specify that covenants with which an entity must comply
after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect
the classification of a liability as current or non-current at the
reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants
within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity
discloses information that enables users of financial statements
to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable
within twelve months after the reporting period. This would
include information about the covenants, the carrying amount
of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that
indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification of liability
as current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been

2.

RAMITEEMGREENTE
R R HASRT & (#F)

ERMERRERZHITEEMGR
HEAEERRAEETE

N5 B AR A T 51 2 MR AR AE
ARERZ I EBHBERELRGE

issued but are not yet effective:
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

ERU B MEERNFEON N BB BREER
FTHRUEFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BBMBRE
CHEN)

\

ERIF05 R BB G R FE 285

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
BBV EERFEOR R B BM B ME LA E TR
CCHEN)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 21

RN EBRTA

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments?
BT EDERFTEMIEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture!

REEREBZNTRELEEIHNEEHESTE

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity?

RFE B RIFIFRE N A 49

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 118
BTG HREER G T

I Sl — 51158

Lack of Exchangeability?

BEAGERZE215% (BRI A) TRZ A] W Hate

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements*

BB HREERE185 BTG ERR A 25 K 3% FR

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 1 AISE TR B EIsk 2 B RAH 1 Hif

determined. LU

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 2 RIE-_RAF—A—Hs(ZBRAKBZF
S BRI AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 3 RZEBE-_NE—HA—HBa 2 BFERZF
SRR AR -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 KRB t+F—H—Hali2EFRBRZF
JE e

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards mentioned below, the directors of the Company

BRI BB M RS R S FER
NEBRIARIN - NAREEFAIEMFT

anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

BEMHFI B BMGHRE LA SRR
REAEFT ARG GER] RARRE A E
BRREEBERNTE -

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 7, AMENDMENTS
TO THE CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The amendments to HKFRS 9 clarify the recognition and
derecognition for financial asset and financial liability and add
an exception which permits an entity to deem a financial liability
to be discharged before the settlement date if it is settled in
cash using an electronic payment system if, and only if certain
conditions are met.

The amendments also provide guidance on the assessment
of whether the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement. The amendments
specify that an entity should focus on what an entity is being
compensated for rather than the compensation amount.
Contractual cash flows are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement if they are indexed to a variable that is not a basic
lending risk or cost. The amendments state that, in some
cases, a contingent feature may give rise to contractual cash
flows that are consistent with a basic lending arrangement both
before and after the change in contractual cash flows, but the
nature of the contingent event itself does not relate directly
to changes in basic lending risks and costs. Furthermore, the
description of the term “non-recourse” is enhanced and the
characteristics of “contractually linked instruments” are clarified
in the amendments.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 9 AND HKFRS 7, AMENDMENTS
TO THE CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7 in respect of
investments in equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are amended. In
particular, entities are required to disclose the fair value gain
or loss presented in other comprehensive income during
the period, showing separately those related to investments
derecognised during the reporting period and those related to
investments held at the end of the reporting period. An entity
is also required to disclose any transfers of the cumulative gain
or loss within equity related to the investments derecognised
during the reporting period. In addition, the amendments
introduce the requirements of qualitative and quantitative
disclosure of contractual terms that could affect the contractual
cash flow based on a contingent even not directly relating to
basic lending risks and cost.

The Group has various subsidiaries operating in jurisdictions
where the electronic payment systems are not instantaneous.
Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will apply
the exception to derecognise financial liabilities settled via such
electronic payment systems when the payment instruction
is initiated. On the other hand, for the settlement by the
subsidiaries’ customers via electronic settlement systems, the
Group can only derecognise the financial assets when cash
is deposited in the bank accounts of the subsidiaries, which
is different from the current accounting policies where the
Group derecognise the financial assets at the date the payment
instructions were initiated by the customers.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 18 PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE IN
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard,
while carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined performance measures in
the notes to the financial statements and improve aggregation
and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of the
new standard is expected to affect the presentation of the
statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future financial
statements. The Group is in the process of assessing the
detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS as issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take the characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases (‘HKFRS
16”), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3.

3.1

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S INTERESTS IN EXISTING
SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS Accounting
Standards). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Further information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to contracts with customers is provided in note 5.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception of the
contract. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.2
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)
Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

° a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease (see below for the
accounting policy for “lease modifications”).

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

LEASES (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income and net other gains and losses”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan are
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end
of each annual reporting period. In determining the present
value of the Group’s defined benefit obligations and the related
current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost,
the Group attributes benefit to periods of service under the
plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s service in later
years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than earlier
years, the Group attributes the benefit on a straight-line basis
from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in accumulated losses and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Cont’d)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement occurs. When
determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
an entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset using the current fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets before and after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, without considering the effect of asset
ceiling (i.e. the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtaiiment or
settlement, the Group determines net interest for the remainder
of the annual reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement and the discount rate used to remeasure such
net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the
period resulting from contributions or benefit payments.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.2
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS (Cont’d)
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and
L remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit
or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS Accounting Standard requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
Accounting Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the
time of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

TAXATION (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the lease liabilities and the
related assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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mEMBERRME
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Cont’d)
TAXATION (Cont’d)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land rights with substantially all risks and rewards
transferred to the Group are not depreciated and are measured
at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Equipment and machine in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, including costs of
testing whether the related assets are functioning properly
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is classified as right-of-use assets
and presented within “property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as “property,
plant and equipment”.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets, other than land rights with relevant risks and rewards
transferred to the Group and properties under construction,
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (*CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUSs,
with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY THE GRANTOR

A financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that (a) the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services rendered; and (b) the grantor has little, if any, discretion
to avoid payment, usually because the agreement is enforceable
by law. The Group has an unconditional right to receive cash
if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a)
specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any,
between amounts received from users of the public service
and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment
is contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure
meets specified quality of efficiency requirements. The financial
asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial
instruments” below.

OPERATING SERVICES

Revenue relating to operating services are accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue from contracts with
customers”.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO RESTORE THE
INFRASTRUCTURE TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

When the Group has contractual obligations which it must fulffil
as a condition of its licence for operating concession, that is (a)
to maintain the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability
and/or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the
service concession arrangement, these contractual obligations
to maintain or restore the infrastructure are recognised and
measured in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions”
below.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-
term borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third
party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless
the restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the
definition of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting use of bank
balances are disclosed in note 21.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
cost necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

2024 Annual Report

FEMBEBRRCENEEREX
EERREH(F)

EXEHRREH(F)

Rt
i

TFE AR Je A 23 FEM & 2 WK
EARR - BERARTVIZEASRLEE
E o Al AERTF NG EERA
BEFT T IRAMIHEMTRA o #17
HEMH A B EEE BZ ARG
BRARRAREE EITIHE TSR IE
BB

B

MAEEAERBESHRERSCEE
SIEE)RME - RASEBAEERTT
ZIERME - WAHEANSEEL RS
&t - Rl mEREdsE -

EERABEN SRS RERRET
BREAEIMBERENRERET  LEE
HETABNRRKETRARESE o HE
RETRREEMTOMEERSRE
B  HREEAZTREMENR
BERNERHHEEZZEEXN)



3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (‘HKFRS
15”). Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

U the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FAMBRERZBUEEREKX

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEBUREE(F)

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.2 EXEHBREHHE)

(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) SR IE(E)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) EHEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets TREENDBREETE(E)

(Cont’d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, EEMmeREEERBBIERIEAR

except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group BitE - HEEXAEREREEHR -

may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair 2R EWIFFER S » MMIFAR

value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if W EE AP IEHRE AR FE 35 £

that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent B OFTE AN ERS A R RS AR

consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business B BIAREE R~ a] By R ER i

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies. 2EWE2YIRERE AR ENERE

7 o
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e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified o RNYILHEREFERANEFBSFS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

U)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n e B RS Rk M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised
in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss is
not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and is transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income
and net other gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

3.

3.2

REMBRRCENEEREX
EERREHE(F)

EXEMBREHE)

SHMIAE)

SR ==

14 =D

E(42)

i

K
Qn\
m

ETRMEEDBRREAE(E)

DH\

K

iy PDERAERAEMEEWRIZL
BEifE2EBIA

HROBAEBEMEEKGER
AAEHEZBEHTAR  HE®E
B2REEYH (BREHHERE
BRI FORET E A B UAPTED) A K
SMNE W zm M B RN IR a5 AR o
Ei%ﬁ%lﬂﬁ%@ﬁZFﬁﬁEﬁﬂ

JIEATxﬁéﬁﬁ{%IET;%ﬁ /DZ
BERBENESTHER - LETR
PREEHTEZEREAEBNER
THHEM2E WS IFLEER
B MZEEHTAKILHER

AIERTN At 2 EIR SR 2 R
AP REREH DB E R

(i) HEESBBEMEMPRE AN
BEFfE2mTA
BREMEEPERAREFE

CERTEZIREHEBLRAA

FE ﬁ@ﬁﬁ“ﬁ?izw
REBBREMEE R ST R

R B E MBS Rat Hﬁu
BITRESG  HERELRE
B Rt BEISWEN
DHEEER  TEWEEERA
fE518 -

2N 5 B 7 WO R B 2 HE R
(S EZ%EE“¥IE:?QEZ%§ IS

Bt - BRIERE EHEETJQ%%H&
Bl #2 ?xéﬁX$E'WE/”:|Juna °
AR WFET’M&U\M&%@H&Z

SR EIEFRE AR -
REBRERERAT —T-NEFR

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, receivables under service
concession arrangements, debt instruments at FVTOCI, other
financial assets at amortised cost, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect assessment changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulffill its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

(v}  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, other receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements and other financial
assets at amortised cost where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these debt instruments. Such amount
represents the changes in the investment revaluation
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.2
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
income and net other gains and losses’ line item (note 7) as
part of the net foreign exchange gains/(losses);

o For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other income and
net other gains and losses’ line item (note 7) as part of
the net foreign exchange gains/(losses). As the foreign
currency element recognised in profit or loss is the same as
if it was measured at amortised cost, the residual foreign
currency element based on the translation of the carrying
amount (at fair value) is recognised in other comprehensive
income in the investment revaluation reserve;

o For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the investment revaluation reserve.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash
flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount
that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CLASSIFICATION AS DEBT OR EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

EQUITY INSTRUMENT

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST
Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Cont’d)
FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND LOSSES

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
‘Other income and net other gains/(losses) and losses’ line item
in profit or loss (note 7) as part of net foreign exchange gains
for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. For those which are designated as a hedging
instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Cont’d)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Cont’d)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

DEPRECIATION OF LAND RIGHTS

The Group accounted for the land rights held by a subsidiary,
PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestri (“RPSL”), in the Republic
of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) as freehold land because the
management considered that substantially all risks and
rewards are transferred to RPSL, even if at the end of the lease
term, titles do not pass to RPSL. Indonesian land rights are
granted for a stated period of time, with an extension option
at an immaterial cost. Land rights are also renewable after
the extended period term expires. Given the fact that land
rights can be extended at RPSL’s option, the management
considered that the term of land rights is sufficiently long to
indicate the transfer of risks and rewards from the government
to RPSL and the government’s interest in the residual value
of the underlying land is considered as insignificant. Also, the
management considered that RPSL has the ability and intent
to renew the land leases in perpetuity, the useful life of the land
rights is in perpetuity and hence are not depreciated.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

4.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT RELATED TO BUSINESS OPERATION IN
INDONESIA

Determining whether property, plant and equipment is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the property, plant and equipment has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash flows, further impairment
loss may arise. During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, no impairment loss was recognised after assessing the
recoverable amount of CGU which is principally engaged in the
sales of wood pellets in Indonesia.

The management’s assessment of property, plant and
equipment impairment is highly judgemental and is dependent
on certain key assumptions including the discount rate, growth
rates and budgeted sales, and gross margin, which are affected
by expected future market or economic conditions, particularly
those in Indonesia. An independent qualified professional
valuer is engaged by management to assist in estimating the
recoverable amount of the CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into the build-operate-transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangements in wastewater treatment facilities and biomass
power plant. The Group concluded that the BOT arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HK(IFRIC)-Int
12 Service Concession Arrangements, because the local
government controls and regulates the services that the Group
must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service
charge. In addition, upon expiry of concession right agreement,
the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
at nil consideration.

Revenue from the construction of waste water treatment
facilities and biomass power plant under the terms of a
BOT contract is estimated on a cost-plus basis in which the
construction margin is determined with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margins of market comparable at the time
of construction, and is recognised using the percentage-of-
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the relevant
contract. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group recognised the construction revenue of approximately
HK$18,979,000 (2023: HK$41,943,000).

Imputed interest income is recognised from time to time on
receivables under service concession arrangements on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method by discounting
the estimated future cash receipts over the service concession
period at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.

The relevant effective interest rate is determined with reference
to the yield of corporate bonds of comparable infrastructure
companies in the PRC and Indonesia.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS OF WASTEWATER
TREATMENT FACILITIES TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified level
of serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a specified
condition before they are handed over to the grantor at the
end of the service concession arrangement. These contractual
obligations to maintain or restore infrastructure, except for any
upgrade element, are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets (‘HKAS 37”), i.e. at the best estimate of the expenditure
that would be required to settle the present obligation at the
end of each reporting period. The estimation of the expenditure
requires the Group to estimate the expected future cash outlays
on major overhauls of the wastewater treatment facilities
over the service concession periods and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The amount of the provision for major
overhauls carried as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$14,594,000 (2023: HK$15,088,000). Further details of the
provision for major overhauls are set out in note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION OF ECL AND IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
UNDER SERVICES CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group individually calculates ECL for the receivables under
services concession arrangements. Such assessments are
based on internal credit rating, customers’ ageing and historical
default rates and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available with undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the internal credit rating and historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information about the ECL is set out
in note 33.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, The
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Indonesia. The
Group carefully evaluates tax implications of its transactions
in accordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes tax
provision accordingly. However, a judgement is required in
determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as there
are many transactions and calculations of which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the periods in which the determination is made.
Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 27.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

5. REVENUE XA
(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS RBEERSVHNEERASE
WITH CUSTOMERS
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Types of goods and services B REER
Operation services under service RRIG SRR T ) & B RS
concession arrangements 55,915 36,165
Construction services under service RS R e BE T B AR RS
concession arrangements 18,979 41,943
Sales of wood pellets SHE R RERL 15,596 14,190
Information technology services B R AR 12,499 3,688
Revenue from contracts with customers K B & F & 4IE A 102,989 95,986
Imputed interest income on receivables RF 4T HE TR ERGRIBESE
under service concession FLEWA
arrangements 18,627 17,293
121,616 113,279
2024 2023
—ECE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR B
A point in time AE R R, 71,511 50,355
Over time W8 5 31,478 45,631
Revenue from contracts with customers KB &P & 48 L2 A 102,989 95,986
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(i)

REVENUE (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS

WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts

e T RRME

5. ERWBAH)

() REEFRSVHERBASEHE)

UM REEEPAEKNEREARD B

with customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment BRI ESTERYEE o
information.
2024
—E-EF
PRC Indonesia Total
H 21)=1 #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Operation service under service RISIFEFREZHE T H) L&
concession arrangements 1% 37,461 18,454 55,915
Construction services BRIS T L HE T HYERRR
under service concession AR 75
arrangements 3,349 15,630 18,979
Sales of wood pellets S E KRR - 15,596 15,596
Information technology services & s EHS iR 7% - 12,499 12,499
Revenue from contracts with RERP AR EFERA
customers 40,810 62,179 102,989
Imputed interest income on ARIS R et e HE T e el
receivables under service SRIEHE R BUA
concession arrangements 7,297 11,330 18,627
Total revenue EONEE 48,107 73,509 121,616
BERRERBRAT ZENFEFEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

5.

(i)

REVENUE (Cont’d)

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS

WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont’d)

5. ERWBAH)

() REEFRSVHERBASEHE)

2023
—E-=4F
PRC Indonesia Total
H HE 45
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Operation service under service FRIEHFFFHEZHE THY &8
concession arrangements il 36,165 — 36,165
Construction services RIS T RE T HE T HYERR
under service concession AR 7%
arrangements — 41,943 41,943
Sales of wood pellets SHEARFERL — 14,190 14,190
Information technology services & ERHE IR - 3,688 3,688
Revenue from contracts with REBRPAHHEZEWA
customers 36,165 59,821 95,986
Imputed interest income on RIS FrETRE L HE T H R
receivables under service SIBHEEFEUA
concession arrangements 7,925 9,368 17,293
Total revenue EE LN 44,090 69,189 113,279

(i) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION
POLICIES

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

Revenue from provision of construction services are derived
from long-term contracts with customers. Such contracts
are entered into before the services begin. Under the term of
contracts, the Group is contractually required to perform the
services at the customers’ specified sites that the Group’s
performance creates and enhances an asset towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation, that best depicts the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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(ii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n e B RS Rk M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

REVENUE (Cont’d)

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE RECOGNITION
POLICIES (Cont’d)

OPERATION SERVICES

Revenue from operating income under service concession
arrangements is recognised at a point in time when the
operation service is rendered.

SALES OF WOOD PELLETS

The Group sells wood pellets to the wholesale market. Revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has been transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the wholesaler’s
specific location. Transportation and handling activities that
occur before customers obtain control are considered as
fulfilment activities. Following the delivery, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

The Group provides computer system analysis and technical
support services to customers. Such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs.

REVENUE FROM OTHER INCOME

Consultancy service income is recognised at a point in time
when services are rendered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

5. REVENUE (Cont’d) 5. BRWAHE)
(i) TRANSACTION PRICE ALLOCATED TO THE (i) PEERTERFEVBNRENES
REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION FOR Big
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RZE-WFE+_A=+—HBoEZE%
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 TROEFCREBITRHEDBITIHNR S
December 2024 and the expected timing of recognising EBREERLEINANTERR”BNT -
revenue are as follows:
2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Within one year —FR 94,835 71,798
More than one year but not more than ~ #238— {8 BB+
ten years 673,566 630,949
More than ten years Biet+5 469,808 559,471
1,238,209 1,262,218
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance NEREHTEBYOEITNSSERTER
obligations mainly relate to operation services to be satisfied RR RIS R aTRE L HE R & B HAE AR
during the operation period according to service concession HAOZERKEERR - EXFEESET
arrangements. The amounts disclosed above do not include BIEX R SR I #(E -
variable consideration which is constrained.
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. AEBEH

The Group is engaged in the construction and operation of
wastewater treatment facilities, construction and operation of
biomass power plants, sales of wood pellets and provision of
information technology services. Information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical locations of its manpower and customers,
including Hong Kong, the PRC and Indonesia. No operating
segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reporting
segments of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

SWREA )
SR B R

REEIZ A 2HEE LD #REI D 2 A
KREEDITMT

BE-E-_NF+-A=t+—-HLEFE

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
&8 B e st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FET
Segment revenue A EUA
— external sales —INEREEE - 48,107 73,509 121,616
Segment profit/(loss) DEEF,(EE) (24,432) 22,439 3,148 1,155
Unallocated expenses RAOERAX -
Profit before tax BRI AT & A 1,155
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_E_=F+-A=+—HLEE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
& R EIFE 1
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue DEUA
— external sales —INEBEHEE — 44,090 69,189 113,279
Segment profit/(loss) D EbaE A (E1E) (19,830) 20,295 235 700
Unallocated expenses RoOEmEX -
Profit before tax BRA AT AR A 700

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

LD BB & R BOR S MY FES P AL RO A
SESHEEAER - 2E0EHN,(E18)

& BRATIRELZ A /&EZEE’STE °
WIS E RSB MRBAF R TR EE
IRRAERZFTEELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segments:

As at 31 December 2024

SEWEHE)
SHRERAR

REBZAIZHREELENHBEIN 2 EE
REBERImT

R-B-WmE+ZA=+—H

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
5B i 2= et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FET
Assets ﬁE
Segment and total DEREBENGEE
consolidated assets F ,WTE 23,871 215,548 277,295 516,714
Liabilities aE
Segment and total NEFEBEREE R
consolidated liabilities BERRE 194,396 45,217 24,296 263,909
As at 31 December 2023 RZIE=F+=ZH=+—H
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B s HIfE wact
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHETT THET FETT
Assets BE
Segment and total DEGEEEBENGEE
consolidated assets EBE 26,798 219,276 280,027 526,101
Liabilities ﬁfi
Segment and total DR EBENGE B
consolidated liabilities &4 JE 188,743 34,926 23,532 247,201

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DWEEGE)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hth 3 EBEHE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or SADERR BRSO BEEZ S
segment assets: #
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-—E-_NFE+-_A=+—HIFE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
&8 B e st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FH&T FET
Additions to non-current NEIEMEBEE (FsE)
assets (note) — 4 1,106 1,110
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% « = M RETE
and equipment 343 95 5,197 5,635
Impairment losses under FEEEEBERRX TH
expected credit loss model BUEEE - 3,508 48 3,556
Loss on disposal of property, — HEWE - HE N EE
plant and equipment o) pi= - - 1,904 1,904
Reversal of write-down of FEE LU
inventories - - 812 812
Bank interest income RITH SHA 66 353 129 548
Finance costs BhE KA 12,058 27 32 12,117
Income tax expense FTiSH A2 850 6,927 2,701 10,478
BERRERBRAT ZENFEFEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

SEWEHE)
HthsEEH(F)

BE-_E_=Ft+-A=1T—-HLEE

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B H EIFE 1
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FHEIT FHET FHET
Additions to non-current WNEIEMEE E (FsE)
assets (note) — 14 6,121 6,135
Depreciation of property, VI - BB NG E
plant and equipment 343 245 4,983 5,571
Impairment losses under FEHEEEEEXTH
expected credit loss model B EE 997 26 — 1,023
Impairment losses on BN FIBEREEE
prepayments — 420 — 420
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEYE - BEKEE
property, plant and equipment  #9(I25) E918 — 21 (44) (23)
Write-down of inventories FEMUR — - 812 812
Interest income from mM—BBE=F1EHER
advance to a third party R B U A — 139 — 139
Bank interest income RITHIEUA 131 325 204 660
Finance costs BhE KA 11,914 789 7 12,710
Income tax expense FS B 291 5,410 3,117 8,818

Note: Non-current assets excluded receivables under service concession
arrangements, financial assets at FVTOCI, other financial assets at
amortised cost and prepayments and other receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical locations of
the assets are detailed below:

6.

SWRE ()
1 R

AEEREEZRED ZIEREDEE
o

2024 2023

—ECME —E=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFET

Hong Kong BE 171 514
PRC s 290 394
Indonesia EIfE 54,944 64,296
55,405 65,204

Note: Non-current assets excluded receivables under service concession
arrangements, financial assets at FVTOCI, other financial assets at
amortised cost and prepayments and other receivables.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

et IERB EE T BIERB TR T
JEYTROR ~ BB A EERER AR E
FENESREARE  REBHERAENE
th 2 % 2 LA R TR 08 I EL A R
b=

FHREEEFRHEH

TR AR E 2 E WA BEE10% A

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as FHEPEZERANT
follows:
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Customer A from the Indonesia ENfEn #BEFA N/A*
segment TiE A 12,579
Customer B from the PRC segment IS 2= FB 48,107 44,090
Customer C from the Indonesia ENfen & ~C
segment 45,414 51,311

*

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

- EN Sk LLONERN SEE U PNGE SR
HBiE10% ©

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

7. OTHER INCOME AND NET OTHER GAINS AND

H iy A LLB B fih il &3 B G5 4R 79

LOSSES #
2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Bank interest income RITFBHA 548 660
Interest income from advance M—R%E = HEEBTR
to a third party F2 WA - 139
Net foreign exchange loss SN E5 18 T RE (3,893) (1,352)
Government grants (note) BT 88 B (BT 5 ) 14 23
Consultancy service income BFRBBA 2,652 -
Impairment losses on prepayments  FE{ 3 IBRIEE B - (420)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,  HEW - FE RRED
plant and equipment (E518) e (1,904) 23
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary  #t #5fB A B8 Uz - 347
Others HAtb 1,249 814
(1,334) 234

Note: Government grants represented immediate financial support granted
by the local governments. There were no specific conditions attached
to the grants and the amounts were recognised in profit or loss upon

the receipt of relevant grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF
FINANCE COSTS 8. MERE
2024 2023
—E-ME —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Interest on borrowings fERA B 4,910 4,244
Interest on loans from related parties R AR B E R B 7,182 7,655
Interest on lease liabilities HEARENE 25 26
Increase in discounted amounts of PR A R P 7 0 T 2 A A
provision for major overhauls arising BAREEERRGIR S FRIE M
from the passage of time - 785
12,117 12,710
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9. FAHIEHEGREXTHRKESR
CREDIT LOSS MODEL
2024 2023
—ECmEF ZE=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Impairment losses recognised on: TR R IEER R REEE
— Trade receivables — B S REWGRIE 47 -
— Other receivables — E M FEYGRIR 3,509 26
— Debt instrument at FVTOCI —FEREMEARSEARBEE
ER LA - 997
3,556 1,023
BERRERBRAT ZENFEFEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. BRIRATEF

BBADEFE %R, GEA) |

2024 2023
—ECE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BREESZMHE)
remuneration):
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e SRR REMEA
kind 14,771 14,060
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 491 471
Defined contributions R EHFCRIRETE]
retirement plan (note (a)) (M5E(@) 1,101 1,278
Less: Amount capitalised in B NFEERNMERFIE
inventories (40) @277)
16,323 15,532
Depreciation of property, W - B NEREITE
plant and equipment 5,666 5,812
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories & @ Mz E & AL B TR I8 (31) (241)
5,635 5,571
Auditor’s remuneration R GIE=
— Audit services — IZERT5 1,082 1,082
— Non-audit services — I ERTE 160 160
1,242 1,242
Cost of operation services LB ARTER AR 24,176 16,571
Cost of construction services ERRBRFE A AN 16,604 37,034
Cost of inventories recognised HR BRI NFEKA
as an expense (including reversal (B FEIF & B EIUR8 12,000/ 7T
of write-down of inventories of (ZE2 =% : FEH#UFB812,000
HK$812,000 (2023: write-down of A7) (FiEE(o))
inventories of HK$812,000)) (note (b)) 18,326 15,772
Provision for major overhauls BBARBRISEE — 1,325
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d)

11.

Notes:

10.

(@) As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefits scheme

in future years (2023: Nil).

(b) Reversal of write-down of inventories HK$812,000 has been
recognised and included in cost of sales during the year ended 31
December 2024 due to an increase in the estimated net realisable

value.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

11.

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong

FRIZRRFI (A7)
BiRE

@ RZE-NFE+-_A=1+—H £T&EEH
158 4 AT R D R SR E R R KB A5 2
W BBHER(ZT==F - |) -

by HEZZ-_NWF+-—A=+—HIHF
€ - BRAEFT B IRFEE )N - BER
175 B B U 812,000 T 5T A S5 &

FRARAR o

EEREETHRARTMN

RBER EHRAREERRIEHIE T

BZFREBEERERITRABHHMN

Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: T
Salaries, Defined
allowances contributions
and benefits Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plan Total
e 2HR ERMH
e BNEH B RIREHE Ay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT TEx TERT TEx
Year ended 31 December 2024 BZ—_ZE_-INF+=§
=+-ALEFE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen FrEREE 120 840 - - 960
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) B R 554 (1THEH,) 100 1,822 18 18 1,958
Mr. Radius Suhendra BRALE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny FEIN 100 - - - 100
420 2,662 18 18 3,118
Non-executive director FUITES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BB E 100 298 25 22 445
Independent non-executive ~ BYEHTES
directors
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda fhlEg L 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung RXHERE 120 - - - 120
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REENT 100 - - - 100
340 - - - 340
860 2,960 43 40 3,903
BERFERERAT T _NFFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

1. EFERBRETHRARTHHHF)

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
Salaries, Defined
allowances contributions
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plan Total
e BHR ERHET
e EMiER HEEAL RIREHEl ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAT TR
Year ended 31 December 2023 EZ-ZE-=f+=f
=t-ALEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen ARERTE 120 840 - - 960
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) BB %&£ (1TH2%,) 100 460 18 12 590
Mr. Radius Suhendra BEALE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny BRALE 100 - - - 100
420 1,300 18 12 1,750
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian AL 100 31 26 23 460
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda LB+ 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung SN#tEsE 120 - - - 120
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EELL 100 - - - 100
340 - - - 340
860 1,611 44 35 2,550
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’s emolument shown above was for
his service as director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emolument shown
above were for their service as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three (2023: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2023: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

11.

12.

EEREETRARTHMAE)

BiHiTEEME R SR EE IR
RRABRAEEEBEEZRIE 2 F
B -

FERITE RS DB IERERR)
HEWMBRB ZEEMRERSE 2 H
A -

BT IFRTEEME IR REER
KRB 2 EEPTIREIRIE 2 H BN -

FATEESHREHTHABRENLF
BIREE MMz 28 -

LEmEHMESR

FRAREIEARFMERQE=S
(F==%: =2)EF  AFMZH
WHR ESCHEETT - F BT (=
To=%  MA)BIAANEENE
BETHARZSE IR R 2 FOIF
BT

2024 2023
—ENE —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e R NEMRER
benefits in kind 1,050 1,371
Discretionary bonus BIFIEAL 121 67
Defined contribution retirement plan  E2B TR AETE] 80 74
1,251 1,512

BRIRRIERERAT ZENEER 221
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

12.

hEmEHMESR (&)

HHBN L THEFALAEENSS
R R MR 1T -

Number of employees

EEEE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

REE T WNFEN T -=F+_A4
=+—HILFE AEERERTAE
B R L TE T EE A HEAFIE
AR A5 B A 42 D o BB

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FiIfSMAX
2024 2023
—EC-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current tax: BNERTHIE -

Hong Kong B 3 5
PRC Enterprise Income tax Bl ZEPTIEER 7,496 6,303
7,499 6,308

Under/(over) provision in prior years:  BEEEREN R, (HBRERE) -
Hong Kong B () 6)
PRC Enterprise Income tax Bl ZEPTIEE 929 (36)
926 42)
Deferred tax (note 27) EIEBIE (H5E27) 2,053 2552
10,478 8,818
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The withholding tax on distributable profits is calculated at the
rate of 5% (2023: 5%) on total dividend distributed from the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

No provision for Indonesian income tax had been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Indonesia during the year (2023: Nil).

13. FRiSIRBASZ(#)

REASHEMNEBREZEHS(KBE
ZEBDRAKER - NEEBERH
EREREBEZEEHMNEMAME
B o

EBFESHIEMEFE 2 (G5 25 m
FE16.5%( —FE—=14F :16.5%):1H -

RIEHEMERMETOA([REREHR
E D REEMRSBORE RG] - & B
B AR RN MIEFEH/525% -

A B R TR AR A AN 6 [ o B
NED KA RN %( — T - =F :
5%) 2 HETE -

F 7S S B O X S X BNV FE EE A A B

ARBUEM(ZE-=F : &) - @B
RRENEPTISHHAME -

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 13. FRABIRBAX(#)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FRNEFHEAL G A BRRNGTAT
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss A EERIN T ¢
as follows:
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit before tax MR F5 Rz A 1,155 700

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 2B A FT15FH 7 K 25%( =T ==

25% (2023: 25%) (Note) F25%):TE E’J%RIE(MT‘B 289 175
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NA[HIFIF S 2 TG E

for tax purpose 2,221 5,421
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax H/BRFUA 2 Fiis £

purpose (985) (637)
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior @1+ & E &2 GREER )

years 926 (42)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTIIBEIE 2 I iE 2 7,487 3,798
Utilisation of tax losses previously not  Eh A 4& Bk iE =R IE 6518

recognised - (19)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIER A IR E B M =58 2 B

difference not recognised o 60 (212)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEREEZMBA

subsidiaries operating in other HERR z 2

jurisdictions (370) (427)
Effect of withholding tax on the TEHTE AR R E R B E A

undistributed profits of the Group’s RoBis 2 52

subsidiaries in the PRC 850 757
Income tax expense for the year REFEZATERFX 10,478 8,818
Note: The domestic tax rate (which is PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate) MizE - RAASEEELTEMErEE R E

in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially NI E(RIP B EERIRE) o

based is used.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

DIVIDENDS 14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since 31 December
2024.

LOSS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

B2

BEREE_E_NER T _=F
+-—A=t+—BHIFERAQGEEBR
BRI SREZRMRE BT
F+ - A=+ BRIPEEZZRMNIM

BB o
BREBR

RATHEAANEIEERERNERNAE
ENT 58 -

2024 2023
—ECME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Loss for the purposes of basic loss RARETESREREEEiE
per share (8,728) (8,262)
Number of shares
RHEE
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
’000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FIRETESREREEZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss B I NAE FH 8K
per share 1,107,300 1,107,300

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
share for both years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 as
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years.

HREBEE-_FT_NFRER-T=F
T+ A=+ —HIEMEFEHRED B
TBELTER  NZMETE SRS
SESEEGRERBEER -

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥R - BB KRR

Construction Leased  Landand Equipmentand Office Motor
inprogress  Landrights  properties buildings ~ machines  equipment vehicles Total
EEIR 1hE BENE  1HRRT RGEREE  BOERG af:d it
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000
T T T TiEn T TiEx TiEn T
COST A&
At1 January 2023 R-F-=E-A-H 3,089 5,008 1,029 10498 149,508 963 760 170855
Exchange adjustments ERaE 19 64 - 127 1,770 1) @ 1977
Additions e 1438 - - 514 3569 32 22 6,135
Disposals ik - - - - (97) £0) - (997)
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=E+-R
1 January 2024 “t-BRZE-M
F-A-H 4,546 5072 1,029 11,139 153,890 1,254 1,040 177970
Exchange adjustments B % (188) 278) - 614) (8,398 (64) (51) 9,599)
Adtions e 3 - - 15 611 57 304 1,110
Transfer B (96) - - % - - - -
Disposals e (2,249) - - - (568) (52 655) (3520)
At 31 December 2024 WoB-mE
TZAzt-R 2,050 4,704 1,029 10,636 145,535 1,19 128 165,067
DEPRECIATION AND FEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2023 W-E-=%-F-H 496 2,628 18 5,880 96,617 425 507 106,726
Exchange adjustments 5 A% 6 40 - 62 1,100 ) 2 1204
Provided for the year ERiE - - 343 523 4,591 184 m 5812
Eliminated on dlsposals HERHE - - - - (939) (%8) - (976)
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=FFZF
1 January 2024 o o =S
£-A-A 502 2,668 516 6,465 101,370 565 680 112,766
Exchange adjustments L (19) (179) - (342) (5,899) 29 22 (6,436)
Provided for the year Enge - - 3 529 4,565 111 118 5,666
Eliminated on disposals HERHR (487) - - - (339) (19) (597) (1,434)
At 31 December 2024 W-B-mE+-R
=t-H - 2,49 859 6,652 99,745 632 179 110,562
CARRYING VALUES RAEE
At 31 December 2024 RZE-METZA
=t-H 2,050 2,29 170 3,084 45,790 563 549 55,405
At 31 December 2023 WZBZ=F
TZR=1-H 4044 2404 518 4674 52,520 689 360 69,204
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Land rights 0%
Leased properties Over the term of lease
Land and buildings 5%-10%
Equipment and machines 6%—25%

12.5%-25%
Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 12.5%-25%

Office equipment
Motor vehicles

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment)

16.

% - BB RxR(#F)

REBRIRKERER - LRWE  BER
AR (R TRERRSINIR T I F R
BHARORRRITE -

+ e 0%
e NS E
T REF 5%Z%=10%
R s 6%%25%
I NEE 12.5%%25%
yRE LAFAEEAEi12.5%%25%
(AR EA%E) 8
EEEESEKEA

ERREE(CAYE  BELRE)

Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEWE AE wst
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2024 R-BE-ME+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE 170 477 647
As at 31 December 2023 R-B=-=%+=RA=+—H
Carrying amount FHE 513 294 807
For the year ended BE-E-NE+=-RA=1+-—
31 December 2024 HILEE
Depreciation charge HEER 343 89 432
For the year ended BE-_ZE-=H+=-A=1+-—
31 December 2023 HIEEE
Depreciation charge FEER 343 113 456
BERRERBRAT ZENFEFEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

16. MK - BB BaxlE ()

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (Cont’d) XREEBEBEAN(HE)
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Expense relating to short-term leases BRAGEATRE 2 X 563 363
Total cash outflow for leases HEReRH B 1,083 864
Additions to right-of-use assets REFRAEEE 385 282

For both years, the Group leases various offices and vehicles for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
1 to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years). Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group through its subsidiaries engaged in the businesses
of wastewater treatment and biomass power in the PRC and
Indonesia and has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities in the PRC
and government-owned corporation in Indonesia, respectively,
on a BOT basis in respect of its business. These service
concession arrangements generally involve the Group as an
operator to (i) design and construct wastewater treatment facility
and biomass power plant (the “Facilities”); and (i) operate and
maintain the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability on
behalf of the grantors for periods ranging from 20 to 25 years
(2023: 20 to 25 years) (the “Service Concession Periods”),
and the Group has been guaranteed to receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. The Facilities
will be transferred to the respective grantors at the end of the
Service Concession Periods for BOT.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the Facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities or government-owned corporation will control and
regulate the scope of services that the Group provides to the
Facilities and retain the beneficial entitlement to any residual
interest in the Facilities at the end of the terms of the Services
Concession Periods. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group
and the relevant governmental authorities or government-owned
corporation that set out, inter alia, performance standards,
mechanisms for adjusting prices for the service rendered by the
Group, specific obligations levied on the Group to restore the
Facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Periods, and arrangements for arbitrating
disputes. The service concession arrangements do not
contain renewal options or any termination rights to any of the
contracting parties.

The construction of biomass power plant was completed in
July 2024 and the Group commenced operation of the biomas
power plant since late July 2024.

17. BRBISFFFIERIETRRIRIR

REEFE BB ARERERENEHRSE
VEIKEIE RAEYEEBER - WE D5
BE TP BB E R BB R FI5
H ¥ IEBOTEER] . % TH RS a7 1
ZHE o RERBI T RETHE—RSRA
SBEEREER()RT BRI TKERE
JIEREYMERER([ZERE]) &
(VAT T20226F (ZE =4 : 208
255 )W EARE A ([ BRAG4S5THA ) R &R
F ALAIETE B A] BRAG /KT 4518 I 4 2
LR MAEBECERESHERL
HRBSREFENR - ZEREHE
BOTHI R4S rTr Bl RIS SRR S B Y
YA

AREBERTEARERZFRENNE Y
% BB MR - AT - BB
S BB ARG R EE AR R ZE
R H IR EE - W IRTS AT E
AE RS (R G H5% T Ak 2 (EATRIgR A a1
ZEBRIER - ZERIGEFF LA
SERBBBTHERKEA QR M
R 2B X R (HE R ) 78 1 P AR
R EREARWTE  NEEMREHE
RISV EIRFHERS) - NRE AR
FrRTHIRE RIS H 32 5 R IR E AR E AR
BKEMAREZFERE - WEREMS
EITRR 2 T - RIBFFFRLZETE
SRR RS IR 2 E AR L

e

1 o

EYEEBREN T _NFLATK
L BAREEE-T-_NFEAK
P EZEMEHER -
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17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17. BREBFFRERBE TR HRIE

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (#8)
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 4 (2023: 3) service NR-ZZT-NE+—A=+—H Kx&EH
concession arrangements and a summary of major terms of BAE(ZZE =% : 318) RI5F
these arrangements is as follows: 2 ZELHNEEZRTHMENT
Designed
Name of company Type of service processing Service concession
as operator Name of facility Location Name of grantor concession equipment capacity period
EREEBNAAAR RiEEH fig RTAEH BRGTERGEY  RHEEED it Sche
PEELSKEEERAA  RugaoHengfa Rugao Country,  Rugao Economic BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 25 years from 2007 to
(Rugao Hengfa Water Municipal and Nantong Ciy, and Technological treatment 2032 and extended to
Treatment Company Limited) ~ Industrial Wastewater  the PRC Development Zone 2035in 2009
(‘Rugao Hengfa")* Treatment Facility Administrative
(Phase ) Commitiee
MREFTKREARAT  MRBRETHRIZS PERRTNRE MREERORER  BROKEEOBOT 2000040 6 - ERLERTR
([meES]) KRRk —5) ] _i__%t IR-E
SNERRE-E-0E
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Rugao Country, ~ Rugao Economic BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 20 years from 2015 10 2035
Municipal and Nantong City, and Technological freatment
Industrial Wastewater  the PRC Development Zone
Treatment Facility Administrative
(Phase Commitee
meE% PREETHRIZS HEEATMRE MREERWREE AEUKEEMBOT 200004 0% F-F-RERHE
KEERiE(—H) E%e “EoREE
Rugao Hengfa Rugao Hengfa Rugao Country, ~ Rugao Economic BOT onwastewater 10,000 tonnes 10 years from 2025 10 2035
Municipal and Nantong Ciy, and Technological treatment
Industrial Wastewater  the PRC Development Zone
Treatment Facility Administrative
(Expansion and Committee
Enhancement Project)
meE% MREETHRIES TEERTMRE DREENORIE  BEYKRENBOT 1000040 105 #-5-0EEHE
KRR i(FE 3 ZEoREE
REYEER)

PT Sentosa Jaya Pumama Sadai 10MW Biomass ~ Bangka, Indonesia  PT PLN (Persero) BOT on biomass power 12 Megawatts 25 years from 2024 to 2049

("'S4P") Power plant
PTSentosa JayaPumama  DRIMWENEER  DRANS MEERENRE  BEENEYEEN 124N 25 - MERHE
([SJp)) ER BOT -% mjmt
* The official name of the operator is in Chinese. The English translation * LEENE 7‘7‘%%7%':}3 XETE - BHYZ
is for identification purposes only. EEEZEHRS2E
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group is
granted the rights to use the property, plant and equipment
of the Facilities and certain related land during the Service
Concession Periods. The Group is required to surrender these
assets to the grantors at a specified level of serviceability
at the end of the respective service concession periods. As
at 31 December 2024 and 2023, while some of the related
land has been registered under the names of the relevant
group companies, the title certificates with respect to certain
land use rights of the Facilities to which the Group’s service
concession arrangements relate have not been registered under
the names of the relevant group companies. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to
the lawful and valid occupation or use of these buildings and
land to which the above-mentioned land use rights during the
respective concession periods for nil consideration for providing
wastewater treatment and biomass power services under the
relevant BOT agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised
interest income of HK$18,627,000 (2023: HK$17,293,000),
operation service revenue of HK$55,915,000 (2023:
HK$36,165,000) and construction service revenue of
HK$18,979,000 (2023: HK$41,943,000).

17. RFBIFFFERIETRIBIRIR

(#)

RIS - AR EEER
RN AR SR - B
BRREARET AL - AKEA
B BRSSP R AR
WATRRSAEBRETA - R -F
“MER-F-=H+-A=+—R
BRI R R SR
% T L AR LR E R B
RERMEEARNE T - B AL
ST AR B AR AR ER © AAR
EER A AEERFAHBOTHHA
BRI TRRIE R ENE R B
BMBBR P A A sk
BEL Lt L BEEMOR SRR
i

HE_T-_NF+_A=+—HLHF
& ANEEERF B 18,627,000/
T(ZF - =4 : 17,293,000 7T )
LB RS2 % Uk A 55,915,000/ 7T (=
T~ =4 : 36,165,0005 7T ) M2 &R
&L IR A18,979,0008 T (ZE ==
F 1 41,943,000 7T) °

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

17. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

The Group’s receivables under service concession

arrangements are as follows:

(#F)

17. RFBIFFFERIETRIBIRIR

AR B RIS AT PR 2 B T B0 R UG IR 10

T

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Receivables under service concession  ARFGAF S 2 BE T 8 FE U /1B
arrangements 364,193 364,781
Less: portion classified as current assets J& : D88 A REEEREL D (36,738) (28,182)
Portion classified as non-current assets 938 AIERENE EHEH 327,455 336,599

The following is an aged analysis of receivables under service
concession arrangements, presented based on the invoice

ARISAF P L BE T KGR IR IR R A

HIZ D2 Rl AT an T

date:
2024 2023
—ECOE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Billed within 3 months SEARERAZRE 19,700 138,777
Billed between 4 to 6 months 4Z6RAEHAERE - 4,503
Unbilled (note) EENGEELEAC D) 344,493 346,501
364,193 364,781

Note: The balance included contract assets from construction contracts as
the rights to considerations have not yet to be unconditional.

As at 1 January 2023, receivables under service concession
arrangements from contracts with customers amounted to

HK$326,825,000.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

2024 Annual Report

BieE A ER R IR A R E (W R R R B IR
HIZREREAONENEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND DEBT
INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

18. BRAHEMSEBRRLREHE

HemMEERSAREMZEKR
BROREHENHNRBIR

2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Financial assets at fair value through BREMEERRIEARE
other comprehensive income FAEMCREE
Listed equity investment (note a) ERERE (HiEa) 6,162
Debt instrument at fair value through BEEM IR AR A
other comprehensive income FFTEMEBIA
Investment in listed bond, with fixed KERBB LT EMES -
interest of 6.13% and maturity date EE 2% A6.13% ' EIHAR A
on 21 February 2024 listed in ZE-NF-A=+—H
Hong Kong (note b) (Ff5ED) 81 81

Notes:

(@)

Detall

The directors of the Company have elected to designate the
investment in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in
profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of
holding this investment for long-term purposes and realising their
performance potential in the long run. No dividends were received on
this investment during the year (2023: Nil)

The investment is held by the Group within a business model whose
objective is both to collect their contractual cash flows which are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding and to sell the financial asset. Hence, the investment is
classified as at FVTOCI.

s of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

@ ARFEZCEEBZBETARER
ERBBHEMEMBERARERFE
FREARERR/NERTRAZKER
RENEHRBE TR EEFEZ
REERMAGZIEREREEREN
FEERE o 6 P90 B Bh A2 1R B R AR B
(ZF==F:8|)-

o) FZREHAEENERRUBMANRSE
NE(BERAERAREBERSENTR
ZXM) RhESBMEENEBERS
BBt ZRERDB/BEREME
EWER AR ERTE

AERHE R IBBNPIRESS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST

19. FRMHEFENAtENEE

2024 2023

—F-mE ZTO=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Bank deposits (note) HRITIF R (FEE) 2,415 2,556
2,415 2,556
Less: Allowance for credit losses o EEEEEE (2,415) (2,556)

Note: These represent two deposits of approximately HK$1,938,000 and
HK$477,000 (2023: HK$2,051,000 and HK$505,000) placed with
Koperasi Simpan Pinjam Indosurya Cipta (“KSPIC”), which is in the
process of debt restructuring. Based on the Jakarta District court
order, KSPIC is required to return the deposits to the Group, by
60-month instalments and 48-month instalments starting from June
2021 and January 2021, respectively. The bank deposits are interest-
free.
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ZERITFEHIEMED B4 /51,938,0007 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

20. BHEBREA - AREREM

OTHER RECEIVABLES Bk IA
2024 2023
—ECmEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FHT
Trade receivables 2 5 EWEIE 2,324 3,670
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (47) —
2,277 3,670
Other receivables H b pE Y 38 2,878 2,885
Advance to a third party (note) m—&E = HEHRRER(FE) 4,698 5,111
Prepayments for BOT construction BOTER AT IR 686 608
Prepaid expenses AR 2,738 1,430
VAT recoverable EqEEE Y] 1,407 3,404
Consideration receivable for disposal of BFFEHEME AT Z
a subsidiary in prior year FEYWAE 10,700 17,243
23,107 30,681
Less: Allowance for credit losses on B M RE =T ERER SR
advance to a third party ZEEERE (4,698) (1,301)
18,409 29,380
20,686 33,050
Analysed as: DR
Non-current IERED 300 316
Current mED 20,386 32,734
20,686 33,050

Note: The advance bears interest of 10% per annum, is repayable on
demand and secured by pledge of 40% equity interest in a private
company incorporated in the PRC.

As at 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contract with
customers amounted to HK$414,000.

BiEE  BARIRERIE10%E 8 - REREE -
3 A — R o B B S A A 2R Y
A0% RAE (I o

R-F-_=F—A—R REFFAH
H) & 5 eI R IR /5414,000/8 7T ©

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

21.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The Group had a policy of allowing a credit period of 30-60
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net
of allowance for credit losses at the end of reporting period
presented based on the invoice date:

20. BHEBHRE « AARAREM

FENRIR (#7)

AEENBRABILESOEBOHEEE
Hy o RIS EIRME 5 W IE (Hk
EEEBBRE)IREE AR KRR
DHITEAT -

2024 2023

—E-mEF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

0-60 days 0&60H 2,277 3,663
Over 60 days 60H A £ - 7
2,277 3,670

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2024, pledged deposits of HK$30,809,000
(2023: HK$22,006,000) were held by the Group to secure its
bank borrowings and will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, restricted demand deposits of
HK$5,474,000 in relation to a service agreement signed by
SJP with an independent third party were held by the Group for
building and operating a power plant in Indonesia with maturity
of 3 to 5 months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, restricted bank deposits carry interest

at market rates which range from 1.75% to 2.25% (2023: 2.25%
t0 4.7%).

2024 Annual Report

21.
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ZRFBITERLURARA®
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RZZ-NF+=-—A=+—0 ;A&
B 5 M E 77 5030,809,0007% 7T
(ZZ— =4 : 22,006,000/ 7T ) E AR
HERITERAER - WiEHEEIER
IRITIE FREFRERR -

RZZT-=F+-A=+—0 ;A&
BB 1Y SR H)E B 7 505,474,000/%8
TCEESIPE — BB = H LR ENE E
EREBRERFINRSHEER -
WA REHLEREIESE A EIE -
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RITTERIR1.75%22.25%( —E ==
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents include
demand deposits and short term deposits for the purpose of
mesting the Group’s short term cash commitments, which carry
interest at market rates range from 0.001% to 0.25% (2023:
0.001% to 0.25%).

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date:

21. ZRFBTERLURREREA®
FRM ()

R-ZE-_NMF+-_A=+—H8 BsK
ReSEYREAREASEEEHE
CHREMNERTRARERATER  %F
TFRIR0.001%E0.25%( — T - =4 :
0.001%%£0.25% ) TS FIEFHE. ©

EFHE BB ST 5E33 -
22, BHEFMRIE

S ENFUBIREZ B YR Z RS
ran T

2024 2023

—E-EF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FBT

0-60 days 3,382 2,398
61-90 days - 102
Over 90 days 140 470
3,522 2,970

The average credit period granted on purchase of goods and

services is 30 days.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

B ER M LRERONFHEERR

30H -

23. HtEEFRIARERA

2024 2023

—E_ME —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FAT

Trade deposit received BRE SEE - 5,896
Other payables HAnFER IR 4,397 2,056
Accruals 7,899 6,834
12,296 14,786

BERRREREBRLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # %= —ZE — i+ — H=+—H I FF

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

24. BFRABHREA

2024 2023
—E-EF T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET AT
Non-trading in nature: FEHME -
A related company —fEE R A 34,810 33,631
A close family member of a shareholder —#2 J& 5 #93T 37 21,235 20,244
Close family members of directors EERIAE 19,500 21,840
A shareholder — 2R 26,350 26,350
101,895 102,065
Less: Amount that is expected to settle 3] : TEEARM21E A& A E W HI/E
after 12 months shown under ERBEBEZ A
non-current liabilities (94,634) (70,389)
Amount that is expected to settle within -~ FEEAA 1218 A NEE 5 IEREN B
12 months shown under current B2 IR
liabilities 7,261 31,676

The amount due to a related company, which is wholly owned
by a substantial shareholder of the Company, is unsecured,
interest-bearing at 6% to 8% (2023: 6% to 8%) per annum and
repayable within 1 to 3 years (2023: 2 years).

The amount due to a close family member of a shareholder is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% to 8% (2023: 6% to 8%) per
annum and repayable within 2 to 3 years (2023: 2 years).

The amount due to close family members of directors is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 8% (2023: 8%) per annum, and
repayable within 1 to 2 year (2023: 1 year).

The amount due to a shareholder is secured by the legal charge
on 14% equity interest of the Company held by a shareholder,
interest-bearing at 6% (2023: 6%) per annum and repayable
within 3 years (2023: 3 years).
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REM BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF
25. BORROWINGS 25. f&®
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Bank borrowings (note (a)) RITER (KL () 75,392 58,200
Other borrowings (note (b)) H b (FEE (o)) 24,825 23,867
100,217 82,067
Notes: PizE
(@) Bank borrowings of approximately HK$18,000,000 (2023: (a)  #J18,000,0007 7t ( —Z — =4 : 18,000,000
HK$18,000,000) are secured by personal guarantee of an executive BT MR TR ENITESRE T ERED
director, Mr. Chan Kwan and unlimited corporate guarantee of the BABRER AR B ER A RERIEER -
Company.
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$18,000,000 (2023: #718,000,0007% 7T ( == = =4 : 20,000,000
HK$20,000,000) are secured by mortgage of a leasehold property of BIL)WIRITIERBE — R EREEANEEY
a beneficial owner and personal guarantee of Mr. Chan Kwan. FIR1BE R IR B S A IR (B A B IREHHR o
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$28,750,000 are secured #928,750,0007% 7T #) #R 17 {& 7K F1 £930,809,000
by term deposits of approximately HK$30,809,000 and personal VTR TE BRTE R S PR 2 S AR AR AV 1B A B IR 1E
guarantee of Mr. Chan Kwan (2023: HK$20,200,000 secured by IR (=T = = 4F : 20,200,000/ T HI IR 1T 1&
term deposits of approximately HK$22,006,000) (see note 21). X 4922,006,0007% 7T K FE HATF SR VBRI (R,
MizE21) o
Bank borrowings of approximately HK$10,642,000 (2023: HK$Nil) #910,642,000/870( Z T Z=F : T L) KR
are secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Chan Kwan. ITE SR BRE S A IR A B A BRI IR -
(o)  Other borrowings of approximately HK$14,867,000 (2023: (o)  #914,867,000# 7T (= F = =4 : 14,867,000

HK$14,867,000) are secured by personal guarantee of a close family
member of a director.

Other borrowings of approximately HK$958,000 (2023: HK$Nil) are
secured by corporate guarantee of RPSL.

Other borrowings of approximately HK$9,000,000 (2023:
HK$9,000,000) are unsecured.

BT EMETE — R EF AR HA(E
AFERIEEIR -

#1958,0008 T(=ZE - =% : TETT)NHM
fE TR HRPSLAY X A (RIEIRIR

#99,000,0008 TR HMER(ZE = =4F :
9,000,000/ 7T) AR -

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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25. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 25. {E(4#)
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are analysed FEFRHRREERS QER B ST
based on contractual repayment date as follows: /IR
Bank borrowings Other borrowings
RITER H At A=K
2024 2023 2024 2023

—ECoNE —FEo=F ZE-ZNE — T -4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FET FBT FHET
On demand or within one &Sy
year —F K 75,392 40,200 9,000 23,867
Within a period of e —18
more than one year TEBBEMER
but not exceeding HARTIA
two years - 18,000 15,825 —
75,392 58,200 24,825 23,867
Less: Amounts due within o —FEREIHR
one year shown FEREIE
under current liabilities (&2 58 (75,392) (40,200) (9,000) (23,867)
Amounts shown under TIWEFEREI BB Y
non-current liabilities ELE| - 18,000 15,825 —

240 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

25. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

25. fEw(#)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: AREEEROMONT
2024 2023
—E-OEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FA&TT
Fixed-rate borrowings [&]7E F & & 51 23,867 23,867
Variable-rate borrowings EENF R G 76,350 58,200
100,217 82,067

The Group’s variable-rate borrowings of HK$46,750,000 REB®ZEHHNE

(2023: HK$38,200,000) carrying interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate plus a premium, HK$18,000,000 (2023:
HK$20,000,000) carrying interest rate at Hong Kong Dollar
prime rate deduct 2%, HK$10,642,000 (2023: Nil) carrying
interest rate at Loan Prime Rate deduct 0.9% and HK$958,000
(2023: Nil) carrying interest rate at Jakarta Interbank Offered
Rate plus 1%, respectively. Interest rate is reset each one
month or six months.

The ranges of effective interests (which are also equal to
contractual interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as
follows:

= =
46,750,000 B oL ( = T = = &
38,200,000 & 7t ) * 18,000,000 /& T
(Z—=F = =4 : 20,000,000 7T ) *
10,642,000 T(Z T =_=F : )X
958,000 TL(ZE—=F : ) * 55l
REBRITRAEFREINGE - BxE
BHEF2% « BERREEFERFH0.9%
M HENZERITREREM %ETE o F
F—EASNEAER

ZER B (5 R R BRI R (TREL KD TE FJ =R
MREEMT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Effective interest rate: ERRFIE
Fixed-rate borrowings lmﬂ FETR 8% 8%

Variable-rate borrowings S ENF AR

2.21%-8.30% 3.79%-5.65%

As at 31 December 2024 borrowings of approximately
HK$9,867,000 (2023: HK$9,867,000), HK$10,642,000 (2023:
HKS$NIl) and HK$958,000 (2023: HK$NIl) were dominated in
United States dollars (‘US$”), Renminbi (‘RMB”) and Indonesia
Rupiah (“IDR”), while the remaining balance was dominated in
HKS.

R_ZTE-_WE+_A=+—8" 5
En([Ex]) AEM(ME#J)
MENEE(TENRE ) FTENERS
BI#) 59,867,000 L ( — T - =4 :
9,867,000 7T) ~ 10,642,000 7T (=
T =% TH7T)K958,0008 (=
—=4F : THIT) - REELNBITAHE ©

BERRIZERERD R MEFFR
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEAR
2024 2023
—E-ME —EC=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHERE
Within one year —FR 342 451
Within a period of more than one year i —F{BNBBEMF 2 HifEA
but not exceeding two years 188 253
Within a period of more than two years ~ #RBRE(E TN BB A E 2 HERA
but not exceeding five years - 37
530 741
Less: Amount due for settlement within 35 : 7218 3 R B HAAE Z 051 /E
12 months shown under current MENBE 2 IE
liabilities (342) (451)
Amount due for settlement after 12 R121E B & BI BB E W0 51 1
months shown under non-current ERBEZFE
liabilities 188 290
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to FEANHE e &R INEES IS E TR
lease liabilities range from 2.29% to 11.76% (2023: from 2.29% RN F220%E11.76%( —E-=4F:
to 7.48%). 2.20%%E7.48%) °
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. BERAAR
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MEEHBARRENME » B TIEL
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MIBEENBED P o LT AEH
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred 2P G 7 IEERIBLES DT
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2024 2023
—EC_ME —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Deferred tax liabilities EERITEAE 25,971 24,963
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 27. BERBERARE)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) LAT?%E’\$¢F&L1£¢FE§H I EE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BIETRIBEE/(BE)RESH -
prior years:
Temporary
difference
related to
Provision service Retirement  ECL provision
formajor  concession  Withholding benefit of other
overhauls  arrangements taxes obligation receivables Total
SRHETHE -4 T
EX  ZHEBN gk RENEH

RERE  EREER Rk BHERE REERBA it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TiEL TEL TEL

At 1 January 2023 RZF-=F-A-H 3,339 (25,793 (174) 10 27 (22,891)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (Ms8)/3 A& 527 (3.011) (203) 2 12 (2552)
Exchange adjustments R ©9) 559 23 - ) 480
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F+-f=1-H

1 January 2024 k=E-ME-F-H 3,773 (28,245) (954) 3 430 (24,969)
(Charged)/credited to proft or loss (Mk8)/3 A& - (2719 (199) o1 774 (2,053
Exchange adjustments B g% (124) 1,168 % (6) (29 1045
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-ME+=B=1-H 3649 (29,796) (1,117) 118 1,175 (25,971)
As at 31 December 2024, the Group has unused tax losses RZBE_WNF+_A=+—H  ~x&EH
of approximately HK$111,380,000 (2023: HK$100,592,000) ﬁﬂi@jﬁﬁ FRIEETE 49111,380,000/8 7T
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset (ZZE==4 : 100,592,000/ 7T ) A] A
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due VEHRSE R A o B A A T8 8] R 3 5|
to the unpredictability of the future profit streams. Included R MU ERASBHEERER
in unrecognised tax losses are loss of HK$107,590,000 FRHEEFRIBEE - AERIEEIE
(2023: HK$99,370,000) that could be carried forward for a FA#9107,590,000/8 T (—Z T == E
maximum of five years. Other tax losses may be carried forward 99,370,000/8 70 ) x % Al 5 F 4F -
indefinitely. th 750 TE 5 18 AT LA PR B 45
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27.

28.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$6,649,000 (2023:
HK$6,886,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group has contractual obligations to
maintain the wastewater treatment facilities to a specified
level of serviceability and/or to restore the facilities to a
specified condition before they are handed over to the relevant
governmental authorities at the end of the Service Concession
Periods. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
the facilities, except for any upgrade element, are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 37, i.e. at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
future expenditure on these maintenance and restoration costs
are collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation
basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where
appropriate.

As at 31 December 2024, provision for major overhauls of
HK$14,594,000 (2023: HK$15,088,000) has been made for
wastewater treatment facilities.

Details of service concession agreements are set out in note 17.
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27.

28.

EIERARIR(A)

R-ZE-_NFE+-—A=+—H £A&EE
A O] R B 1 2= R 496,649,000 7T
(ZZT - =4 :6,886,000/87C) - AR
EEHE FE AR A1) T AT R DA S T AR BT
B ZRE 2 Al REET K - BT B RS
AT SR = REERECERIBEE °

REFBEDRMERE - EPBIKIZA
SNE R ERINEIR B E T IREBE B
MI0%EFEIM - ZREB —FTF/\
F-A—HBER  ERAR_TTLF
TZA=+T—BZRESNEFN - K
Bz FINEREEMERDEERE R
FIMABIRAD - RIAT IR EUER R 5% B
B - At - AEBEBRELEFRTE
BB ARE —TEN\F—A—H
FEFTIS 27 M 7k B0 A B BN BN AR -

EXEE R

RIBAREBFTR] S A RIS AT S 19
REBEAREENET  URESKE
BRI - HEREN S 8 E AR AR 7K
TR,/ R RIS AT ER AR - B R
MR T A MBUTHER - ISEEEE
REMR - REFEEREHEHNAET
(BRFT BB DN LB B G ERIFEI7
ST ARER LA E - AR WmEBRET
RREEEMBHRAXNKEDBT SR
R - AR SRE RERERNARRH
XEBERIERRE] o At EERSEE
WA W REE RIER]

RZE-_WMF+-_A=+—HB" B
MEKEEXBITIRE XN R E #
#14,5940008 T (T = = F :
15,088,000 7T) °

RIS RTHE R O RE B B IR 17 ©



e MR R
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF
29. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 29. ELFKRE
Number of Share
shares capital
RoEAE [} &
000 HK$’'000
TFhx FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each X E(E0.0001 8 oA A%
Authorised JETE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R-Z—_=%—H—H -
1 January 2024 and _7__$+ A=+—H"
31 December 2024 —ZEME-A—BK
“E-NFE+—-HA=+—H 3,800,000 380
Issued and fully paid BEITRERE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R-_ZE-_=%—F—H »
1 January 2024 and —E-=F+-/F=+—H"
31 December 2024 —E-MFE—H—BRK
—ENF+ZA=+—H 1,107,300 111

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES

30. f#fm

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(A) OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve comprises HK$113,780,000 debit reserve
resulting from the share swap pursuant to the Group
reorganisation and HK$82,304,000 credit reserve resulting
from capitalisation of shareholders’ loans during the year

ended 31 December 2014.

(B) GENERAL RESERVE

The transfers from retained earnings to the general
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

WAFENMBEFE  AEBFHBHE
REZSFH NGRS EBEK o

(A) FHftbiEoE

Hih@ERREREAEBEEAN
R 1D B EE £ #9113,780,0005 7T
EBHRELREE T —NFE+ =
A=+ BHUIFERRERER
b 4 #982,304,0005% 7T & 5 %
15 o

(B) —MGEIR

RIEE BRI SE R AR K

DA B BB B A B A48

AFREA - REATDERE
— ARG MH -
BERRERERAT —TMFFR
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31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

31. MREDELEZRARHIE

TRAVBERDELECASEREE
B SRR NMFEREEH - BETD
EEZABERERSREBIARIA SR
ENAEBGERERERTHERR
BEBEANRSRERB AR -

Amounts
due to
related Lease Interest
parties Borrowings liabilities payables Total
FEfS BB T
FE R HEEE EAFIR w@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHT FAT THL FHT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=F—f—H 105,544 61,867 995 140 168,546
Financing cash flows BERLTE (11,134) 20,200 (601) (4,244) 4,321
New leases entered HEIME - - 226 - 226
Exchange adjustments B 3% - - (5) - (5)
Interest expenses FIBRY 7,655 - 26 4,244 11,925
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F
1 January 2024 +ZA=+—-8%
—E-F—-A—H 102,065 82,067 741 140 185,013
Financing cash flows BMERERE (7,352) 18,385 (520) (4,892) 5,621
New leases entered HEIME - - 299 - 299
Exchange adjustments B 5 3% - (235) (15) - (250)
Interest expenses FEHX 7,182 - 25 4,910 12,117
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-NF+=A
=t+—H 101,895 100,217 530 158 202,800
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the amounts due to related parties, borrowings and
lease liabilities as disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 26 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and non-controlling interests.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.

33.

BEEREER

REEEBAEAUBRRAEEETE
BRI R EEERE [
i 2 B E B M 2 P RR R A
EIHRA(L - NEBH IR EEF

AEBAEMDEERTE -
B BRI 24 - 25 K26 RE M
RIBTIOR - R REEARE - 0%
R BRSSEN AR A ARG
W (R ECBITRA - R RIEER
) -

BB T PR EARE - F R
—8n  EEBEREANKANEAELR
BEXRBENER - RIFEEERHEER
& AEBBERIRMBE - BT
i R EERL - ARBITHE S ED
RAEBFEHEBREARRE -

&MTHR

(A) &RT AR

2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost 1 $4R ANET 2 S RE E 445,948 449,944
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FRHEMEPEARREAAEGE
FfE=T A 6,162 —
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BREMEEREEREARENE
MEKIA 81 81
452,191 450,025
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost & R At EH SR A& 218,460 202,629
BRRRERERAT B NFEFR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
receivables under service concession arrangements,
financial assets at FVTOCI, debt instrument at FVTOCI,
other financial assets at amortised cost, trade receivables,
other receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related parties, borrowings and
lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.

() Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the holding of foreign
currency assets and liabilities will affect the Group’s
position as a result of a change in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Individual companies in the PRC and Indonesia
within the Group have limited foreign currency risk
as most of the transactions are denominated in the
functional currency of the operations in which they
relate. However, as the principal subsidiaries mainly
carried out transactions in RMB and IDR, therefore
any appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against
RMB and IDR will affect the Group’s consolidated
financial position and be reflected in the exchange
reserve.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2024, individual companies in
the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong within the Group
have foreign currency exposure because certain
debt instruments of approximately HK$81,000
(2023: HK$81,000), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$209,000 (2023: HK$232,000),
amounts due to related parties of approximately
HK$59,604,000 (2023: HK$62,786,000) and
borrowings of approximately HK$9,867,000 (2023:
HK$9,867,000) were denominated in US$ and
other receivables of approximately HK$10,700,000
(2023: HK$17,243,000) were denominated in RMB.
The Group considers that the currency exposures
in relation to the US$ are insignificant as HK$ is
pegged to the US$. Therefore, these balances are
excluded from the sensitivity analysis.

The Group’s sensitivity is a 5% (2023: 5%) increase
and decrease in Hong Kong dollars against RMB. 5%
(2023: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. A decrease of approximately
HK$535,000 in pre-tax profit (2023: HK$862,000)
where Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% (2023: 5%)
against RMB. For a 5% (2023: 5%) weakening of
Hong Kong dollars against RMB, there would be an
equal and opposite impact of the loss.

e T RRME
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to amounts due to related parties (see
note 24), fixed-rate borrowings (see note 25) and
lease liabilities (see note 26). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
the variable-rate bank balances (see note 21) and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 25). The Group
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on fluctuation of interest rates on borrowings. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any
interest rate movements based on interest rate
level and outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and variable rates
and ensure they are within reasonable range.

2024 Annual Report
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI is
as follows:

33. @MTIR(#F)
(B) &BEBREEBHRBRHE)

s Ek (E)
(i) FIFEEEZ(E)
KA REBE B EE

WA R B BORBA
BB Wt

T
2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
Interest revenue FBMA
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AT ER
ERIEE 18,627 17,293
Other income and net other gains b U A LA Kz Bty U 2
and losses RS E SR
Financial assets at amortised cost BB AT ER
SREE 548 799
19,175 18,092

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured
at FVTPL:

WIFEBBHER AN ENE
MERE BT :

2024 2023
—EINE —E=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Financial liabilities at amortised cost & # s AT £ 41
TRIBE 12,117 11,925

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2023: 50
basis points) increase or decrease in variable-
rate borrowings is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. Bank
balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as
the management considers that the exposure of
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate
bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2023: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2024 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$382,000 (2023:
HK$291,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate borrowings.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTOCI
and debt instrument measured at FVTOCI. The
management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s other price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted in the
Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity and debt price risks
at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% (2023: Nil) higher/lower, the other
comprehensive expense for the year ended 31
December 2024 would decrease/increase by
HK$308,000 (2023: Nil) as a result of the changes in
fair value of investments at FVTOCI.

If the price of the respective debt instrument
had been 5% (2023: 5%) higher/lower, the other
comprehensive expense would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$4,000 (2023: HK$4,000) for
the Group as a result of the change in fair value of
debt instrument at FVTOCI.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to receivables under service
concession arrangements, trade receivables, other
receivables, debt instrument at FVTOCI, other financial
assets at amortised cost, restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has
established policies and systems for the monitoring and
control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different departments responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
processes to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Board has overall
responsibility for the Group’s credit policies and oversees
the credit quality of the Group’s asset portfolio. In this
regard, management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment is summarised as
below:

Receivables under service concession arrangements

The Group has individually assessed allowance for credit
losses for its receivables under service concession
arrangements at the end of the reporting period based
on internal credit rating, their ageing, historical observed
default rates over the expected life of receivables
and adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In the opinion of
the directors, these customers are local governmental
authorities in the PRC and government-owned corporation
in Indonesia, which are financially sound and accordingly
no loss allowance was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &MIRAE)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &mEfEEEEERBEHF)

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually, based on the past default experience of the
debtor, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the end of each
year.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, ECL on trade
receivables accounting to HK$47,000 (2023: HK$NIil) was
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s debt instrument
at FVTOCI portfolio represents a listed bond issued by
Shimao Property Holdings Limited (now known as Shimao
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed at the Stock
Exchange) which operates in the property sector in the
PRC.

The listed bond has been defaulted since the maturity
date of 21 February 2024. The Group closely monitors the
changes in the credit ratings of the issuer, and follows its
market news for taking immediate actions if there is any
indication of deterioration of the repayment ability of the
issuer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Cont’d)

As the issuer of the debt instrument has suffered from
significant financial difficulty, including defaulted in
payments for its other debt instruments, and other
liabilities, the debt instrument held by the Group is
therefore considered as credit-impaired at 31 December
2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the ECL on
debt instrument at FVTOCI amounting to HK$Nil (2023:
HK$997,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

Other receivables

The Group has assessed the allowance for credit
losses of advance to a third party with reference to the
historical past due information, default rate, the financial
position of the counterparties as well as the fair value
of collateral pledged by the counterparty. As the third
party has suffered from significant financial difficulty,
the advance to a third party is considered as credit-
impaired at 31 December 2024. During the year ended 31
December 2024, loss allowances of HK$3,509,000 (2023:
HK$26,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

For consideration receivable for disposal of a subsidiary,
the directors of the Company makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability based on past
settlement records and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. In the opinion of the directors, the
debtor is stated-owned corporation in the PRC which is
financially sound and accordingly no loss allowance was
recognised.

For the remaining other receivables, the management
believes that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group has assessed on the recoverability of other
financial assets at amortised cost by reference to
probability of default and loss given default of the bank.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no loss
allowance (2023: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

Restricted bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risks on restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

(Cont’d)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

33. &#MTR(#)

(B) &MERETEERRBIE &)

EERBNRERG(E)

AEBERNBEERRRSIFGEE

AT R

Other financial assets/

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables other items
AR ERTAR 1 5 g5 BRFE HiteMEE HiER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
default and does not have any past- not credit-impaired
due amounts
iVEN A REHFRENRRRIE - T HREBEERR 12EABREESE
B W ATy EA A - AEEGENE
Watch st Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BReE EBALERIHAR T HRBEERR REAEHEERE
BRERE2HEE - REEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
2= EERR B MR AR EE M T HREBEERR L HREBEERR
(BBAFRIINPERAEZES) - AEEGENE —-AREAEGENE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B FREEAABEECEAEERNE 2HRDEEHE L HRBEERR
-BEEEERE -BELEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
G FEETEBABARENABR  MEEHeE miEEwEESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

33. &#MTR(#)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

(Cont’d)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

(B) &BEBREEBHRBRHE)

EERBNRERG(E)

AEESREENEERERMA
(BETEEEBERNE) B

assessment: (N
2024 2023
Gross Gross
External Internal 12mor carrying carming
Notes  credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12083 ZECME “E°CF
M ABEETR ABEETR 2HRHEREE FEAE FHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn
Debt instrument at FVTOCI
FREMRANERAABTENERTIE
Investment in listed bond” 18 NAote 1) Loss Lifetime ECL — 81 81
credit-mpaired
FhEREE MER (M) BB LERBEEER
-BREEERE
Financial assets at amortised cost
RESRRTENEREE
Trade receivables 20 NA Lowrisk (note 2) Lifetime ECL — 2,324 3,670
not credit-mpaired
B AR e R (F2) %ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%}éﬁé
~REEEERE
Receivables under service concession arangements 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 364,193 364,781
iy Soet S AN TER el 1ERRREEER
Other financial assets at amortised cost 19 NA Loss Lifetime ECL - 2,415 2,556
\ credit—impaired
ERERAG ENAtSREAE TER BB 2EREBEEER
-BREEERE
BERRERBRAT ZENFEFEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &MITR#F)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) £MEREREBEERRK&)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT EE R RREE (E)
(Cont’d)
2024 2023
Gross Gross
External Internal 12mor carrying carnying
Notes ~ credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12853, S :3 =
Wi MEER ABEEFR PHRBEERR BEAS BEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn
Other receivables 20 NA Low risk 2meCL 13,578 20,128
it NER RER P2EARHEERR
Doubtful Lifetime ECL - - 5111
not credit-mpaired
BR RHRAEERR
-REEEENE
Loss Lifetime ECL - 4,698 -
oredit-mpaired
bR EHBSEARE
-BREEENE
Restricted bank deposits 21 BBBtoBaa2 N/A 12mECL 30,809 27,480
SRAHFIER BBBZBaa? TER 2EREHEEER
Bank balances 21 BBBloAA- N/A 12mECL 35,001 30,075
i BBBZAA- oyl PEARBEEER

As at 31 December 2024, the Group considers the aggregate

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

of the gross principle amount and the related contractual
interests of the debt instrument amounted to HK$3,502,000
(2023: HK$3,502,000) for the purpose of ECL assessment.

The bond issuer has chosen to stop participating in the
rating process therefore the international rating agency
has withdrawn the rating of the bond issuer as sufficient
information to maintain the rating no longer exist.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified

approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL.

2024 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &MTHR(#E)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) eMBIREEAMRBIE ()

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT EER MR KRER L (E)
(Cont’d)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowance TRINTERBEBEMEE KR
that have been recognised for debt instrument at FVTOCI, BEARBERENEBEIR - Z#
financial assets at amortised cost and other receivables: HRATENSREERAME

WRIRHERR 2 R R < HIRR

Other

financial

Trade Debt assets at
receivables instrument amortised Other Other
Lifetime at FVTOCI cost receivables  receivables
ECL- Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime
not ECL- ECL- ECL- ECL-
credit credit credit not credit credit

impaired impaired impaired impaired impaired Total

BRLMRE
WERAE  REERK
EHENER  HEOR
EARURE  TRGHEN SREERNR  AMRWIE  EeBURE
HRAER FEER  HREEFR 2EMEE  2EEEG
FR-ARE -2 -ERE BR-AY EBR-EM
FEHE fFEHE FEAE  4REERE FERE it
HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TAT TR TEL TEL TEL TETL

At1 January 2023 R_E-=F-F-H - 2,381 2523 1309 - 6,213
Impaiment losses recognised EETRESE - 997 - 2% - 1,028
Exchange adjustments i3S - - B (34 - 1)
At 31 December 2023 and RZE-ZFt-R=1-BR

1 January 2024 “E-mE-A-H - 3,378 2,556 1,301 - 723
Transfer to crecit-impaired ERTEEHA - - - (1,301) 1,301 -
Impairment losses recognised EETHESR 4 - - - 3,509 3,5%
Exchange adjustments EH % - - (141) - (112 (259
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+-F=1-R 47 3318 2415 - 4,698 10,538
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management of the Group monitors
the utilisation of amounts due to related parties and bank
and other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on amounts due to related parties (see
note 24) and bank and other borrowings (see note 25)
as a significance source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2024, the Group has available unutilised facilities of
HK$18,362,000 (2023: HK$28,674,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specially, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d)

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves
at the end of the reporting period.

33. &#MTR(#)

(B) &mERETEEAERBK (&)

REVE = EkR ()

ZREFAMBERAERE R
BE-HMNERERFENER
T REGR S BIRWE HRF K
rHARATH o

7

Liquidity tables BB FE
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  or 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate orless  3-6months  6-12months 1-5years  cashflows 31122024
e 1
EYE A¥RRE t-A=t-A
nEFEHE  SERIMUA 326  6Z12fR 125 hESE WEEE
% HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
% Tin TR TR TEn TEn TR
2024 -
Trade payables EoEfE - 3522 - - - 3522 3,522
Other payables and accruals ERERTER
2R - 12,206 - - - 12,296 12,296
Borrowings EEN 6.34% 1,400 3201 84,445 16,000 105,122 100,217
Lease liabities HEER 6.83% 135 135 92 198 560 530
Amounts due o related parties BRI EE 6.99% 5,061 1,18 46,121 56,165 109,67 101,895
2414 5,130 131,264 72,363 21,11 218,460
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. @MTI A
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &REMEEHRRBIRMA)

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d) REE SR (&)
Liquidity tables (Cont’d) REEDF (&)
Weighted ~ On demand Tota Carmying
average  or3months undiscounted amount at
interest rate orless  3-Bmonths  6-12 months 1-5years cashfows — 31.12.2023
-
e AERR TZAZt-A

ETEHE AR SE6lEA  6%12ER 1555 hEEE WAL
% HK§'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
% AL ThL TAL TETL TEL TAT

2023 CECCE
Trade payables BARMHE - 2970 - - - 2970 270
Other payables and accruals EHERTER

E2E - 14786 - - - 14,786 14,786
Borowings e 7.21% 15,836 20,978 29,911 18,518 85,243 82,067
Lease liabiliies L 5.40% 134 118 218 297 767 T
Amounts due to related parties iR ZE 7.02% 5214 A2 10,321 74,952 112,319 102,085

39,000 42,868 40,450 93,767 216,085 202,629

The amounts included above for variable interest rate W F B FI RSB PR HRE
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable ERREMGEAR - B Littpre
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates SEPNETASHENSHE -

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

33. &#MTR(#)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL C) &MIAMARENE
INSTRUMENTS
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured MPBREMS @ AEEBILHE
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating BT EIRAREE - KEFFE
the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to Al LAES 2 T 5 n] B SR BB 1
the extent it is available. FFARE ©
()  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () RELEHEERNAE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis EZREEEMEEZAR
&
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured RERER - AEEHD
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The CREEEREAAERE - T
following table gives information about how the fair RIBEHEWENNETZES
values of these financial assets are determined (in MEEZAREZER (5
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used). B2 BT PR A (B BT B 3 A 28
®) -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t} E=R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET TAT TAT
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-ME+=A
=t+-H
Equity instrument at FVTOC| & B E M2 E R
DREFEN
ERIA
— Investment in listed — EmRHOEE
shares 6,162 - - 6,162
Debit Instrument at FVTOCI  #:@E b 2 B 1E
NREFENES
TH
— Investment in listed bond  — FHEHIRE 81 - - 81
6,243 - - 6,243
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+=A
=t+-H
Debt instrument at FVTOCI & i@ E i 2 IR
DR BEFTENER
TA
— Investment in listed bond  — ETfEHIEE 81 — — 81
BRIRRIERERAT ZENEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

()  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont’d)

Fair value as at
31 December

33.

eMTR(E)

(C) &MIAMHLRMEEHE)

RIBEEMEEZ QD UER
BAEBEREEZAR
E(#&)

R+=-A=+—H22AARE Farvalue Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 2024 2023  hierarchy and key input(s)
ZECIMFE T =F AAEZR  GERNRERBARE
STHMEE HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx TAT
Listed equity securities at 6,162 n/a Level1 Quoted bid prices in an active
FVTOCI market
FRAMPEREEAR
Bt EM EHRER = TER B8R ERTISMREAE
Investment in listed bond 81 81 Level1 Quoted bid prices in an active
market
mEFRE F—R ERTISATRE A B

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
fair value during both the current and prior years.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # = —E — i+ — H=+—HIFFEE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September 2014 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

The limit on the total number of Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other Schemes
of our Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. The maximum number of Shares
in respect of which options under the Scheme and any other
Schemes of our Company may be granted is 10% of the Shares
in issue immediately upon completion of the share offer, being
80,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose the number
of shares which would be issued on the exercise in full of the
options granted under the Scheme or any other schemes of our
Company but not cancelled, lapsed or exercised; the number
of Shares which have been allotted and issued pursuant to the
exercise of any options granted under the Scheme or any other
schemes of our Company; and the number of cancelled Shares.

34. FRRRiEETE

ARRRBRER -_F-NFNLARABRB
HYIR BB AT 8 ([ Z2at8)) -
IEEHEHRESERAERESR - RIE
ZEt8 > ARREFARAERERR
HEERE - ERBEARALENB L
AINES - URBARRIRND -

EREARBBRELAEZBERT
RFZA BIR] e 2 BRI M2
RIS PMERIR RS HEBA AR
BEEITIRNZ10% « EAREARR AR
SRIEZBERT - PMER—FREA
BEABRRT RARER T 2 BT S K
ZEBITMETETZRNEE TS
BARRBNMERBEZZETRDZ21% °

BIEZAT R AR R E s BB E
T BRI TE 2 BB RAITE R IR BT
FRA] T T ZARBRMDBEN L
IR PMERIBH R NSRBI B 21T
19230% ° RIFZATE RARQ R E
fth T8I 7] BEIR HH MO BB AR BE AT X O AR 1
RBeHE ABBRMHEETKE DT
A% {7 E310% » BN80,000,000A% A% 17 » &k
ims @ TEREBEZTEISARRE
Al E A 2R A BE AR R R B T
AJREET TR R FESH R TE 2 AR
MEE  ARBZATEI S AR A E
fth T B A E A BB AR R & T M B B
BRBETHRMNEE  REFHERGHZ
ZH -

BERRERERDF T -MFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # %= —ZE — i+ — H=+—H I FF
34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board determines
to offer to grant options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates which will result in the number of shares issued and
to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month
period is subject to approval by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.

The subscription price for the Company’s shares on the
exercise of options under Scheme shall be at least the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (c) the nominal value of the share.

The Scheme expired on 4 September 2024 and no further
share option scheme was offered by the Group upon the
expiration of the Scheme. No share option was granted or
remained outstanding under the Scheme during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(A)

(B)

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN HONG KONG

The Group operates a MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
Hong Kong for employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustee. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. There are no forfeited
contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN THE PRC

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC
are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments, the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a
percentage of the participating employees’ salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
The employer contributions vest fully once made. There
are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

35. [RFiRFIRME

(A)

(B)

RERERITZREHRENE

g

REBEBRATELTESFTEE
PlEeER2EBESHEINE
BEBRER Y —HaEEE -
HRDIRIEBRE ST ERAIRE
BEAFEHE—BOLEL -
WREFR BIBEINRG - 8Ed
AFEIEERZEAZTINESE
£ HBALEEEESFAFE - A
EEZEESTEELNEEHS
REHEBNES - BIEE 2K
AT A E A AR IR A
FOKFE o

RPERTZREH#KE KRG

B

AEBRPEEENEEBASM
HE T BT &R P RR RS
e REAEMEEEARE
BEDRARBA - $FIBAKE
REBEPREKSFENRAIES
HEBHFENEX—BOLLEL
WREMEEBRAINE - BEMN
HERNEEHHRER 2R
& - ED U EH AT R ARE
FLURKIR A HFRKFE o

FRAERERDT T -MFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA

Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required
to pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits
to their employees if the conditions specified in the
Indonesia Labour Law are met. The Group’s subsidiaries
in Indonesia estimate their liability for employee service
entitlement benefits in order to meet and cover the
minimum benefits requirement to be paid to employees
under the Indonesia Labour Law. The post-employment
benefits are unfunded.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan
liability.

LONGEVITY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)
SALARY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is
calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31
December 2024 by Kautor Konsultan Aktuaria Steven
& Mourits, an independent actuarial consulting firm
in Indonesia. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit
credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

35. BkEFIRIE(MH)

(€

RENEEITZ R EiaFliE &t

Bl(#%)
HE B

REBMFAHAENREIZE
AESEANKRRHFEMAHE -
it - FH 82 EAFE LT #E
EtEIRLGE -

ATRMNETRERIOZBER
E)?/EEEUE*FW%_LFMEEW

N 7] Kautor Konsultan Aktuaria
Steven & Mourits /A — & — [0
+ZA=+—H#ETT - AEEF
BEARERABY B R REKA
KB RRG K AR TaRT BB B &
/Qi;'l'i °

BEMEMAEI2MERAT

2024
—EomE

PIEEIRS
B THE

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary increase

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of
plan assets was nil (2023: Nil) and that the actuarial value
of these assets represented 0% (2023: 0%) of the benefits
that had accrued to members.

REMEERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 7 —F [N+ = H=+—HIFFE
35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. BWIRFIRE ()
(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) REIRETZREiIRFIEMAK:
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) Bl(#m)
SALARY RISK (Cont'd) FoRK(E)
Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect HATRAGTEIR Z2HE W= ER
of the defined benefit plan are as follows: SR T :
2024 2023
—EE —E-=4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Service cost: ARTEACA -
— Current service cost — B ATARIE A A 697 353
— Past service cost and gain —BERIEK AR K
from settlements EE W (1) (80)
Net interest expense BT FEE 62 54
Components of defined benefit T 1 T R ) SR E AR A A B
costs recognised in profit or (BB
loss 758 327
Remeasurement on the net B ERATEMNAE
defined benefit liability: R
— Actuarial gains and losses — B BREEEEZ
arising from changes in fBE W KB e
financial assumptions (39) 27
— Actuarial gains and losses —RBRARFEE
arising from experience BE W= RER
adjustments 70 (22)
Components of defined benefit RE AL 2 E R SRR
costs recognised in other FLEAE N Y
comprehensive income HRCE > 31 5
Total @t 789 332

Of the expenses for the year, HK$758,000 (2023:
HK$327,000) has been included in administrative

expenses.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is
included in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. SRREFIRE(F)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) MENRETZRERFIRFE
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) 8(#)
The amount included in the consolidated statement of AEBRERTEAMTENEMS
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in EEMNGAGEFBERIERNS
respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: LN
2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Present value of funded defined 2T & REBHMNE(EHE
benefit obligations 1,755 1,144
Fair value of plan assets TEIBENARE - -

Net liability arising from defined AFENETEENEEFRE
benefit obligations 1,755 1,144
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

35. BkEFIREH)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) REIRETZREiIRFIEMAK:
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) gl(#)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit ATRNETEERAEEN#
obligations in the current year were as follows: E N
2024 2023
—ECE T4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Opening defined benefit FYRTERMEAR
obligations 1,144 929
Service cost: BRTEACA -
— Current service cost — B BIARFE A AR 697 353
— Past service cost and gain from —BFRIEK A R EE WS
settlements (1) (80)
Interest cost B 62 54
Remeasurement (gains)/losses: Bt 8 (Uzs) B8 -
— Actuarial gains and losses —UBBEREBMEE S
arising from changes in BE W KL EE
financial assumptions (39) 27
— Actuarial gains and losses —REBARFEE
arising from experience BE W M EE
adjustments 70 (22)
Exchange differences on foreign /84Nt 2IFE 3, =58
plans (83) 9
Benefits paid B A& F (95) (126)
Closing defined benefit obligations £ R R & & F 1,755 1,144

R BLEURRE 0 T T R 9 DA R RER B
BEFEALELS -

There was no change in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

AEBAEEINEFHER A18.234F
B =4 :18.55%) o

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 18.23 years (2023: 18.55 years).

AEEBRBRIEN T —HRFEZ AR
ERMFEIHR( T _=F : &) -

The Group does not expect to make contribution (2023:
Nil) to the defined benefit plan during the next financial
year.

274 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
rate of salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below has
been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
constant.

35. BkEFIREH)

(C) WENREITZRERFIRHKA
Bl(#)

EEREEE2EXBERRR
EEEET&?EHH F R TTIE o AT 8L
RE IR BN IR E HIREBMRER
ﬁiﬁ/\f@ BEEE M MR
REFIEMET °

(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase (decrease)
in net in net
defined defined
Increase benefit Decrease in benefit
inrate obligations rate obligations
RERF RERM
ERRE ERFE
FEEH (BD)/ B FETR #M/ (H)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
% TET % FET
At 31 December 2024 R-B-NE+=-A=+—-H
Discount rate AR K 1 (82 1 92
Expected rate of salary increase EHF S AR 1 102 1 (93)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F+-A=1—-8H
Discount rate BhIR & 1 (70) 1 78
Expected rate of salary increase BHF S AR 1 85 1 (78)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at
the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

R E A R S T AARE - BBy
BREDTATHEE - A F 251505
AR — iR R AR B
BREE -

BEAN - REINA EBURE DT - FE
BB EZRERREARIATE B
BrOEAE - BEANTESRAMBIR
MARAERZRERMNEERBEZ A
18R
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mEMBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEKIE
2024 2023
—ECOE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET AT
Capital expenditure in respect of service BOTHEM#IE NEMEDFIHMEARD
concession arrangement under BOT ERA B IR R BB RS
basis contracted for but not provided in £ EFfE L HEHE NG
the consolidated financial statements 19,367 12,923
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. ABAXS

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(A) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the Group has following transactions

and balances with related parties:

(A) BREZEFGEAVHBHRRAEEE

Sh - NREEBEBEBTANTRS
R fE8R

2024 2023
—EMEF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Nature of transactions and BB AR S
balances with related EPNET
companies:
Rental expense* MeRZ* 331 268
Administrative service expense™  {TEARTSF 2,347 2,147
Interest expenses on lease HEABENFERAXZ
liabilities 8 16
Lease liabilities*™* HEAGE™ 176 523

* During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, rental
expense was paid to a related company over which a director
of the Company has significant influence to operate, monitor
and maintain the two power plants of the Group.

>k

The Group entered into an administrative service sharing

agreement with a related party, a company controlled by
certain executive directors and their close family members,
in connection with the sharing of administrative services on a

cost basis.

2024 Annual Report
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(A)

(B)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (A)
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties: (Cont’d)

e During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
a sub-lease agreement with Dragonfield Management Limited,
a company controlled by certain executive directors and their
close family members, to sub-lease the office premise. The
new sub-lease agreement has a term of three years from
1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025 at a rent of HK$29,536 per
month. At the commencement date of the sub-lease, the
Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability of
HK$1,029,000.

Compensation of key management personnel (B)

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

37. MBBRR(H)

BRZEFREMBRERSANE
oh - NREEBEBEBTANTRS
Ko fgeh - ()

o RBEZTZ_FF+ZA=+—
BIEFE AEEERS AR
FHEHEEERAG(HET
WITEE REARIESNRE)E]T
S - o EBE AR
F(HEZE-—_FtA—H=ZZ
T-_RAFNA=+AH) AMA
29,5368 70 - RO MK B -
AEERRAEAREEREESR
1&1,029,000/ 7T °

FEETERARNHTH

MRERNEERTEZBTEEHMA
BEHFBInT

2024 2023

—E-ME —EC-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Short-term employee benefits MEEE T 3,863 3,018
Post-employment benefits BB 2R 40 48
3,903 3,066

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
Further details of compensation of directors’ emoluments
are included in note 11.

EERETBITRABZFHMAF
MEzEeREREARR LTS
BEERET EFHFMNE—F
BACE N GEEARI
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # %= —ZE — i+ — H=+—H I FF

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. FLTFHMBARAE

COMPANY
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB ARMRE 164,259 164,259
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TER FRIE I H At FE U IR 343 163
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS T BB A B FR I8 315,924 320,780
Debt instrument at FVOCI FBEMEEBEIEARBTED
B TA 81 81
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 5,360 5,745
321,708 326,769
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik h=Ri=
Other payables and accruals HMENFIBERERSER 1,211 1,160
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATB B A R FRIAE 130,456 124,618
Amounts due to related parties e RAES 5 FR0A 7,261 31,676
Borrowings EEN 55,750 46,067
194,678 203,521
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 127,030 123,248
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDAE
LIABILITIES 291,289 287,507
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXRHE
Share capital &N 111 111
Reserves e 181,677 199,007
TOTAL EQUITY R 181,788 199,118
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to related parties A BRSO FRIR 94,634 70,389
Borrowings [=E 14,867 18,000
109,501 88,389
291,289 287,507
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. EATFIMMBERARF)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S CAPITAL AND ENFSERERET
RESERVES
Investment
Share Share  revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
R& RORE REERRE RithE o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TR AL AT TAL

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=F-f—H 11 391,851 (200) (176,020) 215,742
Loss for the year EREE - - - (17,119) (17,119)
Net fair value loss on debt instruments at -~ BBEM 2 ERFRA A BHE

fair value through other comprehensive BRI ANAAL BEEEE

income - - (502) - (502)
Impairment loss on debt instrumentat -~ EBEM R ERFRAA B ER

fair value through other comprehensive BB T A4IREES

income - - 997 - 997

Total comprehensive (expense)/income N2 E(B%)/izs

for the year ik - - 495 (17,119 (16,624)
At 31 December 2023 and W-E-=£+-A=+-Ak
1 January 2024 —E-N5-F—-H 1 391,851 295 (193,139) 199,118

Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ EABERZEE T EE
for the year - - - (17,330) (17,330)

At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+-A=+-H 111 391,851 295 (210,469) 181,788
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &= —F —J#E - =+—H I F&F

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

39. ARXFEEMEATFRIFR

RZTE-_NMFER T -_=ZF+_-A8
=1+—H ARAREEHBRARINFS
RN

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid  Proportion of ownership
registration/ up share capital/ interest held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
AR/ BEATRAR RAFREN
MELARER EEBY RE/EMER BERERLA IEED
2024 2023
—EC-NE -—E-=F
% %

Rugao Hengfa (notes a & b) PRC US$10,880,000 100 100 Construction and operation
activities of wastewater
treatment facilities

Mm% (Frako) i 10,880,000 T KERRBHRRREEE
)

Shanghai Taihuan Environmental PRC HK$400,000 100 100 Dormant

Technology Limited (notes a & b)
FEFRRRREAR AR (FizHakb) M 400,000 TEXK
ELL Environmental Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZERUHE 100X RERR
Everbest Water Treatment Development Hong Kong HK$82,304,273 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
BEKEERERAT] BB 82,304,278 57T RE R
Grand Target Holdings Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
AERNAS 100%7T REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 39. T EMBLATINNER &)
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE-_NMFEFR_ZE_=F+_-AH4
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (Cont’d) =t—H8 AR ENBARINFEE
w8

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid  Proportion of ownership
registration/ up share capital/ interest held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
AR/ ER BEATRAR RAFREN
MELARER EEBY A/ ERER BERERLD IEED
2024 2023
—ECNE -—E-=F
% %
Greatcorp International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ARERARAR R 100787t REER
Eternity Time Group Limited BvI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
RERUAHS 100%7T REER
Weal Union Limited Hong Kong HK$250 100 100 Investment holding
1N ) 25077 REER
Absolute Praise Limited BvI US$100 100 100 Dormant
RERUHE 100%7T S
Winwood Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Dormant
KEEEERAA &% 1007 TEXE
RPSL Indonesia IDR230,900 millon 95 95 Manufacturing and sale of
wood pellets and provision
of information technology
services
ffe 230,905 2B EERHERBRIARRHEE
AR IR

BERREREBRLE —ZIFEFER
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 39. &2 T EMB LTINS &)

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 R_E-_NMER_ZE-_=%+_A4

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (Cont’d) =+t—H AR ENBATNFEE

W (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid  Proportion of ownership
registration/ up share capital/ interest held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
AR/ ER BEATRAR RAFREN
MELARER EEBY A/ ERER BERERLD IEED
2024 2023
—ECNE -—E-=F
% %

SJP Indonesia IDR25,000 million 95 95 Construction and operation
activities of biomass power
plant

e 25,0008 EHERE ENERERNRRREER
)

PT ELL Environmental Limited Indonesia IDR32,200 million 99.92 99 Provision of administration and
management services to
group companies

e R22008&EEE AEERTRETHERRE
PT Indo Wood Pellets (note c) Indonesia Issued and fully 94.91 n/a  Manufacturing and sale of
paid up capital of wood pellets
IDR Nil
Registered capital of
IDR10,000 millon
PT Indo Wood Pellets(izFc) e EETRARER 94.91 NER  EERHEAEN

ZHRE
HMER
10,000EEBENEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z —E —J#F = =+—H I FF

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@) These entities are registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises
under the laws of PRC.

(b) The English names of these entities represent management’s best
effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not
register any official English names.

() This entity was incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2024,

Except for ELL Environmental Limited, Absolute Praise Limited
and Eternity Time Group Limited, all subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of the
year or constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ARBITRATION

On 5 February 2024, the Group commenced arbitration
proceedings to recover the consideration receivable for
disposal of a subsidiary which is past due and is included
in other receivables as at 31 December 2024. Arbitration
tribunal hearings have been completed in December 2024.
On 28 February 2025, the arbitration court notified the date of
arbitration award was extended to 28 August 2025. Based on
the advice from the Group’s independent legal advisors, the
final outcome is unable to be determined at this stage.

39.

40.

FLFERMBLFIRIFRAF)

R-E-_NMER T _=ZF+_4
_+ EI RRAREEWNBRRNFE
W ()

(i

@ HEETRREPEEEEMAIEBEE
hE -

(o) ENZSEBIREIMERNEHTES
B REEENENERIATEES
IR EEPCEEDEEE -

) BHEEBRHE—_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—
A F MRS o

& ELL Environmental Limited * Absolute
Praise Limited X Eternity Time Group
Limited b » PTE B8 2~ Bl B A2 7
BRA -

FRINTEEARIBFEFEREN
BRASEEEFEZEBZROZAR
B AR c BEERA - REEMKE
RAZFBETREBNITE

sk

R-Z-NE-—ARRA - AEEFRMA
BAER - DAE o — R B A R R
HIW (B - s FBRF AR T MF
TZA=+t—BaEMBRYGIR - (FE
EFECR T -MF+ A%k - RZ
Z-_AF_A=1/\B - HEEBRM
HRERABMERE _T _AF/\H
:+AE°EE$%@ﬁ2%&EHW
BR - REEBEAEEREE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L EHBEBRE
RESULTS xiE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
TECEF B —F —E-F —ZTo=F ZEBENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT THET FET FET
Revenue EESUPN 59,017 103,136 203,659 113,279 121,616
Profit before tax BRI AT & A 5,096 22,900 163 700 1,155
Income tax expenses FriSfim s (6,581) (11,394) (15,335) (8,818) (10,478)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHEF(EE) (1,485) 11,506 (15,172) (8,118) (9,323)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE  AERFEERERS
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-FF T —F —E--F —To=F ZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET THETT FHET FET
Total assets BEE 477,381 528,771 517,173 526,101 516,714
Total liabilities BWEE (102,217)  (145,708)  (227,251)  (247,201)  (263,909)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE3%EA%HERS (30,028) (30,200) 5,608 5,483 5,996

345,136 352,865 295,630 284,383 258,801
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